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Frick India Limited

COMPANY INFORMATION

Registered Office & Works ¢ Frick India Limited
CIN - L74899HR1962PLCOD2618
21.5 Km., Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad -121003, (Haryana)
Ph :91-2275691-94, 2270546-47
Fax : 0129-2275695
E mail; cs@frickmail.com

Corporate Office : BO09, Suryakiran Building,
19 K. G. Marg, New Delhi -110001
Ph: 23322381/84/91 Fax: 011-23322396
E mail: delhi@frick.co.in

Website o owww frickweb.com

EOARD OF DIRECTORS

Managing Director : Mr. Jasmohan Singh

Mon-Executive Directors : Ms. Jasleen Kaur Queenie Singh
Ms. Gurleen Kaur

Independent Directors ¢ Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain

Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao
CA. Divaker Jagga

COMMITTEES :

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Dr. G. B, Rao :  Independent Director and Chairman
Mr. Jasmohan Singh : Member
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain : Member
Mr. Divaker lagga ¢ Member

NOMIMNATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE :

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain : Non-Executive, Lead Independent Director cum Chairman
M. Divaker Jagga : Member
Dr. G. B. Rao : Member
Ms. Gurlean kaur 1 Member

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain :  Non-Executive, Lead Independent Director cum Chairman
Mr. Jasmohan Singh : Member
M. Divaker Jagga : Member

Ms. Gurleen kaur : Member
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COMMITTEE ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Mr. Ramesh Chandra lain
M. Jasmohan Singh
Ms. Gurieen Kaur

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

Mr. Jastnohan Singh
CA. Sharad Bhatnagar
CS. Amit Singh Tomiar

AUDITORS
Stotutory Auditors

Cost Auditors
Financial Year 2022-23

Secretarial Auditors

Interna! Auditers

BAMNKERS

REGISTRAR & TRAMNSFER AGENT

Chairman
Member
Membear

Managing Director
Director (Finance & Taxation) & CFO
Company Secretary- Manager - Legal

M/s Lodha & Cao., Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 301051E

M5 Jatin Sharme & Company.
Firm Registration No. 101845

M5 Aditi Agarwal & Associates

Gragnt Thorntan Indig LLP

Canara Bank
ICICI Bank Limited
HDFC Bank Limited

Link Intime India Private Limited

MNoble Heights, Ist Floor, NH-2,

C-1, Block LSC, Near Savitri Market,

lanakpuri, Mew Delhi - 110058

Tel : 011-41410582/93/94. Fax: 011-41410591
e-mail ; delhi@linkintime.co.in

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL REVIEW (Rs. in Lakhs)
Year Ending 31st March 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Net Sales (Including other income) 36,927.00 28,771.80 23,753.86 22,700.91 24,810.50
Assets before Depreciation 4,374.24 4,188.87 4,013.09 3,989.72 382711
Equity Capital(Rs.60 Lakhs)Plus Reserves| 23,175.42 | 20,363.98 18,756.78 16,708.61 | 15,227.05
Profit Before Taxation 3,856.46 2,189.71 2,731.59 1.854.05 2.150.69
Provision for taxation (Net) 1,004.25 553.37 652.54 393.14 633.25
Dividend Paid 18.00 18.00 15.00 15.00 15.00

~ PERCENTAGE
Rate of Dividend 30 30 25 25 25

Previous year's figures have been re-casted [ regrouped / rescheduled, wherever considered necassary.

The Amount Shown as Dividend paid is net of Dividend Distribution Tax
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21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad-121003 (Haryana)

Ph. 0129-2275691-94, 2270546-47
Fax. 0129-2275695

Email - cs@frickmail.com

Website - www frickweb.com

Frick India Limited
( (CIN - LY4899HR1962PLC0O02618)
Regd. Office: -

NOTICE OF 60" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the 80" ANNUAL GEMERAL MEETING of the Members of Frick India Limited will be
held on Monday, 25" day of September, 2023 at 11:00 A.M.., through Video Conferencing/Audio Visual Made to
transact the following business:-

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company i.e. Audited Balance Sheet as at 31%
March, 2023 and the Statement of Profit & Loss and Cash Flow 5tatement for the Financial Year ended 31%
March, 2023 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors” & Auditors’ thereon.

2. To declare dividend of Rs. 4/-per eguity share on 5,299,975 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs. 10/-each for the
Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Gurleen Kaur, Non-Executive Director [DIN: 05270533] who retires by
rotation and being eligible, had provided the consent for re-appointment as the Non-Executive Director of the
Company.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. RATIFICATION OF REMUNERATION TO BE PAID TO M/S JATIN SHARMA & CO., COST AUDITORS [FIRM
REGISTRATION NO.101845] OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2023-2024

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification{s]}, the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the shareholders of the Company be and
hereby ratify the payment of the remuneration to M/s Jatin Sharma & Co., Cost Auditors [Firm Registration
Mo 101845] for INR 1,20,000/- (Rupeas One Lakh Twenty Thousand only) exclusive of any taxes and statutory
levies as applicable plus reimbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be incurred during the course of Cost
Audit for the Financial Year 2023-2024, and also the Cost for conversion of requisite documents / Cost Audit
Report and related annexures in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL) shall alsc be paid and
reimbursed by the Company.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors and/ar Mr. Sharad Bhatnagar, CFO & Director (Finance &
Taxation) of the Company andfor Mr. Amit Singh Tomar, Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary, expedient and desirable for the
purpose of giving effect to this resalution.”

NOTES

In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India ["MCA") issued
General Circular Nos. 14,2020, 17/2020, 20/2020, 02/2021, 18/2021, 21/2021, 02/2022 and 10/2022 dated 8th
April 2020, 13th April 2020, 5th May 2020, 13th January 2021, 8th December 2021, 14th December 2021, 5™
May, 2022 and 28" December, 2022 respectively, ("MCA Circulars") allowing, inter-alia, conduct of AGMs
through Video Conferencing/Other Audio-Visual Means ("VC / OAVM") facility on or before 30th September,
2023, In accordance with the requirements provided in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the MCA Ganeral Circular No.
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(2)

20/2020, In compliance with these Circulars, provisions of the Act and the SEB| (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), the 60th AGM of the Company is being
conducted through VC / OAVM facility, which does not require physical presence of Members at a common
venue. The deemed venue for the 60th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.

Institutional / Corporate Shareholders {i.e. other than individuals / HUF, NRI, etc.) are required to send a
scanned copy (PDF/IPG Format) of its Board or governing body Resolution/Authorization etc., authorizing its
representative to attend the AGM through VC / OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote avoting. The
said Resolutionf/Authorization shall be sent to the Scrutimizer (i.e. Ms Adit Gupta) by email through its
registered emazil address to cs.aditiagarwal@gmail.com, with a copy marked to cs@frickmail.com

(3) The meeting shall be deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company situated at 21.5 Km,

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

fain Mathura Road, Faridabad, Haryana.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act, 23 Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need not be a Member of the Company. Since this
AGM s being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members has
been dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available
for the AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday
September 19, 2023 to Monday, 25" September, 2023, (both days inclusive).
Final dividend of Rs. 4.00/- per equity share as recommended by the Board of Directors for the year ended

31st March, 2023 and subject to the approval of the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, will
be credited, on or after the, September 25, 2023 to the following Members or their mandate:

6.1 whaose names appear as Beneficial Owners as at the end of the business hours on the September 18%,
2022 in the lists of Beneficial Owners to be furnished by National Securities Depository Limited ('NSDL")
and Central Depository Services (India) Limited ('CDSL') in respect of the shares held in electronic mode;
and

6.2 whose names appear as Members in the Register of members of the Company after giving effect to valid
share transfers in physical form lodged with the Company / its Registrar & Transfer Agents on or before
September 18", 2023.

As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred
only in dematerialized form with effect from, April 1, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission
or transposition of securities. In view of this and to eliminate all risks associated with physical shares and for
gase of portfolic management, members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting
their holdings to dematerialized form. Members can contact the Company or Company's Registrars and
Transfer Agent, “Linkintime India Private Limited" for assistance in this regard.

Mermbers are requested to notify ta the Company any change in their address on or before September 18t
2023 and if any of these requests are received later than the said date, the same will not be taken into account
for the purpose of payment of dividend declared by the Company. Members are also requested to send their
latest specimen signatures to the Company for updation of the record.

Further, the Members whose shareholdings are in electronic mode are reguested to directly correspond for
change of address, nofifications and updating thereon of saving bank account details to their respective
Depository Participants, on an immediate basis.
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Process for registration of email id for obtaining Annual Report and user id/password for e-voting and updation of
bank account mandate for receipt of dividend:

Physical Holding Send a request to the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company, Linkintime - at
www.linkintime.co.in providing Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of
the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) for registering email
address.

Following additional details need to be provided in case of updating Bank Account
Details:

a) Name and Branch of the Bank in which you wish to receive the dividend,
b) the Bank Account type,

c) Bank Account Number allotted by their banks after implementation of Core
Banking Solutions

d) 9 digit MICR Code Number, and
e) 11 digit IFSC Code

f) a scanned copy of the cancelled cheque bearing the name of the first shareholder

Demat Holding Please contact your Depository Participant (DP) and register your email address
and bank account details in your demat account, as per the process advisad by your
DP.

(9) The relevant details as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 of the person seeking re-appointment as Director under [tem No. 3 of the Notice is annexed.

(11) In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, the members whose name appears as the first holder in the

order of names as per Register of Members of the company will be entitled to vote

(12) Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102(1) of the Act, relating to the Special Business
to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed herewith.

(13} Material documents pertaining to above resolutions are available for inspection at the Registered Office of the
Company at 21.5 Km, Main Mathura Road, Faridabad (Haryana) during 2.00 p.m. to 4.00 p.m. on any working day
and will also be available for inspection at the meeting.

(14) Queries on Financial Statements of the Company, if any, may please be sent at the Registered Office of the

Company at least 7 (seven) days in advance of the Meeting or through e-mail, on cs@frickmail.com. The same

will be replied by the Company suitably.

(15) As per the extent of the said Act, every shareholder is entitled to nominate a person in accordance with the

provisions of Section 72 of the Act to whom his / her shares in the Company shall vest in the unfortunate of his
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(16)

(17)

(18)

{19)

(20)

(21)

[ her death. The members who wish to avail the facility of nomination may send in their nomination in Form
SH-13 as prescribed under the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, s copy of which is
enclosed in the Annual Report. Members holding shares in electronic mode may contact their respective
Depository Participant for availing this facility.

Members of the Company who hald equity shares in physical form are encouraged to utilize the Electronic
Clearing Systern (ECS) for direct credit of dividend ta their bank account. This notice includes an ECS Mandate
Form for the benefit of the Members desiring to receive dividends through the ECS mode. Intimation in this
regard should be sent to the Company immediately.

Unclaimed dividend for the Year ended 31st March, 2016 onwards and the corresponding Equity Shares of the
Company in respect of which dividend entitiements have remained unclaimed for seven consecutive years
from the financial year ended 31st March, 2016 will be due for transfer to the Investor Education and
Protecton Fund of the Central Government ['IEPF) on November 01, 2022 pursuant to the provisions of
Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 (IEPF Rules'). In respect of the said dividend and
corresponding shares, it will not be possible to entertain any claim received by the Company after Novernber
01, 2023,

Details of the unclaimed dividend and particulars with respact to corresponding shares due for transfer to the
IEPF arc available on the Company's corporate website www frickweb.com under the section ‘Investor
Relations’.

Dividend and corresponding shares, as stated in (17) above, once transferred to the IEPF by the Company, may
be claimed only from the |IEPF Authority by following the procedure prescribed under the [EPF Rules.

Mr. Amit Singh, Company Secretary is the Nodal Officer (refer Directors Report) of the Company for the
purpose of verification of such claims.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. CIR/OIAES1/2013 dated April 17, 2013, the Company has to redress the investar
complaint through SEBI Complaints Redress System ("SCORES") under the web portal http://scores.gov.in. As
on date the Company has registered itself with the web-portal of the SEBI SCORES with respect to enabling
investors to lodge and follow up their complaints and track the status of redressal of such complaints from
anywhere in order to safeguard the interest of the stakeholders/shareholders.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated January 15, 2021, May 13, 2022 &
January 5, 2023 read with circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2022-
23 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with
the Company/ Depositories, Members may note that the Motice and Annual Beport 2022-23 will alse be
available on the Company's website waww Frickweb.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. Metropolitan
Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.msalin, Further, pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PaD-
2/PfCIRS2023/4 dated January 05, 2023, the relaxation pursuant to furnishing of hard copy of Annual Report
has been extended 6l September 30, 2022, However, hard copies of the Annual Report, financial statements
(including Board report, Auditor report or other documents required to be attached therewith) and Matices of
Annual General Meeting will be made available to the members, who reguest for the same and the web link of
the full Annual Report shall also be available in the notice of AGM published by advertisement to enable
shareholders to have full access of the same,

Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the guorum
under Section 103 of the Act.
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(22)

(23)

(24}

(25}

(28)

(27}

(28)

Pursuant to Finance Act 2020, dividend income will be taxable in the hands of shareholders w.e.f. April 1,
2020 and the Company is required to deduct tax at source from dividend paid to shareholders at the
prescribed rates. For the prescribed rates for various categories, the shareholders are requested to refer to
the Finance Act, 2020 and amendments thereof. The shareholders are requested to update their PAN with
the Company/ Linkintime India Private Limited (in case of shares held in physical mode) and depositaries {in

case of shares held in demat mode).

A Resident individual shareholder with PAN and who is not liable to pay income tax can submit a yearly
declaration in Form Mo, 15G/15H, to avail the benefit of non-deduction of tax at source by
stakeholders@frickmail.com by 11:5% p.m. IST on September 18%, 2023, Shareholders are reguested to note
that in case their PAM is not registerad, the tax will be deducted at a higher rate of 20%.

Mon-resident shareholders can avail beneficial rates under tax treaty between India and their country of
residence, subject to providing necessary documents ie. No Permanent Establishment and Beneficial
Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency Certificate, Form 10F, any other document which may be required to
avail the tax treaty benefits by sending an email to stakeholders@frickmail.com The aforesaid declarations
and documents need to be submitted by the shareholders by 11:5% p.m. I5T on September 18", 2023,

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Mumber (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are,
therefore, requested to submit their PAN to thelr Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining
their demat accounts. Members holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/RTA.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Govi. of India has taken 2 "Green Initiative in Corporate Governance” by
allowing paperless compliances by companies and has issued Circulars inter-alia stating that the service of
notices/ documents to the Mermbers can be made in electronic mode. In support of this Green Initiative of
the Government, the Company hereby requests its Members to send their valid e-mail |D¥'s to the Secretary
of the Company / its RTA / their Depository Participant, so that this initiative can be supported by sending the
MNotices, Audited Balance Sheet, Directors Report, Auditors Report and other related documents and other
correspondences in electronic mode. This initiative is however optional & the members can continue to
receive these documents in physical form. Reguisite form for registration of e-mail 10, forms part of the

Annual Report for use by the members.
Since the AGM will be held through WC / OAVM, the Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

The membears can opt for only one mode of voting i.e. through e-voting or through Voting at the meefing. In
case of voting by both the modes, vote casted through e-voting will be considered final and voting at the
Annual General Meeting through online voting facility at the meeting will be considered as invalid.

The vating rights of the Members for e-voting and for online voting at the meeting shall be reckoned on the
paid up value of shares registered in the name of shareholders as on the cut-off date (i.e. the record date),
being September 187, 2023,

SHAREHOLDER INSTRUCTIONS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING

Pursuant to provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies {Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014, and Regulation 44 of the SEB| Listing Regulations the Company is pleased to offer

remote e-voting facility to the members to cast their votes electronically on all resolutions set forth in the Notice
convening the 60" Annual General Meeting to be held at 11:00 A.M. on Monday, 25" day of September, 2023
through Video Conferencing/Audio Visual Mode, The Company has engaged the services of Linkintime India Private

Limited to provide the rermote E-Voting facility.
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The remote E-voting facility is available at the link: https://instavote linkintime.co.in

(E-VOTING EVENT COMMENCEMENT OF REMOTE E- END OF REMOTE E-VOTING
NUMBER) VOTING
230214 September 22, 2023 at 10:00 A.M. September 24, 2023 at 05:00 P.M.

These details and instructions form an integral part of the notice for the 60th Annual General Meeting to be held
on Monday, 25" day of September, 2023 at 11:00, through Video Conferencing/Audic Visual Mode.

The instructions for sharehelders voting electronically are as under:

(i} The remote e-voting period begins from 10:00 A.M. on September 22, 2023 and ends at 05:00 P.M. on
September 24, 2023, During this pericd shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date September 18, 2023, may cast their vote
electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by Linkintime for remote e-voting
thereafter. Those Members, who will be present in the AGM through VC [ OAVM facility and have not
cast their vote on the Resolutions through remaote e-voting and are otherwise not barred from doing sa,

shall be eligible to vote through e-voting system during the AGM.

(i} Login method for individual shareholders holding securiies In demat mode/physical mode is given

below:
Type of Login Method
Shareholders
Existing |DeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz... hitps://eservices.nsdl.com
Individual either on a persanal computer ar on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the
Shareholders | "Beneficial Owner” jcon under "Login™® which is available under 'IDeAS' secton, this will
holding prompt you to enter your existing User 1D and Password. After successful authentication, you
ceeurities:in will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on "Access to e-Voting"
under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company narme or
demat mode e-Voting service pravider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be re-directed to “InstaVote”
with NSDL website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
If you are not registered for |D2AS e-Services, option to register is available
at https://eservices.nsdl.com Select  "Register Online for 1DeAS Portal”™ or click
at https:/feservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDirectReg.jsp
Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following
URL: https:/ fwww.evoating.nsdl.com/ either on a personal computer or on 3 mobile. Once the
home page of e-\oting system is launched, click on the icon "Login” which is available under
'Shareholder/Member' section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID
(i.e, your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with MSDL), Password/OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to MSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Vioting page. Click on company
name or e\Voting service provider name i.e. LINKINTIME and you will be redirected to
“InstaV/ote” website for casting your vote during the remote e-Vating period,
Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id
Individual and password. The option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further
Shareholders | authentication. The users to login Easi / Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website
holding www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then use your
sacures i existing my easi username & password.
d@fmat e After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible
with CDSL companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by the company.
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On clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting
service provider i.e. LINKINTIME for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or
joining virtual meetng & voting during the meeting, Additionally, there are also links provided
to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting
service providers’ website directly.

If the user is not registerad for Easi/Easiest, the cption to register is available at CD5L website
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration
option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access the e-Voting page by providing Demat Account
Mumber and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on wyww.cdslindia.com horme page. The
system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Emall as recorded In
the Demat Account. After successful authentication, the user will be able to see the e-Vaoting
option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the systemn of all e-
Voting Service Providers.

Individual
Shareholders

You can alse login using the login credentials of your dernat account through your Depasitory
Participant registered with MNSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. After Successful login, you will be

(holding able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to

carriES i MSDL/COSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting

d feature, Click on the company name or e-Voting service provider name i.e. Linkintime and you
emat will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote

mode} & | e.Voting period.

login

through

their

depository

participants

Login Individual Shareholders of the company, holding shares in physical form / Mon-Individual

Sharehalders holding securities in demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register
method for | ¢, e-Voting facility of Link Intime as under:
Individual

shareholders
holding
securities in
physical
form/ Mon-
Individual
Shareholders
holding
securities in
demat mode
is given
below:

1. Openthe internet browser and lzunch the URL: hitps://instavote linkintime.co.in

2. Click on "Sign Up" under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with your following
detalls: -

A, User ID:

Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall provide Event No + Folio Number
registered with the Company. Shareholders holding shares in MSDL demnat account
shall provide & Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID; Shareholders holding
shares in CD5L demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary [D.

B. PAN: Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) (Shareholders who
have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use
the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DO} [As recorded
with your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)

0. Bank Account Number: Enter your Bank Account Mumber (last four digits), as
recorded with your DP/Carmpany.

*Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded 'C" and ‘D', shall
provide their Folio number in ‘D' above

*Shargholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ abave

- Set the password of your choice (The password should contain minimum 8
characters, at least one special Character (@ |45&%), at least one numeral, at least
one alphabet and at least one capital |=tter).

- Click "confirm® (Your password is now generated).
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3. Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER' tab.

4, Enter your User ID, Password and Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code and click on
‘Submit’.

Cast your vote electronically:

1. After successful login, you will be able to see the notification for e-voting. Select
Wiew' icon.

2. E-voting page will appear.

3, Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired option
‘Favour [ Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click on the “View
Resolution” file link).

After selecting the desired option Le. Favour / Against, click on Submit’. A
confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on 'Yes’,

4. else to change your vote, click on ‘No® and accordingly modify your vote,

Guidelines for Institutional shareholders:

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI ctc) and Custodians are
required to log on the e-voting system of LIPL at https://instavote.linkintime.co.in and
register themselves as ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Body'. They are also required to
upload a scanned certified true copy of the board resolution fauthority letter/power of
attorney  etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorised
representative(s) in PDF format in the ‘Custodian / Mutual Fund / Corporate Boedy' login for
the Scrutinizer to verify the same.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in physical mode/ Institutional
shareholders:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact Link Intime INSTAVOTE helpdesk
by sending a request at enotices@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022 — 4918 6000.
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective
helpdesk for any technical issues related to login through Depositery i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details — — [
Individual Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
Shareholders holding helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at
securities in demat 022 - 4386 7000 and 022 - 249% 7000

mode with NSDL

Individual Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CD5L
Shareholders holding helpdesk by sending a request at

securities in demat helpdesk. cvoting@cdslindia, com or contact at toll free no. 1800
mode with CDSL 225533

Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the password:

If an Individual Shareholders holding securities in Physical mode has forgotten the USER ID
[Login ID] or Password or both then the shareholder can use the “Forgot Password” option
availablz on the e-Voting website of Link Intime: https://instavote linkintime.co.in

- Click on ‘Login’ under ‘SHARE HOLDER' tak and further Click ‘forgot password ?
+ Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA). Click on
“SUBMITY.

In case shareholders is having valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her registered
e-mail address. Shareholders can set the password of hisfher choice by providing the
information about the particulars of the Szcurity Question and Answer, PAN, DOB/DOI, Bank
Account Mumber (last four digits) etc. as mentioned above. The password should contain
minimum & characters, at least one special character (@ WS&*), at least one numeral, at least
one alphabet and at least one capital letter.

Uszer ID for Shareholders holding shares in Physical Formn (i.e. Share Certificate): Your User 1D is
Event No + Folio Number registered with the Company
Individual Sharehaolders holding securities in demat made with NSDL/ CD5L has forgotten the
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passwaord:

Sharehelders who are unable to retrieve User IR/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID
and Farget Password option available at abovernentioned depository/ depository participants
website,

P It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and
take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

¥ For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used
only for voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice,

¥ During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till
they have voted on the resclution(s) for a particular “Event”.

Process and manner for attending the Annual General Meeting through Instafeet:

Members will be able to attend the AGM through VT / OAVM through Instameet service provided by Linkintime
India Private Limited, also, shareholders, can speak or can vote during the Annual General Meeting through
Instameet, if they have not casted their votes through the remote e-voting.

1. Open the internet browser and lzunch the URL: hitps://instameet.linkintime.co.in

# Select the "Company” and ‘Event Date’ and register with your following details: -

A, Demat Account Mo, or Folio No: Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. or Folio No

» Shareholders/ members holding shares in CD5L demat account shall provide 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

= Shareholders/ members holding shares in NSDL demat account shall provide 8 Character DP ID
followed by 8 Digit Client ID

* Shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form shall provide Folio Number registerad with
the Company

B. PAM: Entar your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN) {Members who have not updated their
PAN with the Depository Participant (DP)/

Company shall use the sequence number provided to vou, if applicable.

C. Mobile No.: Enter your mobile number.
D. Email |1D: Enter your email id, as recorded with your DP/Company.

% Click “Go to Meeting” [You are now registered for InstaMeet and your attendance is marked for the
meeting).

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Speak during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

1. Sharchelders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their request 3 days in advance with
the company on the specific emall id created for the general meeting,

Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the provision made by the client.
Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for the meeting.

Other shareholder may ask questions to the panellist, via active chat-board during the meeting.

Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation with panellist by switching on video
mode and audio of your device.

LR

Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management will announce the name
and serial number for speaking.

Instructions for Shareholders/ Members to Vote during the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet:

Once the electronic voting is activated by the scrutinizer/ moderator during the meeting, shareholders/ members
wheo have not exercised their vate through the remote e-voting can cast the vole as under:

1. On the Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting “Cast your vote®

2. Enter your 16 digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP {received on the registered mobile number/
registered email Id) received during registration Tor InstaMEET and click on 'Submit’.

3. After successful login, you will see "Resolution Description” and against the same the option "Favour/ Against”
for voting.

11



Frick India Limited

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option ie. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter the number of shares
{which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under ‘Favour/Against',

5. After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have decided to vote, click on
“Cave"”, A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change
your vate, elick on “Back” and accordingly modify your vote,

6. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or change your vote
subsequently,

MNote: Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through InstaMeet facility and
have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voling and are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted through
Remote e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the Annual General
Meeting through InstaMeet. However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meecting.

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through broadband
for better experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS download stream) to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tabklets or through Laptops connecting
via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their netwerk. It is therefore
recommended to use stable Wi-Fl or LAN connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

In case shareholders/ members have any querles regarding login/ e-voting, they may send an emall to
instameet@linkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-49186175.

Mote:;

(a) Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the Annual General Meeting through Insta-Meet facility and have
not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-\Voting facility during the meeting. Shareholders/ Members who have voted
through Remate e-Voting prior to the Annual General Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the
Annual General Meeting through Insta-Meet. However, they will not be eligible to vete again during the
meeting.

(b

Sharehalders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops connected through
broadband for better experience,

(¢} Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MEPS download stream) to
avaid any disturbance during the mesting.

(d) Please note that Shareholders/Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptops
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to fluctuation in their network. [t is
therefore recommendead to use stable Wi-Fl or LAM connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

In_case shareholders/members have any queries regarding loginfe-voting, they may send an email to
instameet@|inkintime.co.in or contact on: - Tel: 022-40186175.

GEMNERAL INSTRUCTIONS:

i. The remote e-voting period begins frorn 10:00 A.M. on September 22, 2023 (Friday) and ends at 05:00 P.M. on
September 24, 2023 (Sunday), during this period, the members of the Company, holding shares either in physical
form or in demat form, as on the cut-off date i.e. September 18", 2023 may cast their vote electronically. Once
the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subseguently.

ii. The Members who have cast their vote by remaote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend/ participate in the
AGM through YC / OAVYM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

iii. The voting rights of Members shall be in proportion to their shares in the pald-up eguity share capital of the
Cormpany as on the cut-off date,
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iv. The Company has appointed Ms, Adid Gupta from M/s Adit Agarwal & Associates, Practcing Company
Secretary (FCS No. 9410, CP No. 10512), located at 2™ Floor, Manish Chambers, L5C, Mayur Vihar, Phase-ll,
Mew Delhi - 110091 as the Scrutinizer for the voting process (both for remote e-voting process, voting by
electronic mode at the AGM through VC / OAVM, at the 60" Annual General Meeting) in a fair and
transparent manner,

The Scrutinizer shall, within a period not exceeding 3 (three) working days from the conclusion of the 0™
Annual General Meeting, make a Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, and also the
yalid and invalid votes, forward to the Chairman of the Company or the person autharized by him in writing,
who shall counter sign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

¥. Subject to the receipt of sufficient votes, the resolution shall be deemed to be passed at the 60th Annual
General Meeting of the Company scheduled to be held on Monday, 25" September, 2023 at 11:.00 AM.,
through Video Conferencing/Audio Visual Maode, At the said 60th Annual General Meeting, the Chairman shall
declare the results of remote e-voting on the resolutions sat out in the Motice. The results declared along with
the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's website www.frickweb.com and on the website of
Linkintirme - www.linkintime.co.in, immediately after the declarations of results by the chairman or a persoen
authorized by him in writing.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ("the Act')

Item No. 4

The Board has approved the remuneration of M/s Jatin Sharma & Co., Cost Accountants [Firm Reglstration
Mol101845), as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2023-
2024 at a remuneration of INR 120,000/~ [Indian Rup=es One Lakh Twenty Thousand Only] exclusive of any taxes
and statutory levies as applicable plus reimbursement of out of pocket expenses as may be incurred during the
course of Cost Audit for the Financial Year 2023-24, and also the Cost for conversion of requisite documents / Cost
Audit Report and related annexures in Extensible Business Reporting Language (XBRL) shall also be paid and
reimbursed by the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, tha remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the Members of the Company.

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set out at Item MNo. 4 of the
Motice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2023-2024.

Mone of the Promoters / Directars [ Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives, are in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at ltem No. 4 of the Notice.

The Board commends the Ordinary Resolution set cut at Itern No. 4 of the Notice for approval by the Members.

Date: May 24, 2023 By Order of the Board of Directors
Place: New Delhi Frick India Limited

(Jfasmohan Singh)

Managing Director

DIN: 00383412

Address: 5, Friends Colony (West),

New Delhi-110065
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

DETAILS OF DIRECTOR

SEEKING RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING PURSUANT TO

REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS & DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT(S) REGULATIONS, 2015

Name of the Director

Director's Identification Number [DIN)

Date of birth

Date of appointment

Qualification

Experience & Expertise in specific

Terms & Conditions of reappointment
Remuneration last drawn

Shareholding in the Company as on 31.03.2023

Relationship with other Directors

Mo. of Meetings of Board attended during
the year 2022-2023

List of companies® in which outside directorship
held Chairman/Member of the Committee* of Board
of Directors of Indian public companies:

Major Directorship

Committee Position

Date: May 24, 2023

Place: New Delhi

Ms. Gurleen Kaur
05270533
December 31, 1965
December 29, 2012
M.B.B.S. (Doctor)

Medicine

Mot-applicable

3,300 Fully paid Equity Shares of INR 10/- each

Sister of Mr. Jasmohan Singh, Managing Director and
Ms. Jasleen Kaur Queenie Singh, Non-Executive Director
of the Company and KMPs of the Company. Not related to
any other key-Managerial Personnel of the Company.

Five (05)

Mot-applicable

Nil

il

By Order of the Board of Directors

Frick India Limited

Regd. Office: 21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road

Faridabad - 121003 (Haryana)

Ph. 0129-2275691-94, 2270546-47; Fax. 0129-2275695
Email - es@frickmail.com

{Jasmohan Singh)

Managing Director

DIN: 00383412

Address: 5, Friends Colony (west)
Mew Delhi- 110065
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
TO THE MEMEBERS,
FRICK INDIA LIMITED

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting to you the 60™ Annual Report and the Audited Financial Statements for
the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023.

FINAMCIAL RESULTS

Your Company’'s perfarmance during the year as compared with the previous year is summarized below:

Rs. in Lakhs
Particular For the year ended 31% | For the year ended 31%
March, 2023 (Audited) March, 2022 (Audited)

Total Revenue 36927.00 28771.80
EBITDA 4270.34 2603.13
Financial Expenses 158.51 196.31
Depreciation / Amortization /Impairment Loss 215.37 217.11
Profit Before Tax (PET) 3B56.46 2189.71
Provision for Tax 1004.25 553.37
Profit after Tax(PAT) 2852.21 1636.34
Balance of Profit Brought Forward - =
Balance Available for Appropriation 2852.21 1636.34
Appropriation - -
Dividend Paid 18.00 18.00
Corporate Dividend Tax - -
Transfer to Other Equity 2834.21 1618.34
Balance Carried to Balance Sheet - -
Basic Earnings per Share 475.40 27273
Diluted Earnings per Share 475.40 272.73

BUSIMESS PERFORMANCE
During the Financial Year 2022-2023, your Company has earnad Total Income of Rs. 36927.00 Lakhs, as compared
to that of previous year 2021-22, being at Rs. 28771.80 Lakhs.

*The pre-tax profits for the Current Accounting Year 2022-2023 are recorded at Rs, 3856.46 Lakhs as compared to
that of previous year 2021-22, being at Rs. 2189.71 Lakhs.

The Company's management is continually concentrating on consolidation of various lines of business of the
Company, to cut extra costs and boost turnover. Your Directors’ are hopeful of increasing trend of growth in the
refrigeration sector due to rising global food prices.

CAPACITY EXPANSION / MODERNISATION OF FACILITIES

Frick India Limited has been under the process for capacity expansion as well as for modernization of facilities,
therefore, over the period of time has acquired various advanced technological equipments. The most recent one
acquisition made by the Company is Roller Conveyor Shot blasting Maching Model RC 2500 complete with Mn
Steel lining and NEYW 9'-00" GMT Make Extra Heavy Duty Lathe Machine Centr Height 30", Width of Bed 30", Width
of Bed 20", Spindle Bore.

QUALITY INITIATIVES

Frick India Limited have been undertaking various initiatives on the Quality matters, in all aspects, viz. from the
stage of procurement of raw-materials / inputs for the production process up to the stage of final installation at
the Project Site of the Client and beyond commissioning as well, under the Annual Maintenance Contracts. Hence
no changes have been made in the financial year 2022-23.
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DIVIDEND

The Board has, subject to approval of the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, recommended a
dividend @ 40% p.a. i.e. Rs. 4 Per Share for the year ended 31st March, 2023 on the 5,899,275 Equity Shares of face
value of Rs. 10/- each.

During the year, unclaimed dividend of Rs. 60,896/-pertaining to the year ended 31st March, 2015, was transferred
to the Investor Education & Protection Fund after giving due notice to the members.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND UNCLAIMED SHARES
The details relating to unclaimed Dividend and unclaimed Shares forms parts of the Corporate Governance Report.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Board is pleased to report that with the view to reinforcing the financial strength of the Company, the Company
had transferred an amount of RBs. 2834.21/- Lakhs belng 99.37% of the profit after tax of the year under review,
to the Genaral Reserve of the Company.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, there has been no change in the authorized, subscribed and paid-up share capital of the Company.
The Authorized Share Capital of your Company is Rupees 3,00,00,000/- [comprising of 30 lacs Equity Shares of Rs,
10/- each and Paid up share capital of Rs. 59,99,750/- (comprising of 5,99,975 Eguity Shares of Rs. 10/- each.}

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONMEL

Ms. Gurleen Kaur will retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM) and being eligible, has offered herself
for re-appointment. The Board recommends her re-appointment. Brief resume of Ms. Gurleen Kaur with other
details as stipulated under Secretarial Standard —2 and Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguiremeants) Regulations, 2015 are provided in the Notice convening the 60th AGRM.

The details of Directors and KMP for the financial year 2022-2023 as under:

Director’s Identification No. Name of the Director(s) Designation

00383412 Mr. lasmohan Singh Managing Director

05269698 Ms. Jasleen Kaur Queenie Singh N Exsciitive Dirsctor

05270533 Ms. Gurleen Kaur Non- Executive Director

00038529 Mr. Rarmesh Chandra Jain Independent Director

00493992 Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao Independent Director

05357922 Mr. Divaker Jagga Independent Director

Identification No. Name of KMP's Designation

00383412 Mr. Jasmohan Singh Managing Director

FAN : ADCPB1782B CA Sharad Bhatnagar Director (Finance & Taxation) &
Chief Financial Officer

PAN : AMFPT1051M C5 Amit Singh Company Secretary & Manager
Legal

ANMNUAL RETURN

In terms of Sections 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act, annual return is available under the ‘Investors’ section of the
Company's website, www.frickweb.corn and can be viewed at the following link: hitp://frickweb.com/annual-
report.aspx

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their
knowledge and ability, confirm:
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(i} in the preparation of the Annual Accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards have been followed along
with proper explanation relating to material departures in the Auditor Report and Notes to Accounts;

(it} that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and of the profit or loss of the company for
that pericd;

{iii} that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adegquate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and

for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv] that the Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 on a
“zoing concern” basis;

(v} the directors, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(vi] the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DECLARATION

The Company has recelved the necassary declaration from each Independent Director in accordance with Saction
149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013, and Regulations 25(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and related amendments thereof that they meets the criteria of independence as
laid out In Secton 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16{1){h) of the Listing Regulations.

In the Cpinion of the Board, Independent Directars fulfill the conditions specified in the Act, Rules made there
under and Listing Regulations and are independent of the management.

FAMILIARISATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Al Independent Directors ("1Ds') inducted on the Board go through an orientation programme an March 14, 2023 a
copy of the same has been posted on the website of the Company www.frickweb.com, Presentations are made by
Executive Directors and Senior Management giving an overview of our operations to familiarize the IDs with the
Company’'s business operations. The |1Ds are given an orientation on the Company’s products, group structure,
Board constitution and procedures, matters reserved for the Board, and the major risks including risk management
strategy.,

In terms of the Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
the Company has adopted a familiarization programme for the Independent Directors to familiarize them with
working of the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company,
their roles, rights, responsibilities and other relevant details.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

Pursuant to applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI {Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Board, in consultation with its Nomination & Remuneration Committee, has
formulated a framework containing, inter-alia, the criteria for performance evaluation of the entire Board of the
Company, its Committees and individual Directors, including Independent Directors.

A structured guestonnaire, covering various aspects of the functioning of the board and its Committee, such as,
adequacy of the constitution and composition of the Board and its Committees, mattars addrassad in the Board
and Committee meetings, processes followed at the meeting, Board's focus, regulatory compliances and Corporate
Governance, =tc., is in place. Similarly, for evaluation of individual Directer's performance, the questionnaire
covering warious aspects like his/her profile, contribution in Board and Committee meetings, execution and
performance of specific dutizs, obligations, regulatory compliances and governance, etc., is also in place.
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Board members had submitted their response for evaluating the entire Board, respective committees of which
they are members and of their peer Board members, including Chairman of the Board.

The Independent Directors had met separately on March 14, 2023 without the presence of Mon-Independent
Directors and the members of management and discussed, inter-alia, the performance of Non-Independent
Directors and Board as a whole and the performance of the Executive Director of the Company after taking into
consideration the views of Executive and Mon-Executive Directors.

The performance evaluation of all the Independent Directors have been done by the entire Board, excluding the
Director being evaluated. On the basis of performance evaluation done by the Board, it shall be determined
whether to extend or continue their term of appointment, whenever the respective term expires,

The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.
Remuneration for Independent Directors and Non-Independent Mon-Executive Directors

The Mon-Executive Directors, including Independent Directors, are paid sitting fees for attending the meetings of
the Board and committees of the Board. The overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be
reasonable and sufficient to atiract, retain and motivate Directors aligned to the requirements of the Company
including considering the challenges faced by the Company and its future growth imperatives. The remuneration
should also be reflective of the size of the Company, complexity of the business and the Company’s capacity to pay
the remuneration.

The Company pays a sitting fee of Rs. 55,000/- per meeting per Director for attending meetings of the Board,
Audit, Momination and Remuneration, Stakeholder Relationship and Executive Committees w.e.f. April 01, 2021,

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD
During the Financlal Year 2022-23, Five {05) Board Meetings were held:-

5r. No. Date of Meeting

1 May 17, 2022
August 12, 2022
Movember 14, 2022
December 26, 2022
February 13, 2023

B W | kD

The gap between any two meetings was not more than one hundred twenty days except the relaxations provided
by Ministry of Corporate affairs and SEBI through various circulars issued from time to time as mandated under the
provisions of Section 173 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

NOMINATION & REMUNERATION POLICY

Fursuant to provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Momination and Remuneration Committee {NRC) of your
Board has formulated a Remuneration Policy for the appointment and determination of remuneration of the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees of your Company. The NRC has
also developed the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors
and for making payments to Executive and Mon-Executive Directors of the Company. The NRC takes into
consideration the remuneration practices in the industry while fixing appropriate remuneration packages.

Further, the compensation package of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, senior management and other
employees is designed based on the set of principles enumerated in the sald policy. Further directors affirm that
the remuneration paid to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, senior management and other employees is as
per the Remuneration Policy of your Company.

REMUMNERATION OF MR. JASMOHAN SINGH, MANAGING DIRECTOR

In pursuance of the terms of the MNomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company and on the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Cormittee, the Board of Directors, the Members approved
the revision in terms and condition of remuneration of Mr. Jasmaohan Singh, Managing Director in the 58th Annual
General Meeting held on September 18, 2021 for a period of 3 (three) years effective from April 01, 2021.
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The Remuneration details of the Directors, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary, along with details of
ratic of remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of employees of the Company for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2023 under review are provided, which is attached as Annexure-"G".

FIXED DEPOSITS
During the year under review, the Company has not accepted any deposit(s) under Sections 72 of the Companies

Act 2013, read with the Rules made there under and no amount of principal or interest was outstanding as of the
date of the Balance Sheet. Further, there are no small depositors in the Company.

SUBSIDIARIES f JOINT VENTURES / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year under review, no Company has become or ceased to be subsidiary, joint venture or associate of
the Company.

AUDITORS

STATUTORY AUDITORS AMD THEIR REFORT
M/s Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants, [Firm Registration Mo. 301051E], were appointed as Statutory

Auditors of the Company for the peried of 5 (five) Years at the 59" Annual General Meeting of the Company to
hold office up to the conclusion of 64™ Annual General Meeting of the Company.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SECTION 143(12)

During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the auditors to the Audit Committee or the Board
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013,

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

The Board had appointed Ms. Aditi Gupta, Company Secretary in Whole-time Practice of M/s Adit Agarwal &
Associates, Company Secretaries, New Delhi [COP No. 10512] to conduct Secretarial Audit pursuant to the
provisions of Section 204 of the Act for the Financial Year 2022-2023. Secretarial Auditors of the Company has
been re-appeointed at the Board Meeting of the Company held on May 17, 2022, The Company has received a
certificate from the Secretarial Auditors to the effect that their re-appointment, if made, would be in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

There were following observations of Secretarizl Auditors in their Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3, being
attached with the Directors’ Report and the respective explanation to the same by the Board of Directors of the
Company, is reproduced herzsin below:

L Pursuant to the provision of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority [Accounting, Audit, Tronsfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, a Company whaose dividend
remains unpaid/unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive years shall be required to transfer such shares to
the special purpose DEMAT Account, accordingly, the Company was required to fransjer such shares into
DEVAT Account of 'EPF. We have been informed that durihg the Flnancla Year 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20,
2020-21 gnd 2021-22, the Compony has been receiving several request(s} from certo/n shareholders clo/ming
their unoaid dividend for post years and therefore due to change in shareholders details as available in the
records of the Company, the Company s toking time in identifying the authenticity of the registered
shareholders, who hove not encashed the dividend warrants for o continuous period of last seven years and
hence, Form [EPF-4 for filing of statement of shares transfer to IEPF could not be filed till date. The
management af the Company s taking eppropriote measures to comply with the above mentioned provision
af the Act.

INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF)

Pursuant to the provision of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer And Refund) Rules, 2016, a Company whose dividend
remains unpaid/unclaimed for a peried of seven consecutive years shall be required to transfer such shares to the
special purpose DEMAT Account, accordingly, the Company was required to transfer such shares into Demat
Account of IEPF, Since Financial Year 2017-18, 2018-1%8, 2019-20, 2020-21 and 2021-22 the Company had
repeatedly received request from certain shareholders claiming their unpaid dividend for past years and therefore
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was In process of identifying the shareholders who have not en cashed the dividend warrants for a continuous
period of last seven years. The Company has got published the newspaper advertisement on 12.06.2022 in
Financial Express (English Editon) and Hari Bhoomi (Hindi Edition)in relation to the Transfer of shares of the
Company to Demat account of IEPF Authority, in respect of which dividends have not been paid or claimed for
seven consecutive Yyears or more.

Further, the Board confirmed in its meeting dated May 17, 2022 that the list of shares, on which dividend was
unpaid or unclaimed for seven consecutive Financial Years, preceding the Financial Year 2021-22 was uploaded on
the website of the Company so that the investors can claim their unclaimed dividend after following the procedure
as laid down in Form |[EPF - 5.

LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENT

The particulars of loan, guarantees and investrment under section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 provided under the
Note No. 4 & 5, to the notes of accounts.

COST AUDITORS AND THEIR REPORT

The Cost Records of the Company are maintained in accordance with the provisions of section 148(1) of the Act as
specified by the Central Government. The Cost Audit Report, for the year ended 31st March, 2022, was filed with
the Central Government within the prescribed time.

In accordance with the provisions of section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, since the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor for FY 2023-2024 i required to be ratified by the
mermbers, the Board recommends the same for approval by members at the 60th AGM.

Pursuant to Secton 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Central
Government has prescribed audit of cost records for certain products. Accordingly, the Company needs to carryout
cost audit of its products. M/s latin Sharma & Company., Cost Accountants, [Firm Registration Mo.101845] were
appointaed by the Board of Directors to carry out the cost audit during the Financial Year 2022-2023.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION AND POLICY

In terms of Section 188{1) of the Act, all related party transactions entered into by the Company during Financial
Year 2022-2023 were carried out with prior approval of the Audit Committee. Omnibus approval is obtained for
the transactions which are foreseen and repetitive in nature. Me approval of the Board was required as all
transactions were on an arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of business. Thers are no material significant
related party transactions made by the Company during the year that would have required shareholder approval
under Regulation 23(4) of the Listing Regulations. A statement of all related party transactions is presented before
the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis, specifying the nature, value and terms and conditions of the transaction.
The particulars of contracts or arrangemeants with related parties in the Form ADC-2 attached as Annexure —A.

There were no material significant related party transactions made by the Company with the promoters, directors,

key managerial personnel or other related parties, which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the
Company at large.

The policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed on the Company's website, www. frickweb.com.
The details of the transactions with related parties during Financial Year 2022-2023 are provided in the
accompanying financial statements.

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

Research and Development has always been and continues to be a priority area for the Company. The focus of the
research and technology activities undertaken from time to time has been on to provide inputs to develop new
products, devising energy saving measures, catalyst development to support existing business and up gradation of
production processes and guality. In this era of high competition in the Indian environment, these inputs prove as
2 major boost to the Company for its survival and growth. In addition, it serves as one of the means by which
business can experience future growth by developing new products or processes to improve and expand their
operations.
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INFORMATION ON CONSERVATIONM OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGMN EXCHANGE

Disclosure of information regarding Conservation of Energy, Research & Development, Technology Absorption and
Forzign Exchange Earning and Outgo etc. under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of Directors’ Report for the Financial Year ended on 31st
March 2023,

A.

U

COMSERVATION OF ENERGY
(a) Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy:

» [nstalled new synchronized efficient Gen-52ts of smaller capacity at requisite points in order to optimize
all sperations. These help the controlled user of the big gen-sets.

Switch OFF Power Transformer at no load Condition

Switching Off Machine at Tea and Lunch Time

Use of Energy Efficient LED light, installed / replaced at all points.

All Electric machinery usage is checked and controlled periodically.

Improving jigs and fixtures and tooling's for reducing machining time.

Existing plant have been made more efficient by using various energy saving devices.

High Efficiency Cooling Coils, shall be manufactured and put to use at appropriate locations, to assist in
eNergy consenvation.

(b) Stepstaken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy:

The measures listed above are part of the continuing efforts of the Company to conserve energy.
In addition, the Company has an ongoing programme Tor bringing/generating awareness among
employees of the need to conserve electricity, oils, lubricant and likewise. The Company orderad
the Gas generator to replace with Diesel Generator. Ongoing Energy audit in the factory and
customer sites is done in order to utilize alternate sources of energy. Revamping of Solar Energy
cells for better efficiency. Planning to do away with Diesel Electricity Generator with Gas
Electricity Generator to lower Carbon Emission,

(c) Capital Investment on energy conservation equipment

Approx. capital investrnents on energy conservation eguipment in FY 2022-23: NIL.
Total Energy Consumption and Energy Consumption per unit of production as per prescribed Form -A: Not
given as the Company is not covered under the list of specified Industries.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

Efforts made towards technology absorption:

More Scientific Research carried out for designing and developing high efficiency refrigeration and air
condiioning comprassor.

Further research carried out for improving metallurgy as per international standards to minimize casting
defacts,

Further designing and manufacturing of import substitute products as well as energy efficient indigenous
products.

Emphasis laid on further development of testing systems, procedures and facilities for improving product
guality, safety and performance & its actual user for testing equipment’s.

Mere improvement of existing products both in terms of improving design and components to achisve
greater efficiency at a lower cost.

The Company uses software from M/s Heat Transfer Research, Inc, USA ("HTRI') to upgrade its design &
development of various heat-exchanges for different refrigerants.

To design custom built for India (rural & urban) for the retail and post-harvest cold chain system.

Ventilation for modified and controlled atmosphere cold room.

1
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(i} Benefits derived, like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution

The henefits include improvement in design, increase in efficiency, decrease in capital and running costs,
lesser power consumption and lower maintenance/ down- time costs.
Expenditure on Research and Development (Rs. in Lakhs)

{a) Capital

(b} Recurring
* Rayvenue : 330.29
» Amortization of Intangible Assets

* Depreciation

Tatal i 330.29

Total R & D Expenditure as % of total turnover

C. Foreign exchange earnings and Outgo-
The Foreign Exchange earnings of the Company amount to Rs. 1639.18 (in Lakhs) from export sales
whereas the outgo has been Rs. 5031.26 (in lakhs) on account of purchase of raw-materials and capital
goods, commission, forelgn travel, royalty. During the financial year 2022-23, Rs. 3.60 (in Lakhs) was paid
as dividend to a non-resident shareholder. The Company has developed the new category of compressors
for the export market.

ANNUAL SECRETARIAL COMPLIANCE REPORT:

SEBI vide its circular CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated Bth February, 2019, has made it compulsory for all listed
entities to ensure an additional check by the Practicing Company Secretary (PCS), on compliance of all applicable
SEBI Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued there under, consequent to which, the PCS shall submit a report
Annual Secretarial Compliance Report to the listed entity. Pursuant to the aforementioned SEBI Circular the Annual
Secretarial Compliance Report as submitted by M/s AdiH Agarwal & Associates, Company Secretaries was filed with
the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India where the eguity shares of the Company are listed,

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

As per the SEBI (LODR) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), the Reconciliation of Share Capital
Audit is undertaken by M/s Aditi Agarwal & Associates, Company Secretaries on Quarterly basis. The audit is aimed
at reconciliation of total shares held in CDSL, NSDL and In physical form with the admitted, issued and listed capital
of the Company. The Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit Reports as submitted by the Auditor on quarterly basis
were filed with the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI), where the equity shares of the Company
are listed.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace for every individual working
and associating with the company, through various interventions and practices. The Company always endeavors to
create and provide an environment that is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.
In view of the same, yvour Company has in place a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at workplace, This
policy is in line with the requirements of The Sexual Harassment of Women at the Woerkplace (Prevention,
Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees, whether permanent, contractual, terporary and trainees are
covered under this Policy.

As per the said Policy your Directors have constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to redress the complaints
received regarding sexual harassment, which currently comprises of the following persons:

1. Mrs. Krishna Chhabra, Presiding Officer
2. Ms. Aditi Gupta, Independent Member
3. Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Katoch , Member
4, Mr. Amit Singh Tomar , Member

During the relevant Financial Year, an Internal Complaints Committes Meeting has been held on 20t Day of May
2022 and 3™ day of January 2023 and attended by the following persons:
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Mrs. iKrishna Chhabra, Presiding Officer
Mz, Adit Gupta, Independent Member
Mr. Kuldeep Kumar Katoch, Member
Mr. Amit Singh Tomar, Member
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There were no complaints received till date and all compliances related to Prevention of Sexual Harrassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 were duly adherad in time by the Company.
Therefore, the meeting was concluded,

Also, the Annual Report for the year December 31, 2022 under Section 21 of Sexual Harassment of Women at
Warkplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 was duly submitted [ filed by the Company.

There were no complaints reported under the Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
iPrevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 so the guestion of number of complaint disposed of during the
Financial Year or the number of complaints pending as on end of the financial yvear does not arise,

DISCLOSURE UNDER THE HUMAN IMMUNODEFICIENCY VIRUS AND ACOUIRED IMMUNE DEFICIENCY SYNDROME
(PREVENTION AND CONTROL) ACT, 2017.

The Human Immunodeficiency Virus and Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome (Prevention and Contral) Act,
2017 has been notified by the Central Government on September 10, 2018, During the period under review (i.e.
from April 01, 2022 tll March 31, 2023, no complaints were received during the relevant period.

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Company is fully compliant with the applicable Secretarial Standards {55) viz. 55-1 & 55-2 and 55-3 on Meetings
of the Board of Directors, General Meetings and Dividend respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is essential to success and is an integral part of our culture. While we need to accept a
level of risk in achieving our goals, sound risk management helps us to make the most of each business
opportunity, and enables us to be resilient and respond decisively to the changing environment,

Our approach to risk management assists us in identifying risks early and addressing them in ways that manage
uncertainties, minimize potential hazards, and maximize opportunities for the good of all our stakeholders
including shareholders, customers, suppliers, regulators and employees. Risks can be broadly classified as
Strategic, Operational, Financial, and Legal/Regulatory.

Also, in pursuance to the Risk Management approach during the scenario of COVID -19, the Company had adopted
all the appropriate measures, for sanitization, work from home facility, alse, implementation of the Lockdown or
arrangement for work with engaging limited persons for ensuring the safety and health of all the employees,
custorners, suppliers.

Also, for the proper sanitization, and safe working environment, the Company, has taken appropriate reasures, as
per the government guidelines, for the health and safety.

CORPORATE S5OCIAL RESFONSIBILITY {C5R)

The committee on Corporate Social Responsibility was constituted on May 09, 2014 and thereby formulated and
approved the CSR Policy for the Company indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, in pursuant
to Section 135 (1) of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibilities Policy)
Rules, 2014. The C5R policy updated on March 20, 2021 has been hosted at the website of the Company i.e.
www_frickweb_com. This includes the full list of projectsfactivities/programmes proposed to be undertaken by the
company. The CSR Committee has been entrusted with the prime responsibility of recommending to the Board and
monitoring the implementation of the framework of the CSR Policy and recommending the amount to be spent on
CS5R achvities.

The Cornpany is committed to discharge its social responsibility as a good corporate citizen. During the year, the
Company has undertaken the CSR activities and complied with all the provisions of Section 135 in accordance with
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the Companies Act, 2013, The meeting of the CSR committee was held on March 14, 2022 in order to identify,
evaluate and recommend to the Board of Directors of the Company, the amount of expenditure / contribution to
notified funds / organizations with respect to the activities referred to in Clause (B) of sub-section (3) to Section 135
of the Cormpanies Act, 2013 as well as in terms of the provisions contained in by Rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, During the Financial Year 2022-23 the minimum amount of expenditure
required to be done by the Company, on CSR activities is Rs, 44,31,842/- approx. (i.e. atleast 2% of the average net
profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding Financial ¥Years) which has been calculated in
accordance with the Secton 198 of the Companies Act, 2013. In view of above, the Committee in its Meeting held
an March 14, 2023 has discussad with regard to the challenges being facad by the public at large for the Oxygen
during Covid waves which recccur year-by-year, hence, it was duly proposed by the committee members to allocate
the CSR funds towards donation and commissioning of PSA Oxygen Plant amounting upto INR 56 Lacs approx
alongwith promotion of Education amounting to INR 1 Lacs, wherein the total amount of C5R expenditure was
incurred till March 31, 2023 amounting to INR 48,65,372/-. In view of above, the members of the Board considered
and ratified the amount of spending/expenditure/allocation done il 31-03-2023 towards CSR activities pertaining
to Financial Year 2022-23 and directed to carry forward the surplusfexcess expenditure as spent relating to the CSR
activities (i.e, INR 49,69,372 - INR 44,31,842 = INR 5,37,530) towards utilization of C5R expenditure in the next
Financial Year i.e. 2023-2024,

The details of C5R activities including the details of expenditure & CSR Cormmittee are provided in the Annexure-B
VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company already has put in place a policy to prohibit managerial personnel from taking adverse personnel
action, employees disclosing in good faith, alleged wrongful conduct on matters of public concern invelving vielation
of any law, mismanagement, and misappropriation of public funds, among others. Employeas can ralse concerns
regarding any discrimination, harassment, victimization, any other unfair practice being adopted against them or
any instances of fraud by or against your Company. Employees aware of any alleged wrongful conduct are
encouraged to make a disclosure to the Audit Committen, No personnel of the Company were denied access to the
Audit Committee.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS

Mo other material changes except as mentioned in this Report and commitments affecting the Financial position of
the Company have occurred between April 01, 2022 and the date on which this Report has been signed.

LISTING OF SHARES

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited.

Metropaolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited, Series : BE

Vibgyor Towers, 4th floor, Plot No € 62, Symbol : FRICKINDIA

G - Block, Opp. Trident Hotel, Bandra Face Value (INR) : 10.00

Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Industry : INDUSTRIAL EMGINEERING
Murnbai- 400 098, India. ISIN = INE49SC01012

Telephone : +91 22 6112 9000

Fax 1491 22 2654 4000,

https:/ fwww.msel.in/index.aspx

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

Internal Contral Culture is pervasive in the Company. The Company has 2 comprehensive Internal Cantral System
for all the major processes te ensure reliability of Financial Beporting, timely feedback on achievement of
operational and strategic goals, compliance with policies, procedures, laws and regulations, safeguarding of assets
and economical and efficient use of resources. The Internal Control system is basically covers the area of ERP
system for Accounting control, Compliance Audit of units on regular interval of time by the Internal Auditors. The
Internal Audit department also assesses opportunities for improvement in business processes, systems and controls
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, provides recommendations, designed to add value to the organization and follows up on the implementation of
corrective actions and improvements in business processes after review by the Audit Committee,

Comprehensive palicies, guidelines and procedures are laid down for all business processes. The internal control
system has been designed to ensure that financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial and other
statements and for maintaining accountability of assets.

REGULATORY ORDERS

The details of the significant and material orders/directions passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals are
furnished under the Auditors’ Report provided by the Statutory Auditor of the Company.

ENVIRONMENTAL SOCIAL GOVERMANCE (ESG) POLICY/BUSINESS RESPOSIBILTY & SUSTAINABILTY REPORTING
POLICY

Frick India Limited is the largest equipment manufacturing company and turnkey solution provider for all Industrial
Refrigeration Applications

FRICK INDIA LIMITED was incorporated as a public limited company in 1962, Now the company has diversified and
developed into one of the front ranking companies and its equipment is rated amongst the world's best.

It provide Energy efficient & Environment Friendly refrigeration solutions, fully supporting to "Make in India"
program. Now a front-ranking company, Frick India has been adapting to new technologies and is offering the
customer the energy efficient latest systems for all Industrial refrigeration applications. Keeping this in view new
products / eguipment have been brought In and existing one's upgraded as per requirement prevalling In the
Industry. The Company can also provide on line Total Energy Management System (TEMS) for almost all industrial
refrigeration applications.

It has started manufacturing screw compraessors since 2000-01 with testing facility as per 150 917: 1989(E)
standards. The rotors are being supplied by M/s Holroyd of LLK. Frick India also packages Screw Compressors using
blocks from MYCOM Japan. The Company has wide range of High Speed Reciprocating Compressors, Besides
compressors, Frick India has a whole range of Refrigeration equipment including Product coolers, Condensers, Heat
Recovery System, Pressure Vessels (ASME) and electrical & automation systems.

Frick India also installs turnkey projects and uses their 50 years' experience in Industrial Refrigeration Comprassor
manufacturing in good stead to give energy efficient and reliable Refrigeration systems in India and 50 other
countries across the world.

The main products of the Campany are:

Rotary Twin Screw Cormpressor Blocks

High Speed Reciprocating Comipressors

Frigid Colls 'S' Series {Stainless Steel Tubes & Aluminum Fins)

Frigid Coils "Prime" Series (Stainless Steel Tubes & Aluminum Fins)

Frick India Microtech System (Automation System For The Refrigeration Plants)
Rotary Twin Scraw Cornpressor Packages

High Speed Two Stage Compound Reciprocating Compressor

Frigid Coils "A" Series (Alurninum Tubes & Aluminumn Fins)

Liquid Overfecd System

Evaporative Condensers

By being a Listad Public entity, the Company has clearly articulated its intent of being an Admirable, Inspirational
and Sustainable institution. Through its povernance practices, the Company aims to conduct business in an ethical
manner. The core values of Pride, Integrity, Discipline and Ambition are embedded into the Company’s working
culture. These values guide the decision-rmaking process, thus enabling all the employees to take ownership and
responsibility for their individual actions.

Envircnmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) has gained increasing attention over the past few years. ESG processes
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and procedures focus on non-financial performance indicators that address a Company's approach towards
responsible investment, sustainability, its impact on society and the environment, as well as other ethical and
corporate governance considerations.

The Board approved the policy on introduction of a regulatory framework for ESG in the Indian securities market,
and related proposals.

ESG Vision

Te be an envircnmeantally and socially responsible financial institution built on the foundation of ‘Assurance’,
focused on generating sustainable long-term value for all our stakeholders.

ESG Goals

- Profitability with ethical, 2nvironmental and social responsibility.
- Mainstream ESG practices into business, operations and value chain
- Achisve best in class E5G ratings

The ESG Paolicy ("the Policy”) of the Company is attached to this report as Annexure - |. It proposes to act as a
guiding framework to manage the Company’s environmental, social and governance impacts and risks as well as
enable responsible financing oriented towards long-term value creation.

Further the Company has also approved the following policles

= Annual Perforiance Management Policy

*  Grievance Redressal Policy & Guidelines

. Diversity, Equity & Inclusion {DEI} Policy Guidelines

*  Discrimination Free Workplace Policy & Guidelines

= Safe & Harassment Free Workplace Policy & Guidelines

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT

Pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, Management Discussion
& Analysis is annexed as part of this report separately as Annexure—C.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The report on Corporate Governance along with the Certificate regarding the Compliance of conditions of
Corporate Governance as stipulated by SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is
annexed and forms part of this Annual Report as Annexure —D.

The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of Corporate Governance and adhere to the
Corporate Governance reguirements as set out by SEBL The reguisite Certificate from M/fs Adit Agarwal &
Associates, Company Secretarfes [COP 10512, confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate
Governance as stipulated under the aforesaid SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 is annexed and forms part of this Annual Report as Annexure —E.

The Board has also evolved and adopted a Code of Conduct based on the principles of good Corporate Governance
and best management practices that are followed globally. The Code is available on your Company's website,
www. frickweb.com,

CASH FLOW STATEMIENT
The Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 is attached to the Balance Sheet.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The statement of Disclosurs of Remunesration as required under S=ction 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial personnel) 2014 forms an integral part of
this report. However, as per the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Annual Reports are
being sent to the Members of the Company excluding the statement of particulars of employees under Rule 5(2) of
the Rules. Any Member interested in obtaining a copy of such statement may write to the Director (Finance &
Taxation) and C.F.O. of the Company, at the registered office of the Company. In accordance with the
reguirements of Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 5 (2) of Companies (Appointment and
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Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) the details regarding the employees and their remuneration is provided
under Annexure —F.

EMPLOYEES

The Company follows pragmatic methods towards human resource retention and development. The human skill
development part is taken care of through various training programs as organized from time to time. The training
programs are designed in a systematic manner after identifying an individual's training needs. Cutting across the
organizational hierarchy, training sessions are held for promoting team spirit and for addressing training needs.
The motivation part is taken care of through empowerment and ensuring healthy working environment. The
remuneration system of the Company is designed in a manner to promote talent within the Company. The
Company also endeavors to ensure that its different functions are adequately manned. Industrial relations
continued to be cordial, during the year. Total employees on the rolls of the Company, as on March 31, 2023 were
725 compare to 656 last year,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors would like to express their sincere thanks to the Shareholders & Investors of the Company
for the trust reposed on us over the past several years. Your Board of Directors would also like to place on record
their sincere appreciation for the wholehearted support and contributions made by all the employees of the
Company as well as customers, suppliers, bankers and other authorities. The Directors also thank the Government
of various Countries, Government of India, State Governments in India and concerned Government Departments /
Agencies for their co-operation,

For AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Date: May 24, 2023 FRICK INDIA LIMITED

Place: New Delhi {Jasmohan Singh) {Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Managing Director Director
00383412 00038529
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Form No. ADC-2

{Pursuant to clowse (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8{2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length
transactions under third proviso thereto

1, Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:
[NOT APPLICABLE]
(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions

(e}  Duration of the contracts / arrangernents/transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any
le] Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions
(fl  date(s) of approval by the Board

(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to

section 188

{a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

Mr. Jasmohan Singh, Managing Director of Frick India Limited, is the Non-Executive Director as well as

the Member in the under mentioned related parties, respectively.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

sl. Name of the Companies Date of Authorised | Paid up | Nature of | Share- Date on
MNo. | [ Bodies Corporate/ Incorporati | Equity Equity | interest or | holding which

Firms/ Association of on Share Share concern/ interest or

Individuals Capital [Rs. | Capital | change in concern

in Lakhs) {Rs. in | Interest or arose [
Lakhs) | concern changed

Walco Enginesring 31-08-1973 | 40.00 12.00 MNon- 12.50% 01i-10-1986
1 Limited Executive

U742100L1973PLCODEED Director

5
5 Freezeking Industries 14-06-1966 | 15.00 12.37 Mon- 12.50% 01-10-1986

Private Limited Executive

U748990L1966PTCOO461 Director

1

Ess Thermofoam 11-11-1977 | 5.00 1.00 Member 12.48% 01-10-1986
2 Industries Private Limited

U748990L1977PTCOOETS

4

M S Kold Hold Industries | 09-06-1978 | 15.00 1387 Non- 12.50% 01-10-1986
4 2 e .

Private Limited Exocutive

LU7489901978PTCOO905 Director

6

Transfrig India Limited 18-11-1890 | 100.00 5.00 Member 12.50% 19-11-1980
3 LS18090L19380PLC04211

8

Snow Valley Foods 08-02-1995 | 300.00 501 Member 0.04% 14-09-2000
B LtdU15114HP1995PLCOL

5772
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Ms. Jasleen Kaur Queenie Singh, Non-executive Director of Frick India Limited, is Member as well as Director

in the under mentioned related parties, respectively.

sl Name of the Companies / Date of Authorise | Paid up | Nature of Share- Date an
MNo. Bodies Corporate/ Firms/ Incorporat | d Equity Equity interest or | holding which
Association of Individuals ion Share Share concern/ interest or
Capital Capital change in concern
(Rs. in (Rs. in interast or arose f
Lakhs) Lakhs) COnCern changed
1 Walco Engineering Limited 31-08- 40.00 12.00 Member 12.50% 01-10-1986
U742100L1973PLCO0SE0S 1273
2 Freezeking Industries 14-06- 15.00 12.37 Member 12.50% 01-10-1986
Private Limited 1966
U74899D0L1966PTCO04611
2 EssThermofoam Industries 11-11- 5.00 1.00 Member 12.48% 01-10-1986
Private Limited 1977
U74899D1L1977PTCO0E784
4 M S Kold Hold Industries 09-06- 15.00 13.87 Member 12.50% 01-10-1986
Private Limited 1978
U748990L1978PTCO0S056
5 Transfrig India Limited 19-11- 100.00 5.00 Member 12.50% 19-11-1990
US19090L1990PLC0O42118 19290
& Beauty By Bie Private 22-01- 2.02 1.02 Director —- 22-01-2022
Limited 2021
U24299MHZ021PTC353584
7 Indian Refrigeration Indus - | 15-02- 12.75 12.75 Partner 12.50% 28-06-2019
tries (Partnership) 1932

Ms. Gurleen Kaur, Non-executive Director of Frick India Limited, is Member in the under mentioned related parties,

respectively.

sl Name of the Companies / Date of Authorise | Paid up | Nature of | Share- Date on
Mo. | Bodies Corporate/ Firms/ | Incorporat | d Equity Equity interest or | holding which
Association of Individuals ion Share Share concern/ interest or
Capital Capital change in concern
(Rs. in (Rs. in interest or arose /
Lakhs) Lakhs) concern changed
1 Walco Engineering Limited | 31-08- 40.00 12.00 Member 12.50% 01-10-1986
U7421000L1973PLCODGE0OS 1973
2 Freezeking Industries 14-06- 15.00 12.37 Member 12.50% 01-10-1886
Private Limited 1966
U74899D1L1966PTCO04611
3 EssThermofoam Industries 11-11- 5.00 1.00 Member 12.48% 01-10-1986
Private Limited 1977
U74899DL1977PTCO0ETE4
4 M 5 Kald Hold Industries 09-06- 15.00 13.87 Member 12.50% 01-10-1986
Private Limited 1978
U748990L1978PTCO0B056
5 Transfrig India Limited 19-11- 100.00 5.00 Member 12.50% 18-11-1990
U5190301L1990PLCO42118 1930
(5] Indian Refrigeration Indus - | 15-02- 12.75 12.75 Partner 12.50% 28-06-2019
tries (Partnership} 1992
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(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions
Purchase / Sale of manufactured products, at arm’s length price under the authorized purchase orders /
sales orders issued under the sanctioned limits approved by the Board of Directors.

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions
As per the terms and conditions of the purchase orders / sales orders that have been executed, at arm’s
length price, under the approval from the Board.

(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any:
As per the terms and conditions of the purchase orders / sales orders, with respective related parties
restricted to the aggregate value of transactions, as approved by the Board of Directors for each such
related parties, mentioned in the table furnished below.

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any:
Meeting of the Board of Directors held on February 11, 2022.

a. Period of Approval : April 01, 2022 to March 31, 2023
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Sl. No. Mame of the Related Party Limit for the Amount w.r.t. Purchase, sale,

service, guarantee and service received.

1. M/s. Freezeking Industries Private Limited 200

(being a Private entity)

{f) Amount paid as advances, if any:
As per the terms and conditions of the purchase orders / sales orders the outstanding bhalances were
settled.

For AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Date: May 24, 2023 FRICK INDIA LIMITED

Place: New Delhi
{Jasmohan Singh) (Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Managing Director Director
00383412 00038529
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ANNEXURE “B" TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Disclosures on C.5.R. Activities

1. A brief outline on the CSR policy of the Company: At Frick India Limited, business success is not just about
profits and sharehelder returns. We believe in pursuing wider socio-economic and cultural objectives and
have always endeavored to not just live up to it, but to try and exceed the expectations of the communities in
which we operate. The definition and scope of corporate responsibility is quite vast. Terms like corporate
responsibility, corporate social responsibility, sustainable development, corporate philanthropy, corporate
citizenship, corporate consciousness, responsible business ete. are used interchangeably. Now, the investars
and shareholders are no longer the only stakeholders in the business. Business draws on resources both
natural and social from the society and planet and provides products and services to the society. It forms an
integral part of the society and is responsible and accountable to a wide range of stakeholders i.e. customers,
employees, supply chain, nature, environment, regulatory bodies etc. With the emergence of corporations
and conglomerates, the pressure on business on corporate governance, ethics, values and disclosures have
increased. Along with regulatory frameworks a number of voluntary frameworks and guidelines require
businesses to disclose the manner in which the business is being conducted. In India, the Companies Act,
2013 mandates Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) activities to be undertaken by companies meefing the
criteria specified in the Act

Key features of the CSR Policy areas under:

1) The broad guiding principles for selection of C5R activities include needs assessment, if required, programmes
identified/adopted will be adaptive and flexible to meet the changing dynamics with focus on long term
sustained impact rather than one-time impact or requiring continuous intervention.

2} The implementation of the identified CSR activities shall be carried out either directly by the Company andfor
through an implementing agency.

3) A robust monitoring mechanism is in place to ensure that the CSR projects/ programs are undertaken effectively
in accordance with the approval granted and fully in compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations.
Monitoring of CSR activities is achieved through:

a. Periodic assessment of key projects
b. Impact assessment with key indicators in our area of operations [if any)
c. Regular review by CSR Committee

4) The Committee will place for the Board's approval, an annual action plan delineating the CSR Programmes to be
carried out during the financial year and the succeeding years in the case of Ongoing Projects along with the
specified budgets thereof

i. Composition of CSR Committee:

sh DIN Name of Director Designation / Number of Number of
No. Nature of meetings of meetings of
Directorship CS5R CSR Committee

Committee attended
held during during the year

the year
1. 00038529 | Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Chairman 1 1
2. 00383412 | Mr. Jasmohan Singh Member 1 1

3. 05270533 | Ms. Gurleen Kaur Member 1 1

M
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5)

6)

7

Composition of CS5R committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects as approved by the board are disclosed on the
website of the company: www.frickweb.com

Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3} of rule 8 of
the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014: Not Applicable

Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate

Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Not
Applicable

sl. Financial Year Amount available for set-off Amount reguired to be set-off for the
No. from preceding financial years financial year, if any (in Rs)
(in Rs)
1 o a -
TOTAL

Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5):
2019-20: INR 20,00,72,941.24
2020-21: INR 23,78,58,375.11
2021-22: INR 22,68,45,072.00
Total :INR 66,47,756,388.35
Average Net Profit: INR 22,15,92,129.45/-
(a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 44,31,842.589/-
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years: NIL
{c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: NIL

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): Rs. 44,31,842.583/-

8) (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in Rs.)
Spent for the
Financial Year. (in Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Rs.) to Unspent CSR Account as | Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5).
per section 135(6).
Amount. | Date of Name of Amount, Date of transfer.
transfer. the
Fund
44,31,842.589/- MA MIL MA MIL MA
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(b} Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Not Applicable

(1} {2 13 (4} (3] (8] (7 ] (g} {10} (11}
5l Mama Item Local | Location of the | Project Amoun [ Amount Amount Maode Mode of
Mo. | of the from the | area | project. durat- t spent in transferr | of Implemantation -
Project, | list of [¥es I, allocat | the ed to Impla Through Impla-
activ- Mo ed current Unspent | m- menting Agency
ities in fina-ncial | CSR entatio
Sche forthe | yearfin | Account | n-
dule Vi1 _ project | ps). forthe | Direct
to the State Dristr {in Rs.). project [Yes Name 3R
ict. Regist-
Act as par [MNo). a
Section e
135(6) numbar
{in Rs.).
R — —
| E——
I I T

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1 (2] (2 (4) () (&) (7 (8]
5l. Mame of the Hem Local Location of the project. Amount spent Mode Mode of implementation
Mo, v from the for the project of imple ~Through implementing
Project list of ares {in Bs.). mentatio
al:ti_l.rriﬁe.s [Ves/No). n- agency.
|
schedule Dire:t [ve
Vil to the State. District. SN}, Name. | CSR registrati
Act. on number,
L Delhi Sikh Schedul Yes Delhi Central 47,19,372 Yes - -
Gurudwara e Vil i) Delhl
Manageme to {iv)
nt
Committae
|DSGMC)
2. Children Schedul Yes Celhi South East 1,00,000 No Children CSRODDOTY
Reading a VIl {i) Delhi Reading 85
Sociaty to iv) Society
TOTAL 48,19,372

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: INR 1,50,000
(&) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA
(f}) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): INR 49,69,372/-

(g} Excess amount for set off, if any: -
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Sl No. Particular Armount (in Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 44,31,842
135(5)

(i) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 49,689,272

{iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-(i)] 5,337,530

{iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities MIL
of the previous financial years, if any

(v} Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [{ifi}-{iv]] 5,37,530

9} (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: MONE

sl. Preceding Amount Amount | Amount transferred to any fund specified Amount
Mo. | Financial transferred | spentin under Schedule Vil as per section 135(6), if rema-
Year. to Unspent | the any. ining
CSR reporting to be
Account Financial | Name Amount |Date of transfer spent in
under Year (in of the {in Rs) succee-
section Rs.). Fund ding
135 (6) financial
{in Rs.) years.
{in Rs.)
—
; | E——"
1  heeed
e
TOT. |

(b} Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

NONE
(1) {2} (3) (4) (5) (&) (7 (8) {9)
sl. Project | Name Financial Project Total Amount Curmulativ | Status of the
Mo, 10, of the Year in duration. | amount | spent on e amount | project -
Project. | which the allocated | the spent at Completed
project was for the projectin | the end /Ongoing.
commenced, project the of
{in Rs.). reporting | reporting
Financial Financial
Year (in Year. (in
Rs). Rs.)
_.—-—-—'_'_'_'"-_._._-_
I—
TOTAL | e
_._.—-—-—'_'_'_-_._._._
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10) In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired
through CSR spent in the financial year. (asset - wise details)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): NA
(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: NA

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered,
their address etc.: NA

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired [including complete address and location of the
capital asset): NA

Mo capital asset was created / acquired during FY 2022-23 through CSR spend.

11) Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per section
135(5): Not Applicable

Date; May 24, 2023 {Jasmohan Singh) (Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Place: New Delhi Managing Director Director

00283412 00038529
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ANNEXURE “C" TO THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

FRICK INDIA LIMITED was incorporated as a public limited company in 1962 in collaboration with Frick Company
USA, one of the world's aldest and largest manufacturers of industrial refrigeration & air-conditioning equipment.
Frick India is now independent and has diversified and developed into ocne of the top-ranking companies and its
equipment is rated amongst the world's best,

Today, Frick India Limited is the largest equipment manufacturer and turnkey solution provider for Industrial
refrigeration in India.

The Global Refrigeration Compressor market is expected to grow at a CAGR of 4.5% from 2021 to 2026, driven by
the Increasing demand for refrigeration systems in all over the word. The Company also installs turnkey projects
and uses their 62 years of experience in industrial refrigeration compressor manufacturing in good stead to give
enargy efficient and reliable refrigeration systems in India and 50 other countries across the world. Its
manufacturing facilities are located at Faridabad (Haryana), an industrial township in the periphery of the national
capital & are spread over a 22 acre mult-block complex.

The main customer base of the Frick India is dairy industry and food processing industry. Frick India has unmatched
advantage of providing a single source responsibility for turnkey refrigeration and air-condifioning systems
covering design, manufacture, packaging, installation and service to standard specifications as well as custom-built
to meet customers' special reguirements. With collaboration and technologies from UK., Japan, U.5.A. and
Europe, Frick India also provides on line Frick Energy Management System (FEMS) for almost all Industrial
Refrigeration Applications. The Company is presently manufacturing a lot of equipment like various types of
Compressors, and packages Condensers, Air handling units, Heat Exchanger & pressure vessels, Liguid re-
circulation pump, lce-making equipment, Plate & blast freezers, Packages chillers etc. used in Food / Chemical
Industry.

Frick India Limited has besn awarded as 'Excellence in Industrial Refrigeration and Turnkey Solutions," presented
by the Knowledge Chamber of Commerce and Industry of India. (March 18, 2023) and also as "Business Dynamos
of the Year in Refrigeration Industry” during THE INDIA 2022 S5 TRILLION ECONOMY Summit at Hotel Lalit, New
Delhi. This award was presented by Shri Bhanu Pratap Singh Verma, Hon'ble Minister, Ministry of MSME,
Government of India. Further, the Company has also been awarded “Business Sphere Geold Award” for best
Company providing Turnkey Solutions for all Industrial Refrigeration Applications during Business Sphere National
Conclave & 17 Award Function presented by Mr. Sanjeev Kumar Balyan, Ministry of State for Animal Husbandry,
Dairying and Fisheries, Mr. Anil Aggarwal, Member of Parliament, Rajya Sabha and Mr. Manoj Tiwari, Member of
Parliament, Lok Sabha. Apart from this, Mr. Jasmohan Singh, Managing Director of the Company, has been
awarded a5 “Mational Award CEO of the Year 2021" at a function organized by “Social and Corporate Governance
Awards” at Taj Lands End, Mumbai,

Cold chains Impart storage and distribution services for products that have to be maintained at a given
temperature. India is currently the world's largest producer of milk, second largest producer of fruits and
vegetables and has a substantial preduction of marine, meat and poultry products. Most of these products are
temperature sensitive and require specific temperature ranges to be stored and transported. This has resulted in
the establishment of a very large cold chain infrastructure in the country.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS

The Magnetic Refrigeration Market is expected to be commercialized by 2022 at USD 4 million, and it is expected
to grow at a CAGR of 105.4 % from 2022 to 2027 to reach USD 165 million by 2027. The Indian cold chain market
reached a value of n=arly INR 1,678.79 billion in 2022. The industry Is further expected to grow at a CAGR of 14.3%
over the forecast period of 2023-2028 to attzin a value of INR 3,742.98 billion by 2028. India's cold storage
capacity is likely to reach 40.7 million metric tonnes by 2023, rising 8.2% from 2020, as per Colliers’ |atest report,
opportunities in Indian cold chain assets, Also 75% of the cold storage facility are suitable only for storing single
commaodities, mainly potatoes. The surge in online grocery, processed foods and pharmaceuticals sales have
opened up ample opportunities for developers and third-party logistics players to develop multi-purpose cold
chain facilities in India. The Company is focusing in increasing its sales in domestic as well as Export.
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Currently, India has about 7,129 cold storage facilities with about 32 million metric tonnes capacity and about
10,000 actively refrigerated vehicles, most of which are operated by small cold storage and/or transport service
providers. Cold storage industry annually grows by 12-15 per cent in bulk storage capacity. As consumer preference
and habits for food ranging from vegetables, fruits and eatables, cold storage would combine to be grown. We see
expansion of frozen vegetable capacity as major difference prevailed in season and off season price. Frick India
egquipment and application are widely used in food related refrigeration applications. Frick India can produce
custornized refrigeration plants for:

Pre-Cooling (98% RH)

Controlled/ Modified Atmosphere Cold Storages
Cold Stores for Fruits & Vegetables

Ripening Rooms

High Humid Ware Houses

I0F

Frozen Stores

Chilling Units

Distribution Rooms

Frick India Limited vide its products and manufacturing facilities at present has been serving following industries:

I Dairies and Ice cream Industries
. Foodand Agriculture Industries
1. Beverages and Brewery Industries
V. Refrigeration System For Chemical & Pharmaceutical Industries
V. Refrigeration System For Meat Poultry & Sea Food Industry
VI. Air-Conditioning
VIl. Low Temperature Application

Organized retail is expected to be amongst the biggest drivers of the cold chain market in India. With the growth of
the arganized food retall, we expect consumers to get access to a very large variety of fresh fruits and vegetables,
dairy products, meat and poultry products and a number of other temperature sensitive commodities that
require cold chain storage and transportation. Most of the organized retail players haye already acknowledged
that setting up of a streng cold chain infrastructure is a key step in efficiently managing their supply chains.

There has been a marked improvement in the consumer demand for processed foods. The Indian government has
also announced the intent of establishing several mega food parks. This augurs well for the development of the
cold chain industry in the country.

Due to increasing risks and investments in grain crops, farmers are moving towards cultivation of fruits and
vegetables. Most of these crops require refrigeration and hence are expected to encourage the development of
cold storage facilities.

& number of healthcare products such as vaccines, biopharmaceuticals as well as clinical trial materials are heat
sensitive and must be stored at temperatures ranging from 2°C - 8°C. With India's vaccine, biopharmaceutical and
clinical trials market expected to grow at double digit growth rates, we expect a strong demand of efficient cold
chain facilities in the coming years.

The consumption of ready-to-eat products, beverages, and frozen food has increased considerably worldwide in
the recent years, which is further boosting the demand for commercial refrigeration equipment. Rising disposable
income, along with the increasing impact of western lifestyle has fueled the acceptance of such products among
the large middle-class consumers of developing countries. The changad food consumption trend is being supported
by rapid expansion of supermarkets, hypermarkets, and food and restaurant chains around the world,

The increased number of such stores has also forced small grocery retailers and unorganized restaurants to
upgrade their infrastructure, with improved electronic appliances including commercial refrigeration eguipment.
Frick India has been providing refrigeration solution to almeost all the vital industries, related to Food and
Agriculture, Dairy Production, Meat, Fisheries and Livestock, Beverages and Breweries,

India ranks second largest in the world in production of fruits and second in vegetables, accounting roughly 10 and
15 per cent, respectively, of total global production. The estimated annual production of fruits and vegetables in
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the country is about 130 million tonnes accounting to 18 per cent of our agricultural output. India have a strong and
dynamic food processing sector playing a vital role in diversifying the agricultural sector, improving value addition
opportunities and creating surplus food for agro-food products.

Major vegetables grown are Potato, Onion, Tomato, Cauliflower, Cabbage, Bean, etc. The major fruits grown in
India are Mangos, Grapes, Apple, Apricots, Orange, Banana, Papaya, etc, accounts for 40 percent of the national
fruit production and India Is one of the leading exporters of fresh table grapes to the global market. The changing
food habits are discernible. There has been a positive growth in ready serve beverages, fruit juices and pulps,
processed fruits and vegetables products and fruits, pickles and chutneys, etc.

Mearly one third of our horticultural produce, especially fruits and vegetables are wasted, mainly on account of
poor cold storage and other storage facilities. Wastage of fruits and vegetables due to poor post-harvest
management and lack of cold chain facilites have been estimatad to cost up to Rs 500 billien annually. The country
glso experiences wide fluctuations in prices of horticultural produce, particularly potatoes and onions. The cold
storages will help boost exports of agricultural and allied produce, marine produce efc.

Various scheme has also been implemented by NABARD/NCDC/MHE, Mational Horticulture Board towards
canstruction, expansion and modernization of cold storages for horticulture products, to promote setting up of cold
storages in the country for reducing post harvest losses.,

The Government which subsidizes a major portion of the farmers’ costs in an effect to uplift them also loses money
in this wastage. Hence proper cold chain infrastructure is the need of the hour. Frick India proposes appropriate
technologies for Indian Cold Chain where high-value fruits and vegetables can be kept for longer periods thereby
adding some value for the farmers. Fresh and frozen fruits, vegetables are other perishable food commodities
which reguire a cold stream, right from harvesting to consumption, to maintain guality, nutritive value and hygienic
safety of the products. Any break in this cold-chain can cause heavy loss due to biological deterioration. The
Company has been providing refrigeration solution to almost all the vital industries, related to Food and
Agriculture, Dairy Production, Meat, Fisheries and Livestock, Beverages and Brewerles, Chemical and
Pharmaceutical Industry etc.

Manufacturing has emerged as one of the high growth sectors in India. Prime Minister of India, Mr. Narendra
Madi, had launched the "Make in India’ program to place India on the world map as a manufacturing hub and give
global recognition to the Indian economy. In the present scenario, owing to the necessity for boosting the
industrial strength of India, there are a lot of processes requiring refrigeration eguipments.

The expansion of organized food retall services, along with the increasing demand for fresh fruits and vegetables,
dairy products, meat and poultry itams etc., represent some of the factors driving the Indian cold chain market.

PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE

Ammonia is stll the refrigerant of choice for large cold storage facilities. Newly developed Liguid Ammonia
Hermetically Sealed Pump is performing well and has less power consumed also. It has been launched in both
Mational and International market. Frick has installed vapour ammaonia absorption system with agueous ammonia
for low temperature (Freezers) application working well with better COP and low steam consumption. Frick has
launched Glycol Floor Heating System for Cold storage and Frozen applications in the market.

Frick Screw Compressors as installed in the market are performing well, it saves 2 to 5% power than other
competitor’ compressors due to “No pump Technology™ and “Variable V1" in the l|atest market. Frick has
manufactured Mational biggest CI2 liquification equipments (650 TPD) with single unit installed which is performing
well.

Frick is supplying “"ASME" certified pressure vessels and heat exchangers in the international market also. The
specialty of Frick Reciprocating compressor is that it saves 1 to 3% of power consumption than others. Frick gas
cooled compressor is giving eulstanding performance and is less in oll consumption (less than 10 ppm) with
coalescing oil separators.

Frick aluminum Air cooling units are spreads in the ammonia international markets giving good performance, less
power than 55 coils. Frick evaporative condensers are less water consumption with silent operation. Frick India has
developed PUF panel with different sizes for Cold Storage, Freezers & Air conditioning applications.

Frick India has been providing refrigeration solution to almost all the vital industries, related to Food and
Agriculture, Dairy Production, Meat, Fisheries and Livestock, Beverages and Breweries, Chemical and
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Pharmaceutical Industry atc.

The main products are:

Rotary Twin Screw Compressor Blocks

Rotary Twin Scrow Compressor Packages

High Speed Reciprocating Compressors

Liguid Overfeed System

Evaporative Condensers

Two Stage Compound Reciprocating Compressar

Frigid Colls *S’ Series [Stainless Steel Tubes & Aluminum Fins)
Frigid Coils "A" Series {Aluminum Tubes & Aluminum Fins)

e G Ay e G A

RISK AND CONCERNS

In any business, risks and prospects are inseparable. Frick is a well-known entity and is also exposed to various risks
and uncertaintias and has access to opportunities across its global presence.

The performance, future prospects and cash flow generation could be materially impacted by any of these risks or
opportunities. As a responsible management, the Company's principal endeavor is to maximize returns. The
Company continues to take all steps necessary to minimize its expenses through detailed studies and interaction
with experts. Further, there are constant review meeting at management level to discuss and analyze various near
term and long-term risk and formulate plans to mitigate the same.

Input Cost Risks

Risk: The key raw material consumed by the Company has been very volatile and sudden change can have an
adverse impact on the Company’s cperating margins.

Concern: The Company has many long-term contracts with its major OEM customer where the raw material cost
has been passed through.

Financial risks

Risk: Financial risks relates to the Company’s ability to meet its financial obligations and lessen the impact of
various factors like interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates, credit rating ete. It also includes any risk to
servicing pension obligations and to financial ratios due to impairment.

Concern: Company is well positioned to service financial risk and facilitates its growth objectives. The Company has
adequate measures to deal with all types of financial risks.

Legal and Compliance risks

Risk: Legal and compliance risks relate to risks arising from outcome of legal proceedings, government action,
regulatory action, which could result in additional costs.

Concern: Company has ensured compliance of all laws applicable to the Company and effectively monitors through
efficient compliance management system,

OUTLOOK

The outlock for the Company for the coming years continues to be positive. Most of the customers have indicated
robust growth plans which augurs well for the growth of the Company. However, due to COVID-15 lasting irmpact
on the manufacturing and service sector, there are challenges with the supply chain, procurement of raw material,
and a slight slow-down in the demand of the products which the company has been overcoming now, also, due to
limitation of the labour workforce, as per the government guidelines, the manufacturing capabilities had recorded
some decrease in the production as compared to what the Company use to produce and sell in the nereal
stenarios.

On the other hand Make-in-India, Mational Manufacturing Policy (NMP), and Goods & Services Tax (GST)
implementation are expected to aid the growth of core sectors thus contributing to new demand for screw
compressors, initiatives pertinent to energy efficiency will drive the services market. The Company is confident of
capitalising on future growth opportunities driven by its strong capabilities and credentials, and intends to
continue investing in marketing, brand building and new product development, as well as nurturing the current
areas of the business of the Company.
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The long-term outlook of the global refrigeration and air conditioning compressors market size is projected to
reach USD 18750 million by 2028, from USD 16630 million in 2021, at a CAGR of 2.5% during 2021-2028.

Introduction of sustainable compressors for commercial refrigeration application is a key trend identified in the
global refrigeration and air conditioning compressors market across the globe.

As per the estimates of national income release by the Mational Statistical Office (NSO) the growth in real GDP
during 2022-23 is likely to be estimated at 7.0 per cent as compared to 8.7 per cent in 2021-22. Real GVA at Basic
Real GDF or GDP at Constant (2011-12) Prices in the year 2022-23 is estimated at 7157.60 lakh crore, as against the
Provisional Estimate of GDP for the year 2021-22 of 7147.36 |lakh crore, released on 31st May, 2022, Estimates are
likely to undergo revisions due to various causes in due course, as per the release calendar,

FINAMNCIAL AND OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Following are the financials highlights of the company for the year ended March 31, 2022 on a comparable
consolidated basis.

o Total revenuwe has registered an increase of 28.34% from Rs. 28771.80/- Lakhs fn 2021-22 to As.
3692700/~ Lakhs in 2022-23,

o Profit before tox (PBT) registered an increase by 76.11% from Rs. 2189.71/- Lakhs in 2021-22 ta Rs.
3856.46/- Lakhsin 2022-23.

o Profit after tax (PAT) registered an increase of 74.30% from Rs. 1636.34/~lakhs in 2021-22 to Rs. 2852.21/-
lakhs in 2022-23.

DETAILS OF CHANGES IN RETURN ON NETWORTH

Sr. No. | Particulars 2022-2023 2021-2022
1 Met Waorth (Rs. in lakhs) 23175.42 20363.98
2, Return on Net worth 12.31 2.03%

As per the above table return on net worth is increased by 4.28% for the year ended on 317 March 2023 in
comparison to the previous year ended on 317 March 2022,

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINAMNCIAL RATIOS AS COMPARED TO IMMEDIATELY PREVIOUS
FINANCIAL YEAR

As per the latest amandment as introduced by SEBl wia SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Reguirement)
iAmendment) Regulations, 2018 on May 09, 2018 effective from April 01, 2019, new sub-clause (i) has been
inserted in Clause | in Part B of Schedule V of SERBI{Listing Obligations & Disclosure Reguirement), Rogulations, 2015
according to which the listed entity shall provide the details of significant changes (L.e. change of 25% or maore as
compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with the detailed explanations
thereof, including:

Ratios Financial Year 2022-2023 | Financial Year 2021-2022 | Change from last year
Debtors Turnover Ratio 4.49 3.50 times Increased by 0.99 times
Inventory Turnover Ratio 4,80 5.59 times reduced by 0.79 times
Interest Coverage Ratio 95.16 43.03 tirnes Increased by 52.13 tirnes
Current Ratio 2.67 2.59 tirmes Increased by .08 times
Deht Equity Ratio 0.07 0.08 times Reduced by .01 times
Dperating Profit Margin (%) 10. 74% 8.51% Increased by 2.23%
Met Profit Margin (%) 10.63% 7.81% Increased by 2.82 %

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THE ADEQUACY

The Company's internal financial control framework is commensurate with the size and operations of the business
and is in line with requirements of the regulations. Internal control systems have been a core focus for the
Company. The Company has laid down procedures and policies to guide the operations of the business. Effective/
adequate internal control systems are in place to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected against
unauthorized use and the transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly, Such controls which are
subjected to periodical review alse ensure efficiency of operations, accuracy and promptness of financial reporting
and compliance with all applicable laws and regulation. The Company's internal control systems are routinely
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tested by the Management, Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors.
INTERNAL AUDIT

A regular Internal Audit System is also in place. Outside expertise is availed to supplement internal resources. The
Internal Audit Report along with management comments thereon is reviewed by the Audit Committee of the
Board comprising of Independent Directors which also monitors implementation of the suggestions. Further, the
Audit Committee regularly interacts with the Statutory Auditors about the adequacy of internal control systems
and seeks suggestions, if any.

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES [ INDUSTRIAL RELATION FRONT INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS
AND PERSONNEL

Caring for its people has always been the way of life in the Company as its people are always treated as most
valuable assets. Your Company has been continuously working to improve human resources skills, competencies
and capabilities in the Company, which is critical to achieve results as per our strategic business ambitions. The
Company has been successful in fostering a people-centric cohesive culture within the organization that has been
instrumental in creating its diverse pool of intellectual capital. The Company is focused and committed towards
empowering its employees and continues to embark upon several initiatives on this front.

The underlying rule of Company’s policy towards human resource development is that competent and motivated
manpower is the most important factor in achieving business goals. The policies in this regard are evolved and
pursued to achieve this objective. Industrial relations remained cordial at all locations during the year. No working
hours was lost due to any labour dispute.

As on March 31, 2023, the total number of employees on the payroll of the Company as a whole was 725.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

The statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis may contain certain forward looking remarks within
the meaning of applicable Securities law and Regulations. Actual results may vary significantly from the forward
looking statements due to various risks and uncertainties. These risks and uncertainties include the effect of
economic and political risks within and outside India, volatility in interest rates, change in Government or
regulatory policies that may impact the Company’s business as well as its ability to implement the strategy. The
Company does not undertake to update these statements.

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company has followed the guidelines of accounting standards as mandated by the Central Government in
preparation of its financial statements.

For AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Date: May 24, 2023 FRICK INDIA LIMITED
Place: New Delhi (Jasmohan Singh) (Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Managing Director Director

00383412 00038529
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ANNEXURE “D"” TO THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

[Pursuant to Schedule V{C) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 {"Listing
Regulations")]

1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Corporate Governance at Frick India Limited takes care of overall well-being, sustainability and transparency of
the system and takes into account the stakeholders’ interest in every business decision, Corporate Governance is a
combination of voluntary practices and compliances of laws and regulations leading to effective control and
management of the Organization and its valuable resources through effective and transparent business conduct,
integrating communication, integrity and accountability towards its stakeholders,

On September 2, 2015, the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) introduced the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, effective from December 1, 2015, replacing the erstwhile Listing
Agreement with the Stock Exchange. The Company has promptly taken all necessary steps to implement the
revised norms of Corporate Governance. The Company understands that compliances of applicable legislations and
timely disclosures enhance the image of the Company as a good corporate citizen in the Country.,

Frick India Limited has always believed in and followed the best business practices, and has been compliant with all
the laws, exercised fairness and integrity in all its dealings, thereby reiterated its commitment to enhancement of
stakeholders’ value. The Company has a defined set of guidelines for its internal governance based on business
ethics, legal compliance and professional conduct. The Company has been transparent in its accounting practices
and procedures, in framing and adhering to policies and guidelines, in insisting on responsibility and accountability
and by regular audit of its policies and procedures;

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS

a. COMPOSITION AND CATEGORY OF DIRECTORS

The Company’s Board comprises of an appropriate combination of Executive, Non-Executive Directors and
Independent Directors as on 31st March, 2023 the Board has 6 Directors out of which one is Executive Director,
two are Non-Executive Directors and three are Independent Directors who are persons of eminence with
experience in the fields of finance, taxation, trade and industry, Hence, the Board’'s composition is in line with the
Corporate Governance requirements. In terms of Regulation 17 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations, 2015 [Listing Regulations), at least 50% of the Board should
comprise of Non-Executive Independent Directors with at least one woman director. The Independent Directors
constituted 50% of the Board as on 31st March, 2023. The Company has two women directors on the Board who
are holding offices as Non-Executive Directors,

b. DETAILS OF ATTENDANCE

Details of attendance of each Director at Board Meetings and at the last year's Annual General Meeting with
particulars of their other Directorships and Chairman/Membership of Board Committees showing the position as
at 31st March, 2023 are given hereunder:

Number of board meetings and dates on which held during the Financial Year 2022-2023, Five (05) Board
Meetings were held:-




Frick Indla Liinkted

Mame & DIN Date of Board Meeting | Attended : Yes/No)
17-05-2022 12-08-2022 13-11-2022 26-12-2022 13-02-2023

Mr. Jasmohan Singh, Yas Yes Yes Yes Yes
DIN 00383412

Mr, Ramesh Chandra Jain, Yag Yes Yag Yes Yas
DIN 00038529

Ms. Jasleen Kaur Queenie Singh | No Mo Yes Mo No
DIN 05269598

Mz, Gurleen Kaur, Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
DIN 05270533

Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
Rag DIN 00423952

Mr. Divaker lagga, Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
DIN 05357522

The maximum time gap between two board meetings was less than 120 days. Minutes of the meetings of all the
Board and Committees are circulated to all the Directors.

Table 1: Category of Directorships, Relationship with other Directors, Attendance record as on 31 March, 2023

Mame & DIN Category of | Relationship with other | No. of Board Meetings | Whether

Directorships Directors of the Company | attended  the

{During the year] last Annual
General
Held Attended Meeting

Mr. Jasmaohan Managing Brother of Ms. Gurleen 5 5 Yes
Singh, DIN Director iKaur & Ms. Jasleen Kaur
00383412 Queenie Singh
Mr. Ramesh Mon-Executive / | Mo Relation 5 5 Yes
Chandra lain, DIM Independent
00038529 Directar
Ml aslaern Kaar Mon-Executive Sister of Mr. Jasmohan 5 1 Yes
Queenie Singh, Director Singh & Ms. Gurleen
DIN 05269698 Kaur
Ms. Gurleen Kaur, Non-Executive Sister of Mr. lasmohan Singh 5 5 Yes
DIN 05270533 Director & Ms. Jasleen Kaur Gueenie Singh
Mr. Govindarajula | Non-Executive / | Mo Relation 5 5 Yes
Bhaskara Rao DIN Independent
004539592 Director
Mr. Divaker Jagga, | MNon-Executive [/ | Mo Relation 5 5 ¥es
DM 05357922 Independent

Director

DIRECTORSHIPS AND MEMBERSHIPS OF BOARD COMMITTEES
Table 2: Number of Directorships / Committee positions of Directors as on March 31, 2023

Directorships
No. of Memberships/
MName of Director In Listed In Unlisted In Private Chairmanships in Board
Companies Public limited Limited Committees

Companies Companies Member Chairman
Mr. lasmohan SinEh 1 1 3 2 0
Ms, Jaslean Kaur Queenie Singh 1 0 1 0 0
Ms. Gurleen Kaur 1 0 1 1 0
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain 3 2 4 4 2
Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara 2 2 2 1 1
Rao
Mr. Divaker lagga 1 [1] 1 2 0
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As per the recent Amendments introduced in PART C of Schedule V of SEBI Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Reguirement), Regulations, 2015
It is mandatory to provide the name of listed entity wherein the Board Members are directors along with the

category of Directorship.

Sr. MNarme of Director | Name of Company in which Category of Company Category of
Ma. holds Directorship Listed / Unlisted Directorship
Public/Private Executive/Non
Executive/Independent
1 Mr. lasmohan Frick India Limited Listed Company Executive Director
Singh Walco Engineering Limited Unlisted Public Company | Non-Executive Director
Freezeking Industries Private Private Company Mon-Executive Director
Limited
M 5 Kold Hald Industries Private Company Non-Executive Directar
Private Limited
Beauty By Bie Private Limitad Private Company Director
2 Mz, lzslean Kaur Frick India Limited Listed Company Mon-Executive Director
Queenie Singh Beauty By Ble Private Lirnited | Private Company Directar
3 Ms. Gurleen Kaur | Frick India Limited Listed Company Mon-Executive Director
Mr. Ramesh Frick India Limited Listed Company Independent Director
Chandra Jain 5. 1.5 Enterprise Limited Listed Cormpany Independent Director
Minda Sai Limited Unlisted Public Company | Director
The Hi-tech robotic systemz Unlisted Public Company | Director
Limited
Titagarh Agrico Private Frivate Company Director
Limited
Indoi Systems Private Limited | Private Company Director
Exotech Plastics Private Private Company Mon-Executive Director
Limited
Movus Hi-Tech Robotic Private Company Director
Systemz Private Limited
The Hi-Tech Gears Limited Unlisted Public Company | Nen- Executive Director
Kamdhenu Limited Listed Company MNean- Executive Director
5 Mr. Divaker Jagga | Frick India Limited Listed Company Independent Diractor
Concept Tax Gaurdian Private Company Mon-Executive Director
India Private Limited
6 BT, Frick India Limited Listed Company Independent Director

Govindarajula
Bhaskara Rac

Mars Finance and consultancy
Services Private Limited

Private Company

Mon-Executive director

Table 3: Details of Equity Shares of the Company held by Non-ExXecutive Directors as on March 31, 2023

Name of Director Category of Directorship Na. of Shares held
Ms. lasleen Kaur Queenie Singh Non-Executive Director 5835

Ms. Gurleen Kaur Non-Executive Director 3300

Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Independent Director 0

Mr. Divaker lagga Independent Director o

Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao Independent Director 0

Mo director s a member of more than 10 Board Committees or Chairman of more than 5 Board Committees across
all public limited cornpanies where he/she is a Director. Further, no Independent Director serves as Independent
Director in more than 7 listed companies.
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Particulars about Director secking appointment/re-appointment at the forthcoming AGM are given in the
Annexure to the Notice,

The Company has received declarations on criteria of independence as prescribed in Section 149(&) of the
Companias Act 2013 and Regulation 16 (1) (b) and Regulation 25(8)of the Listing Regulations from the Directors of
the Company who have been classified as Independent Directors as on 31st March, 2023.

It is pertinent to note here that as per the annual evaluation of the Independent Directors it is opined by the Board
of directors that the independent Directors of the Company fulfill the conditions specified in Listing regulations and
are independent of the managaement,

CERTIFICATE FROM A COMPANY SECRETARY IN PRACTICE

As per the latest Amendment introduces in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 wia SEBILODR}{Amendment)
Regulations, 2018 a new clause has been inserted in the Schedule V PART C of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations in
adherence to which a Certificate from Ms, Aditi Gupta, a Practicing Company Secretary of M/s Aditi Agarwal &
Associates, Company Secretaries, certifying that none of the directors an the board of the Company have been
debarred or disgualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of Companies by the Board/ Ministry of
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The said Certificate is attached herewith as an Annexure-H to
the end of this Report.

€. APPOINTMENT AND TENURE

In terms of the applicable provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Ms. Gurleen Kaur,
Mon-Executive Director of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being
eligible, has offered herself for re-appointment.

The Company would not have any upper age limlt of retirement of Independent Directors from the Board and their
appointment and tenure will be governed by the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

d. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independsnt Directors meet at least oncz in a ye=ar, without the presence of Executive Directors or
Management representatives. The Separate Meeting of the Independent Directors last held was on March 14,
2023,

2. FORMALLETTER OF APPOINTMENT TO INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company issues a formal letter of appeointment to independent directors in the manner as provided in the
Companies Act, 2013. As per Regulation 46 (2) of Listing Regulations, the terms and conditions of appointment of
independent directors are placed on the Company’s website www. frickweb.com.

f. FAMILARIZATION PROGRAMMES

The Independent Directors have been familiarized with the Company, their roles and responsibilities in the
Company, nature of the Industry in which the Company operates, business moade| of the Company etc. During
2022-2023, independent directors were taken through various aspects of the Company’s business and operations.
With a view to familiarizing the Independent Directors with the Company's Operations, as reguired under
regulation 25(7) of the Listing Regulations, as well as to take the informed decision by the Independent Directors in
their separate meating held on March 14, 2023, the Management of the Company conducted Familiarization
program before the commencement of the said meefing a copy has been posted on in the official website of the
Company www.frickweb.com.

8. CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT AND ETHICS

Frick India Limited belleves that Good Corporate Governance |5 the key to the Conduct of Company's Business in a
transparent, reliable and vibrant manner. It is of paramount importance for any Company to create an atmosphere
of faith, integrity, accountability, responsibility and financial stability by adhering to commitment, ethical business
conduct, a high degree of transparency thereby unlocking the individual intellectual capabilities and enabling its
Board of Directors to conduct its duties under 3 moral authority, which ultimately leads to enhance legiimate
needs and value of the stakeholders. A copy of this code formulated in terms of Regulation 17 of the Regulations
has been posted at Company’s official website www. frickwab.com.
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h. CODEOF CONDUCT FOR PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has a comprehensive Code of Conduct for its Management, 5taff and Directors for prevention of
Insider Trading in compliance with SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The code |lays down the
guidelines and procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made while dealing with the Shares of the
Company and cautoning them on the consequences of non-compliance. The pieces of the price sensitive
information are disseminated to the Stock Exchanges timely, adeguately and promptly on continuous basis for
prevention of Insider Trading. The Company Secretary has been appointed as Compliance Officer and is
responsible for adherence to Code for prevention of Insider Trading. A copy of the same has been posted at the
official website of the Company wyww. frickweb.com.

i. SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

During the financial year 2022-2023, the Independent Directors met separately on 14™ March, 2023 without the
presence of Non- Independent Directors and members of the managerment in compliance with Regulation 25 (3) of
the Listing Regulztions and Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, In the said meeting, the Independent
Directors inter-alia considered the following:
l. Review of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;
11 Assess the guality, guantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management
and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

2. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board Committees play & crucial role in the governance structure of the Company and have been constituted
to deal with specific areas [ activiies which concern the Company and need a closer review. The Board
Cormmittees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined roles which are
considered to be performed by members of the Board, as a part of good governance practice, The Board
supervises the execution of its responsibilities by the Committees and is responsible for their action. The Chairman
of the respective Committee informs the Board about the summary of the discussions held in the Committes
Meetings. The minutes of the meetings of all Committees are placed before the Board for review. The Board
Cormmittees can request special invitees to join the meeting, as appropriate.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Brief description of terms of reference

A gualified and independent Audit Committee has been set up by the Board in compliance with the requirements
of Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, The role and terms of
reference of the Audit Committes are Inter-alia as under:

This Committee of the Board was constituted In the year 2003. The Audit Committee inter-alla, ensures to the

Board of the existence of an effective internal control systems. During the year, five meetings of the Audit
Committee were held on May 17, 2022, August 12, 2022, Movember 14, 2022, December 26, 2022 and February
13, 2023. The Audit Committee consists of Four Members, out of which three are Non-executive Independent
Directors and one Executive Director. All the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate as defined in
Regulation 18 (1) of the Listing Regulations.

Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao is acting as the Chairman of the Audit Committee. He had expert knowledge in
banking and financial matters,

Table 4: COMPOSITION, NAME OF MEMBER & CHAIRPERSON, MEETING AND ATTENDANCE OF AUDIT
COMMITTEE AS ON 31 MARCH, 2023

Name of the Member Designation No of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr, Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao Chairman 5 5
Mr, Jasmohan Singh Member 5 5
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Member 5 5
Mr. Divaker Jagga Member 5 5
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The Audit Committee Meetings were attended by invitation by the Chief Financial Officer, Internal Auditor and the

Statutory Auditors. Mr. Amit Singh, Company Secretary and Compliance Officer acted as the Secretary to the
Committee,

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Brief Description of Terms of reference

The Remuneration Committee was constituted by the Board on 20.07.2005 and later on in the meeting of the
Board of Directors held on August 13, 2014 it was re-named as 'Nomination and Remuneration Committee’, in
terms of the provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI Circular No.
CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/2/2014 dated April 17, 2014. The Memination and Remuneration Committee met twice
during the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 on May 17 2022 and December 26, 2022. A copy of Nomination
and Remuneration Policy has been posted at the official website of the Company www.frickweb.com. Nomination
and Remuneration Committee consists of the following four Members, out of which three are Non-Executive
Independent Directors and one Executive Director.

Table 5: COMPOSITION, NAME OF MEMBER & CHAIRPERSON, MEETING AND ATTENDANCE OF NOMINATION &
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AS ON 31 MARCH, 2023

Name of the Member Designation No of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Chairman 2 2
Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao Member P 2
Mr. Divaker Jagga Member 2 2
Ms Gurleen Kaur Member 2 2

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION CRITERIA FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable provisions of the Listing Regulations, the
Annual performance evaluation was carried out for 2022-23 by the Board in respect of its own performance, the
Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its Audit, NMomination and Remuneration,
Stakeholder Relationship and CS5R Committees. A structured questionnaire covering various aspects of the Board's
functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and
performance of specific duties, obligations and governance was prepared based on the Guidance note issued by
SEB| vide circular no, CMD/CIR/P/2017/004 dated 05.01.2017, In terms of Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations, the
Board of Directors in its meeting held on lune 08, 2021 and May 17, 2022 evaluated the performance of
Independent Directors in terms of criteria of performance evaluation as lzid down by MNomination and
Remuneration Committee which covers the area relevant to their role as Independent Director in the Company.
During the Financial Year(s) 2021-22 and 2022-23, a separate meeting of the Independent Directors of the
Company was held respectively on March 29, 2022 and March 14, 2023 in terms of Regulation 25 of the Listing
Regulations.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluatethe performance of individual directors of the Board who were
evaluated on parameters such as guidance/ support to management outside Board/ Committee meetings, degree
of fulfillment of key responsibilities, effectiveness of meetings etc.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board except for the
Director being evaluated. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.
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REMUMERATION OF DIRECTORS
Pecuniary transactions with non-executive directors

During the year, there were no pecuniary transactions with any non-executive director of the Company. The
register of contracts is maintained by the Company under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The register is
signed by all the directors present at the respective Board Meetings.

Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors

Non-executive directors of the Company play a crucial role in the independent functioning of the Board. They bring
in an external perspective to decision-making, and provide leadership and strategic guidance while maintaining
objective judgment. They also oversee the corporate governance framework of the Company. As stated earlier, the
Momination and Remuneration Policy, inter alia, disclosing the criteria of making payments to directors, key
managerial personnel and employees is placed on the Company’'s website www.frickweb.com.

Remuneration policy:

Remuneration policy in the Company is designed to create a high performance culture. It enables the Company to
attract, retain and motivate employees to achieve results. Our business model promotes customer centricity and
requires employee mobility to address customers’ needs. The remuneration policy supports such mobility through
pay models that are compliant to local regulations. The Company remunerates its Managerial Personnel (Executive
Directors) by way of salary, perquisites, allowances, commission as per the terms approved by the shareholders
and within the limits as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013, The Non-executive Independent Directors are
paid sitting fees as decided by the Board from time to time and within the limits as laid down under the Companies
Act, 2013. In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, Listing Agreement and SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, the Company has the Policy on Nomination &
Remuneration, approved by Board of Directors in their meeting held on February 11, 2016.

On the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Company and approval by the Board of Directors, the
members of the Company in the 56th Annual General Meeting held on September 26, 2019 approved the revision
in terms and conditions of remuneration of Mr. Jasmohan Singh as the Managing Director of the Company for a
period of 2 (two) years with effect from April 1, 2019.

Further, in pursuance of the terms of the Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company and on the
recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, and approval by the Board of Directors, the
members of the Company in the 58th Annual General Meeting held on September 18, 2021 approved the revision
in terms and condition of Mr. Jasmohan Singh as the Managing Director of the Company for a period of 3 (three)
years with effect from April, 2021.

The details of remuneration of Directors for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023 are given below (Rs. in Lakhs)

MName Salary Perquisites Commission Others Total

Mr. Jasmohan Singh 171.60 62.72 0.00 12.96 247.28
Managing Director

*Provident Fund of Rs. 12.96 Lakhs, Perqusits of Rs. 62.72 Lakhs and Remuneration of Rs. 171.60 aggregates to Rs.

247.28 Lakhs. Above appointment is contractual in nature.
No stock options were issued by the Company to its Directors / Employees.

Non-Executive Independent Directors

The non-executive directors are paid sitting fee for attending the Board /Committee Meetings. The sitting fees paid
during the Financial Year 2022 - 2023 are given below:
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Name of Director Sitting Fees (Rs. In Lakhs)
Mir. Ramesh Chandra lain 9.90
Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao 7 15
Mr. Divaker Jagga 9.35
Total 26.40

STAKEHOLDERS' RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

In terms of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of the Regulations, the “Stakeholders’
Relationship Committee” constitutes of 4 (Four) Directors as members. The “Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee” has been empowered to consider and resclve the grievances of shareholders of the Company
including complaints related to transfer of shares, non- receipt of balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends
and other miscellaneous complaints.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Committee met four times on May 17, 2022, August 12, 2022, November
14, 2022 and February 13, 2023 the Committee took note of the status of requests received from the Shareholders
for Dematerialisation, Rematerialisation, non-receipt of Annual Report, non-receipt of declared dividend, Transfers
and Transmissions of Shares as on March 31, 2023,

All matters related to transfer/ transmission of shares and Investors’ grievances have been entrusted to the
Stakeholders' Relationship Committee comprising of the following:-

Table 6: Composition and attendance of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee as on March 31, 2023

Name of the Member Designation No of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Chairman 4 4
Ms. Gurleen Kaur tember 4 4
Mr. Jasmohan Singh rMember 4 4
Mr. Divaker Jagga rMember 4 4

Mr. Amit Singh, Company Secretary acted as the Secretary to the Committee Compliance Officer for complying
with the requirements of Sacurities laws.

a. [INVESTORS' COMPLAINTS RECEIVED AND RESOLVED DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-2023

Investor Complaints No. of complaints received/resolved during 2022-23
Pending at the beginning of the year Ml
Received during the year Mil
Disposed of during the year Mil
Remaining unresclved at the end of the year Mil

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE {“CSR COMMITTEE")

In terms of provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
("CSR Committee”) constitutes of following 3 (Three) Directors as members to monitor the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy of the Company as approved by the Beard. During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Commitiee
friet ohce on March 14, 2023, During the Financial Year 2022-23 the minimum amount of expenditure required to
be done by the Company, on CSR activities is Rs. 44,31,842 589/- approx. (I.e. atleast 2% of the average net profits
of the Company made during the three immediately preceding Financial Years) which has been calculated in
accordance with the Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.The Committee in its Meeting held on March 14,
2023 has approved and recoramended Rs, 44,31,842.589/- approx. towards CSR Expenditure taking into account
the proposals as received from various agencies engaged in C5R Activities.

Accordingly on March 14, 2023 the members of the C5R Committee had passed resolution for authorizing Mr.
Sharad Bhatnagar, Director (Finance & Taxation) & CFO and Mr. Amit Singh, Company Secretary of the Company
for analyzing the appropriate proposals received after March 14, 2023 on the basis of merits and on the basis

of CSR Policy and thereafter recommend to the Board towards camy forward of the surplus amount of expenditure
to the next FY 2023-24, as remained unspent during the FY 2022-2023.
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Tahle 7: Composition and attendance of CSR Committee as on March 31, 2023

Name of the Member Designation No of Meetings
Held Attended
Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Chairman 1 1
Mr. Jasmohan Singh Mermber 1 1
Mz, Gurleen Kaur Member 1 1
GEMERAL BODY MEETINGS

A. The previcus three Annual General Meetings (AGMs) were held at the registered office of the Company at
21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road, Faridabad (Haryana) on the following dates:

Financial Year Date &Time
201%-20 26.09.2020 [at 11:00 AM)
2020-21 18.02.2021 {at 11: 00 AM)
2021-22 23.09.2022 {at 11:00 AM)

B. Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot —details of voting pattern - No special
resolutions were passed during 2022-23 through postal ballot.

C. Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise: N.A.

D. Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot: At present there s no
proposal to pass any special resolution through postal ballot.

E. Procedure for postal ballot: N.A.

EXTRA-ORDINARY GEMERAL MEETINGS

Mo Extra-ordinary General Meeting was held during the previous Financial Year 2022-2023. Further, no Postal
Ballot Resolution was passed at the above AGMs.,

MEANS OF COMMUMICATION
The Company publishes Quarterly, Half-yearly and Annual results as required under the Listing Regulations,

The results are normally published in the Mewspapers, viz. The Financial Express (English) and the Hari Bhoomi
{Hindi}. The results are also forwarded to the Metropaolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited.

The notice of the AGM along with Annual Report [s sent to the shareholders well in advance of the AGM.

The List of the notice is also published in the newspapers. In addition, the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India
Limited is notified of any important developrents that may materially affect the working of the Company.

Disclosures with regard to shareholding pattern, change in major shareholding, and guarterly Reconciliation of
Share Capital Audit Report etc. are also senf to the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited as required under
various regulations.

FINANCIAL CALENDAR

The Board holds at least 4 meetings in a year and the gap between 2 meetings is not more than 120 days. The
Quarterly Financial Results are also subjected to Limited Audit Review by the Statutory Auditors. The AGM is
regularly held within & months from the date of the closure of the Financial Year.

DATE OF BOOK CLOSURE

The Register of Members and other Share Transfer Books will remain closed from Tuesday, September 13, 2023 to
Monday, September 25, 2023 both days inclusive),

GENERAL SHAREOLDER INFORMATION
60™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The &60* AGM will be held on Monday, 25" day of Septernber, 2023, at 11:00 A.M., through Video
Conferencing/dudio Visual Mode.
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Financial Year

Financial Year of the Company commences on 01st April and ends on 31st March. The respective Four Quarters of
the Company ends on 20th June, 30th September, 215t December and 31st March for each Financial Year.

Dividend payment date

The Board in its meeting held on May 24, 2023 recommended a dividend of Rs. 4 per share (40%) for the year
2022-23, which would be distributed after approval of the same by the shareholders at the 60" Annual General
Meeting of the Company.

Unclaimed dividends

All the shareholders who have not claimed/encashed their dividends in the last seven consecutive years from 2013
are requested to claim the same. The concerned authorities are requested to verify the details of thelr unclaimed
amounts, if any by writing to the Company's Registrar before the same becoming due for transfer to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund of the Central Government ("IEPF').

Dividend and corresponding shares, as stated above, once transferred to the |EPF by the Company, may be claimed
anly fram the IEPF Authority by following the procedure prescribed under the |EPF Rules.

Mr. Amit Singh Tomar, Company Secretary is the Modal Officer of the Company for the purpose of verification of
such claims.

Listing on Stock Exchanges and Stock Code

The Company has listed its 5,959,975 Eguity Shares were listed on The Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited
(MSEI} w.e.f. December 31, 2015, vide their letter no. MSEL/LIST/SL/2015/6539, dated December 29, 2015 as well
as Circular no, MSEI/LIST/2690/2015 dated December 29, 2015 and stock code is FRICKINDIA,

The Annual Listing Fees for the year 2022-22 had been paid in advance to the aforesaid The Metropolitan Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

Credit Ratings

The details of the Credit rating for Financial Year 2022-23 assigned by the rating agency is provided below:

5.No. Instrument Description Rating Agency Rating Assigned
1 Bank Loan Facilities- Long Term CRISIL Lirnited CRISIL A/- Stable [Reaffirmed)
2 Bank Loan Facilities- Short Term CRISIL Limited CRISIL Al (Reaffirmed)
Market price data

Though the shares of the Company are listed with MSEI and are not traded among stakeholders hence market
price data is not available. As such to the best our information, no exchange quaote is available for the Current Year.

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM

M/s Link Intime India Private Limited is Share Transfer Agent for both De-mat & Share Registry work in terms of the
directions of SEBI. Shareholders are requested to send all their De-mat & Share transfer papers to the Share
Transfer Agent along with copy of the same to the Company.

The address of the Share Transfer Agent is:

Mys Link Intime India Pvt. Limited,

Noble Heights, 17 Floer, NH-2,

-1, Block LSC, Mear Savitri Market, Janakpuri, Mew Delhi-110058
Phone: 011-41410592,/93/94. EmaillD :delhi@linkintime.co.in

The shareholders may also write to the Company at its registered office for any grievances [ share transfer related
matters to enable the Company to get the matter sorted out expeditiously.
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Frick India Limited

21.5 Km.. Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad-121003 (Haryana)

Phone : 0129 - 2275691 - 94, 2270546 — 47

Fax : 0129 - 2275695, Email ID ; cs@frickmail.com

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS AT MARCH 31, 2023

Equity Shareholding Mumber of Equity | Percentage % | Equity Shares | Percentage %
From To Shareholders
1 500 2163 97.7406 106804 17.8014
501 1000 18 0.8134 13371 2.2286
1001 2000 13 0.5874 16856 2.8095
2001 3000 4 0.1808 11261 1.8769
3001 4000 3 0.1356 10776 1.7961
4001 5000 4 0.1808 17857 2.9763
5001 10000 3 0.1356 26610 4.4352
10001 And above 5 0.2259 396440 66.0761
Total 2213 100.00 599975 100.00
Shareholding Pattern (as on March 31, 2023)

Cate;ur-,r Mo. of shares held (in Lakhs) Pementaga
Promoters 3.82538 63.76%
Non-Pramoters (including Public) 2.17437 36.24%

Total 5.99975 100.00

DE-MATERIALIZATION OF EQUITY SHARES

The shares in the Company are under compulsory demateralized trading. Up to 31.03.2022, 554,103 Equity
Shares In the Company (i.e. 92.35%) have been dematerialized, Subsequently, during the Financial Year 2022-23,
further 2475 Equity Shares were dematerialized. Therefore, up to March 31, 2023, 556,578 (i.e. 92.76%) Equity
Shares of the Company are in dematerialized form. The Company’s ISIN Na. is INE429C01012.

PLANT LOCATIONS

The Factory and Works of the Company are located at 21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road, Faridabad - 121 003
(Haryana).

ADDRESS FOR CORRESPONDENCE

Mr. Amit Singh Tornar

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer (Manager Legal & Secretarial)
Frick India Limited

21.5 K., Main Mathura Road,

Faridabad-121003 (Haryana)

Phone : 0129 - 2275691 - 94, 2370546 — 47

Fax : 0129 - 2275695, Email 1D : cs@frickmail.com/ dft@ frickmail.com

OTHER DISCLOSURES
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY /VIGIL MECHANISM

The Whistle Blower policy/Vigll Mechanism of the Company has been formulated as per Regulation 22 of the
Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, The policy provides a channel to the employees,

Directors and any other person who avails such mechanism to report to the management concerns about
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unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or viclation of the Codes of conductor policy, The mechanisms of
policy provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees, Directors and any ather person who
avails such mechanism and also provide for direct aceess to the Chairman of the Audit Commitiee in appropriate
and exceptional cases. The sald policy has been communicated to all the personnel of the Company and is avallable
on the website of the Company www.frickweb.com.

During the year under review, no unethical behavior has been reported. Further, the Company has not denied any
personnel access to the Audit Committee and it will provide protection to Whistle Blower, if any, from adverse
personnel action.

POLICY ON PRESERVATION OF DOCUMENTS / ARCHIVAL

The Policy on Preservation of Documents/ Archival Policy on Website Disclosure has been framed in accordance
with the Regulation 9 and Regulation 30(8) of the Regulations which provides the framewark for preservation of
documents and records of the Company for a specified period and the records of the Company which are no longer
nesded or are of no value are discarded after following the due process for discarding the same. This Policy alds
the employees of the Company in understanding their obligations in retaining and preserving the documents and
records which are required to be maintained as per the applicable statutory and regulatory requirements. The said
policy is available on the website of the Company www frickweb.com.

POLICY ON CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING MATERIALITY OF EVENTS

The Policy on criteria for determining Materiality of Events has been framed in accordance with Regulation 30 of
the Regulations which defines the criteria for determining the materiality of events or information related to the
Company provides that such infarmation should be adeguately disseminated in pursuance with the Regulations
and further provides for the overall governance framework for such determination of materiality. The said policy is
ayailable on the website of the Company www.frickweb.com.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In compliance with the provisions of the Listing Regulations, the Board through its Nomination and Remuneration
Committee has devised a Policy on Board Diversity. The objective of the Policy is to ensure that the Board
comprises adequate number of members with diverse experience and skills, such that it best serves the
governance and strategic needs of the Company. The Board composition as at present meets with the above
objective. The said Policy is placed on the Company's wabsite www.frickweb.com.

FEES OF STATUTORY AUDITORS

Total feas paid by the company for all services on a consolidated basis to the Statutory Auditors and all entities in
the network firm / network entity of which the Statutory Auditors is a part is Rs, 9.27 Lakhs.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEMUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

There were no complaints received till date and all compliances related to Prevention of Sexual Harrassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 were duly adhered in time by the Company.

POLICY ON DEALING WITH RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION
The policy on dealing with related party transactions s disclosed on the Cormnpany’s website www . frickweb.com.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Effective rick management is essential to success and is an integral part of our culture. Whilz we need to accept a
level of risk In achieving our goals, sound risk management helps us to make the most of each business
opportunity, and enables us to be resilient and respond decisively to the changing environment.

Our approach to risk management assists us in identifying risks early and addressing tham in ways that manage
uncertainties, minimize potential hazards, and maximize opportunities for the good of all our stakeholders
including shareholders, customers, suppliers, regulators and employees. Risks can be broadly classified as
Strategic, Operational, Financial, and Legal/Regulatory.

NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

The Company has not been able to adopt any of the non-mandatory reguirements. The process for obtaining
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voluntary Secretarial Cormnpliance Certificate from the Company Secretary in practice is however continuing.
CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

In terms of Listing Regulations, the certification by Managing Directors and Chief Financial Officer on the financlal
statements and internal controls relating to financial reporting has been obtained. The same is provided as
Annexure to this Report.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

Compliance certificate from Practicing Company Secretary regarding Compliance of conditons of Corporate
Governance is annexed with this report.

DECLARATION BY CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER f MANAGING DIRECTOR

I, Jasmohan Singh, Managing Director of the Company hereby declare that all Board members and Senior
Management have individually affirmed compliance with the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics adopted by the
Company during the year 2022-2023.

MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Regulation 17 to 27 and Clause (b) to (i) of sub-
regulation (2] of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations.

Details of Compliances are given below:

I Disclosure on website in terms of Listing Regulations ltem Compliance Status
(Yes/No/NA)

1 Detalls of business Yes

2 Terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors Yes

3 Directors Composition of various committees of board of directors Yes

4 Code of conduct of board of directors and senior management personneal Yes

5 Detalls of establishment of vigil mechanismy Whistle Blower policy Yes

6 Criteria of making payments to non-executive directors Yes

7 Policy on dealing with related party transactions Yes

8 Paolicy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries M

9 Details of familiarization programmes imparted to independent directors Yes

10 Contact information of the designated officials of the Company who are Yes
responsible for assisting and handling investor grievances

11 Erail address for grievance redressal and other relevant details Yes

1z Financial results Yes

13 Shareholding pattern Yes

14 | Details of agreements entered into with the media companies and/or their MA
associates
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15 Schedule of analyst or instituticnal investor meet and presentation made by MA
the listed entity to analysts or institutional investors simultaneously with
submission to stock exchange
16 Mew name and the old name of the listed entity A,
17 | Advertisement as per Regulation 47{1} Yes
18 | Credit rating or revision in credit rating obtained Yos
19 Separate audited financial statements of each subsidiary of listed entity in [HHA
respect of a relevant financial year
20 | Whether company has provided information under separate section on its Yes
website as per REEulation 46(2)
21 | Materiality Palicy as per Regulation 30 Yes
22 | Dividend Distribution Policy as per Regulation 43 A { as applicable) WA
23 It is certified that these contents on website of the listed entity are correct Yes

Annual Affirmations

Particulars

Independent director(s) have been appointed in terms of specified Criteria | 16(1)(b) & 25(B) Yes
of Independence and/or eligibility

Board Composition 17(1) 17 (1A) & 17 (1B) Yes
Meeting of Board of directors 17(2) Yes
Quorum of Board of Directors 17(2A) Yes
Review of Compliance Reports 17(3) Yes
Plans for orderly succession for appointments 17(4) Yas
Code of Conduct 17(5) Yes
Fees/compensation 17(B) Yas
Minirmum Information 1717} Yesg
Compliance Certificate 17(8) Yes
Risk Assessment & Management 17(9) Yes
Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors 17(10) Yes
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Recommendation of Board 17(11) Yes
Maximum Nurnber of Directorships 17A Yes
Composition of Audit Committes 18(1) Yes
Meeting of Audit Committes 18(2) Yes
Composition of Nomination & Remuneration committee 19(1) & (2) Yes
Qworum of Momination and Remuneration Committee meeting 19(2A) Yes
Meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 19(3A) Yes
Composition of Stakeholders' Relationship Committee 20(1), (2) & 20{24) Yes
Meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee 20(34) Yes
Compaosition and role of Risk Management Committee 2301),02).03),(4) NA
Meeting of Risk Management Committee 21(3A) MA
Vigil Mechanism 22 Yes
Policy for Relatad Party Transaction 23(1),(18) (5),06),(7) Yes
&(8)

Prior or Omnibus approval of Audit Committee for all Related Party | 23(2), (3) A
Transactions

Approval for material Related Party transactions 23(4) Yes
Disclosure of related party transaction on consclidated basis 23(9) Yes
Composition of Board of Directors of unlisted material Subsidiary 24(1) MNA
Other Corporate Governance reguirements with respect to subsidiary of | 24(2),(3),(4),(5) & & MA
Company

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report 24({A) Yes
Alternative Director to Independent Director 25(1) NA
Maximum Tenure 25 (2) Yes
Meeting of Independent Directors 25(3) B (4) Yes
Familiarization of Independent Directors 25(7) Yas
Declaration from Independent Director 25(8) & (9] Yes
D & O Insurance for Independent Directars 25(10) Yes




Frick India Liinited

Memberships in Committees 26(1) Yes
Affirmation with compliance to code of conduct from members of Board of | 26(4) Yes
Directors and Senior Management Personnel

Disclosure of Shareholding by Non-Executive Directors 26(3) Yes
Folicy with respect to Obligations of Directors and Senior Management 26(2) & 26(5) Yes

MATRIX SETTING OF SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

The Table gives the details of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in
the context of Company’'s business{es) and sector(s) for Company to function effectively and those actually

available with the Board.

5l. No. | Core Skills/ExpertisefCompetencies Available with the Board (Yes/
No)

1 Knowledge of Core Business i.e. Refrigeration Yes

2 Plant Management Yes

3 Strategic Planning Yes

4 Product Development and Marketing Yes

5 Knowledge of Macro Environment vis-a-vis Industry Yes

6 Financial Literacy Yes

7 Ability to read Financial Staterents Yes

In Compliance with the requirements specified under (i) to Para C of the Schedule ¥ to the SEBI [LODR)
Regulations, 2015, the Confirmation is hereby provided that in the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors
fulfill the Conditions specified in these regulations and are Independent of the Management of the Frick India

Limited.

Date: May 24, 2023

Place: New Delhi

For AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
FRICK INDIA LIMITED

(Jasmohan Singh) (Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Managing Director Director
00383412 00038529
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COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE AS PER REGULATION 17(8) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

To

The Board of Directors
Frick India Limited

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of Frick India
Limited ("the Company’), to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that;

d.

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended 31%

March, 2023 and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
any statements that might be misleading;

2. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with the existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by

the Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Management Committee have

confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness

of the same over the financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit

Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and

the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit

Committee:

1. significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;

2. significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the

management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over

financial reporting.

Date: May 24, 2023 For FRICK INDIA LIMITED

Place: New Delhi (Jasmohan Singh) {Sharad Bhatnagar)

Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
00383412 PAN. ADCPB1782B
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ANNEXURE “E"

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members of

FRICK INDIA LIMITED

21.5 KM Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad, Haryana -121003

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Frick India Limited, for the
Financial Year ended 31 March, 2023 as stipulated in Regulations 17, [17A], 18, 19, 20, 22, 23, 24A, 25, 26, 27
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (collectively
referred to as SEBI| (LODR) Regulations, 2015).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to
ensure the compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015. My examination was limited to a review of procedures and implementation thereof, adopted
by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit
nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and the
representations made by the Directors and the management, we hereby certify that the Company has complied
with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned SEBI (LODR) Regulations,
2015, during the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023,

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid Regulations and may not be
suitable for any other purpose.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.05.2023 ADITI GUPTA
Company Secretary in Whole-Time Practice
M/s Aditi Agarwal & Associates, Company Secretaries
Peer Reviewed Firm 2200/2022
FC5: 5410
CP No: 10512
UDIN: FOOS410E000325462
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ANNEXURE “F"

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Statement of Particulars of Employees pursuant to Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2)
of Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial personnel) 2014

Name & Age Designation, Nature of | Qualification/ Gross Last Employment
Duties and date of | EXPerience Remuneration Designation/ MName
Rs. In Lakhs

commencement of of the Company/
employment period

Mr. Jasmohan Singh | Managing Director/ | B. Tech (Electrical) | 247.28 MA

(57 Years) Managerial  functions/ | 35 Years.
12.10.1986

Notes:

1. The nature of employment is contractual and terminable by notice on either side.
2. Designation of the employee denotes his nature of duties.
3. Gross remuneration includes salary, provident fund, commission and other perks like Medical

reimbursement / Insurance & Electricity.

Calculation of Remuneration of Managing Director

sl Particulars Amount
No. (Rs. in Lakhs)
1. Gross Salary
a. Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act 1961 171.60
b. Walue of Perquisites u/s 17(2) Income tax Act 1961 62.72
c. Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income Tax Act. | g.op
1561
Stock Option 0.00
Sweat Equity 0.00
Commission 0.00
as % of profit 0.00
others, specify 0.00
5. Others, Please Specify 12.96
Total (A) 247.28
upto Ceiling limit as per the Companies Act, 2013

*Provident Fund of Rs. 12.96 Lakhs, Perqusits of Rs. 62.72 Lakhs and Remuneration of Rs, 171.60 Lakhs, aggregates

to Rs. 247.28 Lakhs
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ANNEXURE "G"

DISCLOSURE BY THE LISTED ENTITY

5l Mo. Particulars Details

1. the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the 51:1
employees of the comparny for the financlal Year

2. % increase in remunerations of each Director or KMP, if any, in the financial year
rAD 7.26
CFO 16.14
g 21.53

3. % increase in the median remunerations of employees in the financial year -0.51%
the Number of permanent employee on the rall of Company 725
the explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance
O an averege, employess recelved on annuol increase of 10% (n indio
The ndividua facrements varied from 5 % to 20 %, based on inaiviaua performance

&. comparisen of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the
performance of the company
*Aggregote remuneration of Key Manogerial Personnel [KMB] in FY 2022-23 342 .06
Revenue (Rs. In Lakhs) 26927.00
*Remiineration of Key Monagerial Persannel (KMP) in FY 2022-23 (as % of Revenue) 0.33
Profit before Tax (PBT) (Rs. In Lakhs) 385646
*Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) in FY 2022-23 {os % of PBT) £.A7

2 variations in the market capitalization of the company, price earmings ratio as at | Mot applicable, since Shares
theclosing dateof the current financial year and previous financizl year and | of the Company are not
percentage increase over decrease in the market guotations of the shares of the | traded on Stock Exchange
company in comparison to the rate at which the company came out with the last
publie offer in case of listed companies, and in case of unlisted companies, the
variations in the net worth of the company as at the close of the current financial year
and previous financial year

8 average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the | 10.07% (Employees other
managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparisan with the percentile | than Managerial
increase in the rmanagerial remuneration and Justification thereof and point out if | Personnel)& 38%({Managerial
there are any exceptional circumnstances for increase in the managerial remuneration | Personnsl)

9. comparison of the each remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the company
Rs. in Lakhs Managing Director C.F.O. C.5.
Remuneration In FY 2022-23 247 28 78.16 16.62
Revenue 36327.00
Remuneration as % of 0.67 0.21 0.04
Revenue
Profit bafore Tax (PBT) 2856.46
Remuneration as % of PET 641 2.03 0.43

10. the key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the Mot Applicable
directors;

11. the ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who MNone
are not directors but recelve remuneration In excess of the highest paid director during
the year; and

12, affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the company Yes

(]
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5l. No. Particulars Details
1. the financial summary or highlights Refer Page Mo
02

2. the change in the nature of business, if any; Mo Change

3. the details of directors or key managerial personnel who were appointed or have resigned | Mot applicable

during the year

4, narnes of companies which have become or ceased to be its Subsidiaries, joint ventures or | Not applicable

associate companies during the year;

5. the details relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act, Mot applicable
a.accepted during the year Mot applicable
b.remained unpaid or unclaimed as at the end of the year; Not applicable
c.whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest

thereon during the year and if so, number of such cases and the total amount

involved -

at the beginning of the year; Mot applicable
maximum during the year; Mot applicable
at the end of the year; Mot applicable

&, the details of deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the | Mot applicable

Act;

7. the details of significant and materlal orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals | Not applicable

impan:tin; the m concern status and company’s operations in future

8. the details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial | Refer Auditors

Statements. Report
For AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Date: May 24, 2023 FRICK INDIA LIMITED
Place: New Delhi {Jasmohan Singh) (Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Managing Director Director
00383412 00038529
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ANMNEXURE “H”

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
{Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule \/ Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members

FRICK INDIA LIMITED

21.5 K Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad, Haryana -121003

We have examined the relevant registers, returns, records, forms and disclosures received from the Directors of
Frick India Limited (CIN: L748539HR1962PLCO02618), having its registered office at 21.5 Km Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad, Haryana 121003 (hereinafter referred as “the Company”), produced before us by the Company for
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C Sub
Clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015 for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023,

In our opinion and to the best of our inforrmation and according to the verifications and examination of the
disclosures under section 184, 164, 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") and the status of Director
|dentification Mumber of all directors of the Company as per web portal of Ministry of Corporate Affairs e,
www.mca.gov.in, as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its Company
Secretary, we hereby certify that none of the below named Directars on the Board of the Company as on March
31, 2023, have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed as director or continuing as directors of any
company by the S=curities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other statutory
autharity.

5. No. Director Mame of Director Designation
Identification
Number (DIN)
1. 00383412 Mr, Jasmohan Singh Managing Director
2. 05269698 Ms. lasleen Kaur Queenie Singh Mon-Executive Director
3. 05270533 Ms. Gurleen Kaur Non-Executive Director
4, Q0038529 Mr. Ramesh Chandra Jain Independent Director
5. 05357322 Mr. Divakar lagga Independent Director
G, 00493392 Mr. Govindarajula Bhaskara Rao Independent Director

Ensuring the eligibility of the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
managemesnt of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the basis of our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

This certificate is based on the information and records available up to this date and we have no responsibility
to update the certificate for the events and circumstances occurring after the date of the certificate.

Place: New Delhi
Date; 17.05.2023 ADITI GUPTA
Company Secretary in Whole-Time Practice
M /s Aditi Agarwal & Associates, Company Secretaries
Peer Reviewed Firm 2200/2022
FCS: 9410
CP No: 10512
UDIN: FOOS410E000325418
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AMMNEXURE “1”

Principles and Policies of Business Responsibility (ESG)
Intreduction:

This is an overarching policy in line with the nine principles of the National Voluntary Guidelines on Social,
Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of business issused by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and
requirement under Regulation 34(2)(f) of the Securiiesand Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Reguirements) Regulations,2015.

Frick India Limited ("FIL") is fully committed to the introduction of BusinessResponsibility Policy and intends that
business responsibility initiatives should become embedded wherever appropriate into its policies and practices,
to the benefit of its internal and external stakeholders. This Palicy is intended to ensure that the FIL contributes
towards the sustainable development and fulfils its social, environmental and economic responsibilities.

As required under Regulation 34({2)(f) it has become mandatory for the top one thousand listed companies based
on market capitalization (calculated as on 31" March of every financial year) to include in its Annual Repart,
Business Responsibility Report (BRR) now known as Business Responsibility and sustainability Report (BRSR)
describing the initiatives taken by them from an environmental, social and governance perspective {ESG) in the
format as specified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEB1) from time to time.

Key principles:

The Company has adopted the following nine key principles of the Business Responsibility envisaged in National
Voluntary Guidelines on 5ocial, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of business issued by the
Ministryof Corporate Affairs and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

11. Frick India Limited believes in value based governance and practices. The Board of Directors and senior
managemeant have a responsibility to set exemplary standards of ethical behavior, both internally within the
organization, as well as in their external relationships. Every employee of FIL shall conduct himself and deal on
behalf of the company with professionalism, honesty and integrity, while conforming to high moral and ethical
standards.

1.2, Frick India Limited shall create / develop necessary governance structures, procedures and practices to
ensure ethical conduct at all levels; and to promote the adoption of this principle across the value chain.
1.3. Frick India Limited shall discharge its responsibility on financial and other mandatory disclosures,

1.4. Frick India Limited shall ensure that genuine concerns of misconduct/ unlawful conduct can be reported in
a responsible and confidential manner through its Vigil Mechanism.

1.5. Frick India Limited shall encourage its business partners and third parties with whom it conducts business
to abide by this policy.

1.6. Frick India Limited shall report on the status of adoption of these Guidelines, as necessary.

2.1, Frick India Limited shall assure safety and aoptimal use of all the resources over the business lifecycle

2.2, Frick India Limited shall work towards ensuring that services are delivered embedding the principles of
ethics, occupational health, safety and environment.

2.3, Frick India Limited shall continue to progressively factor in relevant social and environmental considerations
during the process of development of rendering of services,

2.4, Frick India Limited shall encourags its business partners and third parties with whorm it conducts business to
abide by this policy.
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Policy 3: Well-being of all Empl

3.1 Frick India Limited shall provide and maintain equal opportunities at the time of recruitment as well as during
the course of employment irrespective of caste, creed, gender, race, religion, disability or sexual orientation.

3.2 Frick India Limited shall provide facilities for the wellbeing of the employees including those with special
needs.

3.3 Frick India Limited shall provide a workplace environment that is safe, hygienic, humane, and which upholds
the dignity of the employess. The Company shall create awareness of these provisions to the employees and
training them on a regular basis.

3.4 Frick India Limited shall endeavar in finding suitable post for differently able people,

Palicy 4: Stakeholders’ Engagement

4.1 Frick India Limited shall systematically identify stakeholders, understand their concerns, defining the
purpose and scope of engagement, and cornmitment to engage withthem.

4.2 Frick India Limited shall acknowledge responsibility and be transparent about the impact of the policies,
decisions & services,

Palicy 5: Human Rights

5.1 Frick India Limited shall integrate respect for human rights in management systems, in particular through
assessing and managing human rights impacts of operations, and ensuring all individuals impacted by the
husiness have access to grievance mechanisms.

5.2 Frick India Limited shall recognize and respect the human rights of all relevant stakeholders and groups,
including that of communities, consumers.

5.3 Frick India Limited shall, within its sphere of influence, promote the awareness and realization of human
rights across their value chain.

5.4 Frick India Limited shall encourage its business partners and third parties with whom it conducts business
to abide by this policy.

Palicy & : Protection of Environment

6.1 Frick India Limited shall utilize natural and man-made resources in an optimal and responsible manner
and ensure the sustainability of resources.

6.2 Frick India Limited shall proactively persuade and support the value chaln to adopt this policy.

6.2  Frick India Limited shall make its employeea’s environment conscious by training and conducting safety
audits, tanning, performance efficiency studies at werk places,

6.4 Frick India Limited shall ensure trees and natural habitat are preserved and enhanced that includes
planting trees on annual basis.

Palicy 7: Responsible advocacy

7.1 AsaCorporate Citizen, the Company understands its responsibility to function within the democratic set
up and the constitutional framework. The Company and its employees respect the legal [ regulatory
framework and shall comply with all the applicable provisions of existing local, state, national, and
international laws. They shall also fallow and obey the paolicies, procedures, rules and regulations relating to
the business of the Company.

7.2 Frick India Limited believes that policy advocacy must preserve and expand public good.
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Policy 8: Inclusive growth and equitable development

8.1 Frick India Limited has been and will continue to give emphasis to the conservation of enviranment while
conducting its business through lot of means like energy efficiency, product efficiency and efficient repair, best
utilization of energy, re-consumption, recycle after life span, using alternative and interlinked devises, designing
equipment for heat reclaim for higher co-efficient of performance [COP).

8.2 Frick India Lirited shall endeavor in making equipment design suitable to capture and store gases including
liguefaction to periodic review of internal consumption of energy, source and consumption of energy.

Policy 9: Customer Value
9.1 Frick India Limited shall take into account the overall well-being of the customers and that of society.

9.2 Frick India Limited shall exercise due care and caution while providing services that result in over
exploitation of natural resources or lead to excessive conspicuous consumption,

9.3 Frick India Limited shall provide adeqguate grievance handling mechanisms to address customer concerns and
feedback.

9.4 Frick India Limited shall exercise periodic review of external consumption of our product and services.

10. Implementation

The policy shall be appropriately communicated within the Company across all levels and shall be
displayed on the Company’s wehsite.

The Company Secretary through the functional heads of the business shall be responsible for ensuring
that the palicy is implemented throughout the Company.

Any grisvances/ complaints with respect to violation of the policy shall be reported to the Company
Secretary.

11. Amendment:

The Business Responsibility pelicy would be subject to revision / amendment in accordance with the
guidelines as may be issued by the regulatory authorities or Voluntary organizations in Business
Responsibility field.

The Company reserves its right to alter, modify, add, delete or amend any of the provisions of this
policy,

The power to interpret and administer the policy shall rest with the Board whose decision will be final
and binding. The Board is also empowered to do make any supplementary rules [ order for effective
implementation of the policy.

For AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Date: May 24, 2023 FRICK INDIA LIMITED

Place: New Delhi

{lasmohan Singh) (Ramesh Chandra Jain)
Managing Director Director
00383412 00038529




Frick India Limited

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.8 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Marnogeriol Personnel) Rules, 2014]
Ta,

The Members,
Frick India Limited

21.5 Km, Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad (Haryana) -121003

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Frick India Limited (hereinafter called “the Company’). Secretarial Audit was
canducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory

compliances and expressing our opinion therean,

Based on our verification of the Frick India Limited, books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Cornpany, its officers, agents
and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period covering the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023, complied with the
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-

mechanisim in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by
Frick India Limited (“the Company”) for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2023 according to the provisions

of:

li} The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act’) and the rules made thereunder;
{ii}  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 {*SCRA") and the rules made thereunder;
{iii} ~ The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

{iv]  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1929 ('FEMA’) and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment [(‘FDI'), Overseas Direct Investment {'0ODI") and External Commercial

Borrowings(ECB); (Mo FDI, ODI and ECB was taken by the company during the Audit Period)

[w) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 ('SEBI Act’):-
{a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations,
2011;
(b} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
{c)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India {lssue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2009; (Mot Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period)

(7
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(vi)

(wii)

(d)

f)

(=)

(h)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 (Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008
(Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 {Not
Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buy Back of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (Not Applicable
to the Company during the Audit Period);

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and other applicable rules,

regulation and other communications issued from time to time.

OTHER LAWS AS APPLICABLE TO THE COMPANY:

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
()

()
(g)
(h)
(i)

(k)
()

The Factories Act, 1948 and the rules made thereunder,

The Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and rules made thereunder;

The Minimum Wages Act, 1948 and rules made thereunder;
Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948 and rules made thereunder;

The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and the rules made
thereunder:

The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 and the rules made thereunder;

The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 and the rules made thereunder;
The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and the rules made thereunder;
The Trade Union Act, 1926 and the rules made thereunder;

The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 and the rules made thereunder;

The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 and the rules made thereunder;

The Apprentices Act, 1961 and the rules made thereunder;

(m)} The Employees Compensation Act, 1923 and the rules made thereunder;

(]
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(n) Personal Injuries (Compensation Insurance) Act 1963 and the rules made thereunder;

(o) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 and the rules made thereunder;

(p) The Matermity Benefit Act, 1961 and the rules made thereunder;

{g) The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013 and
the rules made thereunder;

{r) The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946 and the rules made thersunder;

(s) The Noise Pollution (Regulation and Control) Rules, 2000

(t} The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and the rules made thereunder;

(u) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and the rules made thereunder;

(v) The Information Technology Act, 2000 and the rules made thereunder;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standard-1 and Secretarial Standard-2 as issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
and notified by Central Government,

(i}  The Listing Agreemant (to the extent applicable during Audit peried) entered into by the Company with
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India and Securitizs and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to the following chsenations:

\We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The Board compaosition is as per the applicable provisions of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were
sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out by majority as recorded in the minutes of

the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, we have observed that:

Pursuant to the provision of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Investor Education and
Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016, a company whose dividend
remains unpaid/unclaimed for a period of seven consecutive years shall be required to transfer such shares to the

special purpose DEMAT Account, accordingly, the Company was required to transfer such sharaes into DEMAT
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Account of |EPF. \We have been informed that during the Financial Year 2017-18, 2018-19, 2019-20, 2020-21 and
2021-22, the Company has been receiving several request(s) from certain sharsholders claiming their unpaid
dividend for past years and therefore due to change in shareholders details as available in the records of the
Company, the Company is taking time in identifying the authenticity of the registered sharehaolders, who have not
encashed the dividend warrants for a continuous period of last seven years and hence, Form IEPF-4 for filing of
statement of shares transfer to |EPF could not be filed till date. The management of the Company is taking

appropriate measures to comply with the above mentioned provision of the Act.

Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.05.2023 ADITI GUPTA
Company Secretary in Whole-Time Practice
M/s Aditi Agarwal & Associates, Company Secretaries
Peer Reviewed Firm 2200/2022
FCS: 9410
CP No: 10512
UDIN: FOO9410E000325231

MOTE: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as "‘Annexure A’ and forms an integral

part of this report.

o
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‘ANNEXURE A’

Tao,

The Members,
Frick India Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obfain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done based on the
provided documents/detalls/information provided by the Company. We believe that the processes an
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our ocpinion.

d

3, We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
company.

4,  Where ever reguired, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc,

5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards Is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis,

6. The compliance of Industry specific laws as applicable to the Company is the responsibility of the senior
executive(s) of the concerned department/team of the Company. Hence, the verification of the said
compliances is done based on the information/documents/compliance certificate as provided by them.

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficac
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

¥
Place: New Delhi
Date: 17.05.2023 ADITI GUPTA

Company Secretary in Whole-Time Practice

M/s Aditi Agarwal & Associates, Company Secretaries
Peer Reviewed Firm 2200/2022

FCS: 9410

CP No: 10512

UDIN: FOD9410E000325231

i |
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133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estirmates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going cancern
basis of accounting unless Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstaterment, whether due to fraud or ervor, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise frorm fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 5As, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
errar, design and perform audit procedures respensive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fargery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143 {2) (i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectivenass of such controls,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosuras made by management.

Conclude on the appropriatensss of manageament's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
an the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
matarial uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditer's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events In & manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intarnal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independesnce, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outwaigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

T3
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of FRICK INDIA LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements
Opinion

‘We have audited the accompanying financial staterents of FRICK INDIA LIMITED ("the Company®), which comprise
the Balance Sheet as at 31% March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (induding Other Comprehensive Incomea),
the Statement of Changes in Eguity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notas to the
financial statements, incduding a summary of the significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory inforrmation
{herein after referred to as the “financial statements”).

In cur opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March,
2023, its Profit (including Other comprehensive income), changes in eguity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (S4s) specified under Section 143(10) of the
Act, Dur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditar's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of sur repert. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statzments under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled cur other ethical respensibilities in accordance with these requiremeants and the Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financlal statements of the current period, These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whaole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. We have determined that no key audit matters to be cormmunicated in our report.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors Is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual repert, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion therson.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position/ state of affairs,
financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under Section
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstaternents in the finandal statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic declsions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider gquantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

b}

c)

d}

e}

gl

As reguired by the Companles (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order®), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act, we give in the "Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable,

As required by Section 143{3) of the Act, we report that:

We haye sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books,

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of Companies [Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March, 2023 taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disgualified as on 31% March, 2023 from being appointed as
a director In terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act,

With respeet to the adequacy of the internal finandal controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”. Our report expresses
an unmadified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal financial
controls over finandal reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its finandal position in its financial
statements — Refer Note No. 32 to the financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or Indian Accounting Standards, for
material foreseeable lossas, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts; and

Thers were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

[a) The management has represented that to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note no
57 to the financial statements, no funds (which are material either individually or in ageregate) have
been advanced or loaned or investad (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign
entities {“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons ar entities identified
in any mannaer whatsaever by ar an behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Uldmate Beneficiaries.

i) Tha manzgement has represented that to the bast of its knowledge and balief, as disclosed in note no
57 to the financial statemeants, no funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have
been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly ar indirectly, lend or invest in aother persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantas,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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ANNEXURE “A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

{Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

i

(2)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(a)

{b)

(&) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative details
and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plant and Equipment by
which Property, Plant and Equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which
in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of its Property, Plant
and Equipment. Based on information and records provided, no material discrepancies were noticed on
such verification,

According to the infarmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
registered sale deed / transfer deed [ conveyance deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds of
all the immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements included in property, plant and
equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date,

The Company has not revalued any of its property, plant and equipment () and intangible assets during
the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and records provided, no proceedings have
been initiated during the vear or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2023 for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Proparty Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016}
and rules made thereunder.

Az per the physical verification program, the inventories of the Company were physically verified during
the year by the Management at reasonable intervals (except for stock lying with the third parties and in
transit, which have been verified based on confirmations have been received 'material received). In our opinian
and according to the information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the Management is appropriate having regard to the size of the Company and the nature
of its operations. Discrepancies noticed were not of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories on such physical verification of inventories when compared with books of account and have
been properly adjusted.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores, in aggregate, at points of time during the year, from banks or
financial institutions on the hasis of security of current assets. In our opinion and according to the
informaticn and explanations given to us, the guarterly returns [ statements filed by the Company with
such banks or finanelal Institutions are genarally In agraamant with the unaudited books of account of
the Company of the respective quarters.

The Company has made investrments in and granted loans to other parties during the year and has
not provided guarantee or security granted advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to
companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the yvear,

Particulars Loans {Rs. in Lakhs)
A, Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year:
- Others 91.95

B, Balance cutstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of
above cases:
- Others 67.62

During the year, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of all the above-
mentioned loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. Further,
during the year, the Company has not provided guarantees, provided security and granted advances in
the nature of loans to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
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(c] Based on such audit procedures that we have considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (a) and (b) above as required by Rule 11(e) of Companies [Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014,
as amended, contains any material mis-statement.

v. The dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act,
as applicable. As stated in Note No, 16.1 to the financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company
has proposed final dividend for the year which is subject to the approval of the members at the ensuing Annual
General meeting. The dividend proposed is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as applicable,

vi. Proviso to Rule 3({1) of the Companias (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using
accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company
with effect from 1st April, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11{g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023,

h) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the managerial
remuneration for the year ended 31st March, 2023 has been paid/ provided for by the Company to its directors
in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act,

For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 301051E

({Gaurav Lodha)

Partner

Membership No. 507462
UDIN: 23507462BGYDID5228
Place: New Delhi

Date: 24" May, 2023
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wi.

Wi,

(c] Inrespect of loans granted by the Company as stated above in para (a), the schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest, if any has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been
regular.

(d} According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, in
respect of loans granted by the Company, there s no overdue amount remaining cutstanding as at the
balance sheet date.

fe] According to information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed, Mo
loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed or extended or
fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parfies.

if} According to information and explanations given to us and bazed on the audit procedures performed,
the Company has not granted any loans either repayable on demand or without epecifying any terms or
period of repayment during the year, Hence, reporting under clause 3(1i)(f) is not applicable.

According to the informationand explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, made
investments or provided guarantees or securities that are covered under the provisions of sections 185
or 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, and hence reporting under clause 3 {iv) of the Order is not applicable.

As per the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not accepted any public
depasits from public within the provision of Section 73 to 76 of the Act or any other relevant provisions
of the Act and Rules framed thereunder (to the extent applicable). Therefore, the provisions of clause
3(v] of the Order are not applicable to the Company. We have been informed that no order has been
passed by the Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Banl of India ar any
Court or other Tribunal in this regard.

Wae have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the company pursuant to the rules made by
the Central Government for the malntenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act in respect of the
Company's products and services to which the said rules are made applicable and are of the opinion that prima
facie, the prescribed records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed
examination of the said records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complate.

a. According to the records of the Company, the Company is been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues with
the appropriate authorities to the extent applicable and there were no undisputed statutory dues payable
in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, 5ales Tax,
Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, cass and other material statutory dues in
arrears as at 31% March 2023 for a period of maore than six raonths from the date they become pavable.

b.  According to the records and information & explanations given to us, details of statutory dues referraed
to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on 315t March 2023 on account of disputes
are given below:

(Rs. Lacs)

Mature of statute Mature of Amount * Period to which the | Forum where dispute is pending

dueas amount relates

Worls Contract Tax a9z

Bhubaneshwar Works 0.82 F.¥.1990-91 & 1991- | Matter pending before Tribunal

Act, Odisha Contract tax

West Bengal Sales Sales Tax 0.32 F.Y. 1975-76 Appeal pending before Tribunal

tax Act

1.05 F.Y. 1976-77 Appeal pending before Appellate
Authority

Incorme Tax Act, Income Tax .09 ALY 2006-07 Appeal pending with ITAT
1961

1.30 AY, 2012-13 Appeal pending with
CIT(Appeals)

9.28 ALY, 2017-18
7.38 AY. 2018-19
5.43 AN, 2020-21
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*Met of tax paid under protest and this to be read with Note No. 32,

will.

Hi.

Hii.

Hiil.

Hiv.

Thera wera no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as
Income in the tax assessmeants under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (42 of 1961) during the year,

(a) In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings ar in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

(b} The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
any government authority,

()] Tothe best of our knowledge and belief, in our opinion, term loans availed by the Company were, applied
by the Company during the year for the purposes for which the loans were obtained. There were no
unutilized term loans at the beginning of the year.

(d) The Company has not taken raisad any funds during the yvear and hence, reporting under clause 3 (ix){d) of
the Order is not applicable.

(e} The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture during the year and hence, reporting
under clause 3{ix){e] and {f} of the Order is not applicable.

fa) The Cempany has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures {fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3{x}(b) of the Order
iz not applicable to the Company.

(a) Based on the audit procedures performed and en the basic of information and explanations provided by
the management, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company hasz been noticed or
reported during the year.

(b) To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(e] As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints recelved by the
Company during the year.

In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a nidhi
company and hence, reporting under clause 3{xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations and records made available by the management of the Company
and audit procedures parformed, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have
been disclosed in the finandal statements ete, as raquired by the applicable Indian accounting standards,

{a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size and the
natura of ts businass,

(k) We have considered, the intermnal audit reports issued to the Company during the year and 4l date in
determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures.

On the basis of records made available to us and according to information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with the directors or persons connected with its directors
and hence provisions of saction 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

i. The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-18 of the Reserve Bank of India Act 1934 and hence
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reporting under clause 3 (xvil{a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not applicable. As per the information and
representation provided by the management, the Group does not have any CIC as part of the group and

accordingly reporting under clause 3 Dovi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

®vii,

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

sviil, There has been no resignation of the statutary auditors of the Company during the year.

K,

i,

On the basis of the financial ratios (as stated in note no, 56 to the financial statements), ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities (as per the
payment schedule/ re-scheduled), other information accompanying the financial statements and
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of
the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that
Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when
they fall due within a period of ane year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and/ or certificate with respect to
meeting financial obligations by the Company as and when they fall due. \We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due,

(a) The Company has fully spent the required amount towards Corporate Social Responsibility [CSR)
and there are no unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VI to the Companies Act or special account in compliance with the provision of sub-
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order
is not applicable for the year.

{b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are reguired to be transferred to
a special account in compliance of provisions of sub section (8) of Section 135of Companies Act, 2013.
Thizs miatter has been disclosed in note no 44 to the financial statements.

The Company did not have any subsidiary or associate or joint venture and thus Company is not
required to prepare Consolidated Financlal Statements. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xxi)
of the Order is not applicable.

For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 301051E

{Gaurav Lodha)

Parther

Membership No. 507462
UDIN: 23507462BGVDID5228
Place: New Delhi

Date: 24% May, 2023
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ANMNEXURE “B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

“We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of FRICK INDIA LIMITED ("the
Company”) as of 21% March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is respansible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the intermal control over financial reporting criteria =stablished by the Company
considering the essential components ofinternal controlstated inthe Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountantsofindia. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to respective Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, andthe timely preparation
ofreliable financial information, asrequired underthe Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Company's internal financial controls over financial repeorting
of the Company based on our audit, We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, tothe extentapplicable toan audit ofinternal financial controls. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note reguire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system owver financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectivenessofinternal control based an the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis forour
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the rellability of financial reperting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal
financial control over financial reporting includes those pelicies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors ofthe Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
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Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may cccur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

Inour opinion, tothe best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adeguate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2023, basad
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Mote on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ofindia.

For LODHA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 301051E

(Gaurav Lodha)

Partner

Membership No. 507462
UDIN: 23507462BGYVDID5228
Place: New Delhi

Date: 24" May, 2023
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Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2023

(R&. In Lakhs)

As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
Particulars MNote Mo. 2023 2022
ASBETS
(1) Non-current assets
{a) Proparty, Plant and Equipment 2 986.77 983.13
(b} Capital work-in-progress 2 1.94 -
(e} Intangible assets 3 14.28 20.82
{d) Financial Assets
{1 Investments F ¥ 3,074.42 2,440.56
(i) Loans 5 16.19 17.00
(i) Other Financial Assets 6 1,118.65 4,299.78
(e} Deferred taxassets (Net) T 184.16 08.30
(f) Other Non Current Assets & 4.56 0.59
Total Mon-Current Assets 5,401.07 7.860.18
{2) Current assels
{a) Imeentories ] 8,994.88 6,129.79
{b) Financial Assets
vestments 4B . 134.04
() Trade receivables 10 8,573.80 7.595.24
(i} Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 131.45 1,872.95
(v} Bank balances other than (i) Above 11 9,610.93 3,258.27
(v Loans 12 51.43 38.65
(vi) Other Fnancial Assets 13 272.55 B4.18
{c) Other current assets 14 1,719.48 1,403.43
Tetal Current Assets 29,354.58 20,516.55
Total Assets 34,755.65 28,376.73
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a} Equity Share Capital 15 60.00 60.00
(b} Other Equity 16 23,115.42 20,303.98
Total Equity 23.175.42 20,363.98
LIABILITIES
{1) Non-Curre nt Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings 17 11.00 7.21
(b} Provisions 18 570.84 491.76
Total Non-Current Liabilities 581.84 498.97
{2) Current Liabilities
{a) Financial Liabiltes
(i} Bormowings 19 1.714. 4% 1.557.91
(i} Trade payables 20
Total outstanding dues of micro 28.13 27.41
enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other 2,049.81 1,508.86
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(i) Other Financial Liabikties: 21 1.039.59 912.40
(b} Other current liabilities 22 5,226.21 2,884.94
{c} Provisions 23 252.38 205.04
{d}) Current Tax Liabilties (Net) 24 GET.64 417.22
Total Current Liabilities 10,998.39 7.513.78
Total Equity and Liabilities 34.755.65 28,376.73
| Significant Accounting Policies 1

The accompaning notes referred to above form an Integral part of the financlal statements.

Az par our report of even date

For Lodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.301051E

Gauray Lodha
Parther

M.No. 507462
FPlace: Mew Delhi
Date: 24.05.2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Jasmehan Singh
Managing Director
DIN - 00383412

Sharad BEhatnagar
Director (Finance & Taxation)

PAN ADCPE1TEZE

Frick India Limited

Ramesh C. Jain
Director
DM - 00038525

Amit Singh
Company Secretary
M.No. A46813
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the yvear ended 31st March, 2023

(Rs. In Lakhs)

| Significant Accounting Policies

Mote Far the year ended For the year ended
EAE s No. 31st March, 2023 31st March, 2022
I. Rewenue from oparations 25 36,282.80 28,046.69
IL  Other lncome 26 644.20 725.11
I, Tetal Income {1 +11) 36,927,00 2%,771.80
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 27 25 56277 20,444.34
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and
Stock in Trade 28 (1,315.95) (1,355.05)
Employee benefit expense 29 5106.44 4,338.83
Finance costs 30 198.51 196.31
Depreciation 2 206.24 203.00
Amertization Expenses 3 9.13 14.141
Other Expenses N 3.,303.39 2.740.55
V. Total Expenses 33,070.54 26,582.09
V. Profit before tax (lll-1V) 3,356 46 2,189.M1
VI Tax exponsea:
{1) Current tax 1,100.00 5T8.00
{2) Deferred tax {78.20) (24.63)
{3) Provision for earlier years {17.55) -
Total tax exponse 1,004.25 553.37
Vil. Profit after tax [V-VI) 2.852.21 1,636.34
Will. Other compre hensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss
- Remeasurement of defined benefit plan (30.43) (14.89)
= Income Tax effect on above T.66 3.75
Total Other comprehensive income (VIII) (22.77) (11.14)
IX. Total Comprehensive income [(VI+WVII) 2,629.44 1,625.20
X.Earning per equity share (Face Value Rs.10/- each): 36
(1) Basic 475,40 272.73
(2) Diluted 475.40 2T2.73

The accompaning notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our repaort of aven date

Foer Lodha & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.301051E

Gaurav Lodha
Partner
M.No. 507462

Place: New Dealki
Date: 24.05.2023

For and on behalf of the Board

Jasmohan Singh
WManaging Director
DIN -D0383412

Sharad Bhatnagar
Director (Finance & Taxation)
PAN ADCPB1732B

Frick India Limited

Ramesh C. Jain
Dirsctor
DIN - 00038529

Amit Singh
Company Secretary
M.No, A46813
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March, 2023

For Lodha & Co.

Jasmohan Singh

A. Equity Share Capital
{Rs. In Lakhs)
Balance as at 1st April 2021 Changes in Balance as at 31st Changes in Equity | Balance as at 31st
Equiity Share March, 2022 Share Capital during March, 2023
Capital during 2022-23
2021-22
60.00 - 60.00 - 60.00
B. Other Equity
(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars Reserve & Surplus Other Comprehensive - Total
Income (OCI)
Ratained General Reserve | ltems that will not be
Earnings Reclassified to profit
or loss
Re-measurement of
the nat defined benefit
plans
‘Balance as at 1st April 2021 - 18,763.94 (67.16) 18.696.78
Profit for the year 1,636.34 - - 1,636.34
Dividend {18.00) - {18.00}
Transfer from Retained Earnings (1,618.34) 1.618.34 - -
Other Comprehensive income for - - (11.14) (11.14)
the year (Met of Taxes)
Balance as at 31=t March, 2022 - 20,382.28 (78.30) 20,303.98
Profit for the year 2,852.21 - - 2,852.21
Divide nd (18.00) - = {158.00)
Transfer from Retained Earnings (2,834.21) 2,634.21 - -
Other Comprehensive income for - - (22.7T) (22.77})
the period (Net of Taxes)
Balance as at 31st March, 2023 - 23.216.49 (101.07) 23,115.42
The accompaning notes referred to above form an integral part of the Financlal Statements.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

Frick India Limited

Ramesh C. Jain

Chartered Accountants Managing Director Director
Firm Regn, Ne.301051E DIN - 00383412 DIN - 00038529
Gaurav Lodha Sharad Ehatnagar Amit Singh
Partner Director (Finance & Taxation) Company Secretary
M.No. 507462 PAN: ADCPB1T82B M.Mo. A 46813

Place: New Dalhi
Date: 24.05.2023
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Cash flow stabement for the year ended 312t March, 2023

~ = {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particular =t March, 2023 33t March, 2022
&} CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Hat profit befars tax 1BEEAE 2,189
Depreciation 20624 203.00
Arnorization Expensss .13 14.11
{Profif)/Less on sale of Property, Plant & Equipement {Me) .20 {0.95)
Proparty, Plant & Equiprant Discardad 0346 1.40
Intercst Recmived (488.22) [432.18)
Dividend Received (737} {6.02)
{Profiff/Loss on <als of Imistnont (Net] - Non Cument [37.73) (20.31)
Urrealised (gain)Loss of irvestnent (Med) (32.08) (152.55)
Fimancs Cost 190,51 186,31
Operating profit baform working capital changas 5, TOEEZ 1,982,654
{Increasa)/Decreass In Trade Recebiables {a73.58) d54.18
{Increasa)/Decrease in Imeniores (2, 868.08) (&, 227.18)
{Increasa)/Decrmass in Ofher financal asscts and other f3211) 25.43
Assichs
Increase!{Decrease) in Other financial Eabiiies, provisbn 3,106,112 36387
and other Babilties
Cash generated from operations 2,638.38 1,008.91
Diiract Taxes paid (861.82) [B86.20)
MET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATING ACTIVTIES (L] 1,777.06 322.71
B H FLOYW FROM I TING ACTIVITIES
Irterest Recehed 201.T1 B8 30
Dividend Recebsed T.37 6.02
Purchess of Proparty, Plant & Equipmsnt {including CWIF) [213.07) [240.47)
Purchasa of Infangible Assats [ 7o) -
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.GE 2.0
Movarnant in offer Bank Balances (2,079.47) [TBA.92)
{Purchase}Sales of Imvesiments {616.86) 130.27
HET CASH FROM [USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES {B) [3,512.36) [182.20)
CHEASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (16.00) (18.00)
Fimanca Cost [148.51) [174.31)
Procesdsi{Repayment] fromfof short term bormowings 164.28 48.68
Proceeds/|Repyments) fromdof long fenm bomowdings €.06 (5.08)
HET GASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING AGCTIVITIES <) [E.20) (98.81)
MNET CASH FLOW DURING THE YEAR A+B+C {1, 741.50) .70
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS[OPENING EALAMCE) 1,872.98 1,641.25
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS(CLOSING BALANCE]) 131.45 1,672.95
{Refer Nole Mo 11 fo the Financial Stateinents)
Notes:
d} Total Liahilifias from Financing Activities Rs. In Lakhs
Particular For the year ended 315t WMarch, 2023 For the year ended 315t March_ 2022
Long Term Short Term Long Tern Short Term
Crpaning 1215 1,552.97 1723 1.454.39
Cach Flow Changes
Mat Inflowd| Repayinants) 606 15425 {5.08) 98.58
Nan-Cash Flow Changes - . - -
Clo=ing 18,21 1,707.22 1218 1.562.97
b} Previous year's flgures have besn re-groupsd | re-arranged whersver necessary.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board
Frick India Lirmiled
For Lodha & Go.

Charfered Accountants
Firm Regn. Me. M1 OS1E

Gaurav Lodha
Partnar

M.Mo. 507462
Place; New Delhi
Data: 24.05.2023

Jasmohan Singh
Managlng Direclar
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Sharad Bhatnagar
Director (Finance & Taxation]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023

1
L

COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Company Overview

Frick India Limited (the ‘Company’) is & public limited Company domiciled in India with its registered office
located at 21.5 Km., Main Mathura Road, Faridabad -121002, (Haryana). The Company is listed on the
Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of
industrial refrigeration & air-conditioning equipment,

These financial statements were approved and adopted by board of directors of the Company in thelr mesting
held on May 24, 2023,

Basis of Preparation of financial statements and Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

( i) Basis of Preparation of financial statements:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
thercinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies [Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended) and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and relevant amendments rules issued
thereafter. The Company has consistently applied the accounting policies used in the preparation of its
financial statements,

These financial statements have been prepared and presented under historical cost convention on accrual
basis, except for the itermns that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS. The financial
statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency and
all amounts are rounded to the nearest lakhs and two decimals thereof, except as otherwise stated.

(i} Significant accounting judgemaeants, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of these financial statements reguires management to make judgments, estirnates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies, the accounting disclosures made and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
Continuous evaluation is done of the estimates and judgments based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively,

Significant Accounting Policies

Property, Plant and Eguipment

(i} Recognition and Measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at acquisition cost net of tax/duty credits availed, (if any), less
accurnulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, (if any). Cost includes expenses directly
attributable to bringing the Asset to their location and conditions necessary for itto be capable of operating
in the manner intended by the management. Property, plant and eguipment which are not ready for intended
use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”. Advances paid towards the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as capital
advances under other non-current assets,

Subsegquent cost are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that is future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
Statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements, vupon sale and
disposition of the assets and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Assets costing Rs. 7500/- or less are charged to revenue in the year of purchase.

The Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year. If

any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such change is accounted for as a change in an

accounting estimate.
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e.

{ii) Depreciation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment has been provided on written down value method as per the
useful life of assets, as estimated by the management, which is in line with Schedulz || to the Companies Act,
2013, The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Building 30/60 years
Jig B Dies #-15 years
Plant and Equipments 15 years
Electrical Fitting & Instalation 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Viehicles 810 years
Office equipment S years
Computers 3/6 years
Refrigeration equipments 5 years
Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets are recognised, if the future economic benefits attributable to the assets are expected to
flow to the company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Such intangible assets are measured at
costless any accurmulated amortization and impairment losses, ifany.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of thelr expected
useful life. Estirmated useful life by major class of intangible assets are as follows:

Computer Software: 3 years

Design & Development: 5 years

The amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with finite useful life is
reviewed at the end of each financial year. If any of these expectations differ from previous estimates, such
change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate.

Research and development

Revenue Expenditure pertaining to research |5 charged to the staterment of profit & Loss.

Development costs of products are charged to the statement of profit and loss unless a product's
tachnological and commercial feasibility has been established, in which case such expenditure is
capitalized.

Inventories

Inventories arevalued as under:

a. Raw materials, components, construction materials, stores, spares and |oose tools atlower of cost or net
realisable value.

b. Work-in-progress at lower of material cost plus labour cost or net realisablevalue.

. Finished goods are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes related overheads,

d. Contract jobs in progress atsites are valued at |ower of Cost or net realisable value,

Cost 5 computed on first in first out basis. The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make
thesale.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash eguivalents includes cash and chegues in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks
where the original maturity isthree months or less and other short term highly liguid investments that are
readily convertible into cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes invalue,

Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial liability

or equity instrument of another entity,

a) Financial Assets

Thz Company recognizes financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, investments in securities
and other eligible current and non-current assets.
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b) Financial Liabilities

The Company recognizes financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the cantractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial liabilities include long-term and short-term loans and borrowings, trade and other payables and
other eligible current and nor-current liabilities.

Initial Measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the release of financial liabilities, which are not atfair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair
value of underlying financial liabilities on initial recognition. Trade payables that do not contain a
significantfinancing component are initially measured at their transaction price

Subsegquent M rem

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

i. Financial liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading. The
Company has not designated any financial liahilities upon initial measurement recognition at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are at each reporting date with
all the changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

il. Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method ("EIR"). Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation
is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profitand Loss,

Loans and borrowings

Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at | east twelve months after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Apayable is classified as "trade payable® if it is in respect of the amount due an account of goods purchased
or services received in the normal course of business. These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless paymentis notdue within 12 months after the reporting
period.

Derecognition

A Financial Liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The carrying amount of Property, plant and equipments, Intangible assets are reviewed ateach Balance Shest
date to assess impalrment if any, based on internal / external factors. An asset is treated as impaired, when
the carrying cost of asset excesds its recoverable value, being higher of valuein useand netselling price. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year inwhich an asset
is identified as impaired. The impairment loss recognised in prior accounting period is revarsed, If there has
been an improvement in recoverable amount.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to
the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services.

An entity shall account for a contract with a customer when all of the following criteria are met;
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Intial Measurement

At inital recognition, all financial assets are measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are
added to the fair value of underlying financial assets on initial recognition. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant inancing component areinitially measured at their transaction price.

Subsequent Measurement
Such financial assets are subsequently classified under following three categories according to the purpose

for which they are held. The classification is reviewed at the end of each reporting period,

i. Financial assets at amortised cost

At the date of initial recognition, are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and [nterest on
principal amount outstanding on specified dates. These financial assets are intended to be held until
maturity. Therefore, they are subsequently measured at amortised cost by applying the Effective Interest Rate
(EIR} method to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. The EIR amortisation is included as interest
income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised |n the profit or loss,

ii. Financdial assets at Fair value through other comprehensive Income

&t the date of initial recognition, are held to collect contractual cash flows of principal and Interest an
principal amount outstanding on specified dates, as well as held for selling. Therefore, they are subseqguently
measured at egach reporting date at fair value, with all fair value moverments recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income [OCI). Interest income calculated using the effective nterest rate (EIR) methaod,
impairment gain or loss and foreign exchange gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,
On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other Comprehensive Income
is reclassified from the OCI to Staterment of Profit and Loss.

i . Financial assets at Fair value through profit or loss

At the date of initial recognition, Financial assets are held for trading, or which are measured neither at
Amortised Cost ner at Fair Value through QCI. Therefore, they are subsegquently measured at each reporting
date atfair value, with all fair value movements recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Trade Receivables

& Recelvable is classified as a ‘trade receivable” if it is in respect to the amaount due from customers on
account of goods sold or services rendered in the ordinary course of business. All debts and advances are
reviewed by the management at the year end by taking into account their age, performance of job, complaints
received from customers and other factors. Provision Is made by the management after taking into
consideration all relevant facts.

Investment in equity Shares

Investrments in Equity Securities are subsequently measured at fair value through Profit and Loss, Any
subsequent fair value gain or loss is recognized through Profit or Loss.

Investments in mutual Funds

Investrments in Mutual Funds are subsequently measured at fair value through Profit and Loss. Any
subsequent fair value gain or loss is recognized through Profit or Loss Account,

Investments in bonds/debenture

Investments in bonds/debenture are subsequently measured at fair value through Profit and Loss, Any
subsequent fair value gain or loss is recognized through Profit or Loss Account

Derecognition

The company deracognizes a financial assetwhen the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
assetexpire or ittransfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109.

Impairmant

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets
which are net fair valued through profit or loss. Loss allowance for trade receivables with no significant
financing component is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. For all other financial assets, expected
credit losses arc measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk from initial recognition in which case those are measured at |ifetime ECL. The amount
of expected credit losses (or reverszal) thatis required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to the
amount that is required to be recognized is recognized as an impairment gain or loss in profitor loss.
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. the parties to the contract have approved the contract (in writing, orally or in accordance with other
customary business practices) and are committed to perform the irrespective obligations;

. the entity can identify each party’s rights regarding the goods or services to be transferred;

* the entity can identify the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred;

. the contract has commercial substance (i.e. the risk, timing or amount of the entity’s future cash flows
i5 expected to change as a result of the contract); and

. it is probable that the entity will collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
the goods or services thatwill be transferred to the customer,

In &valuating whether collectability of an amount of consideration Is probable, an entity shall consider only
the customer’s ability and intention to pay that amount of consideration when it 15 due. The amount of
consideration to which the entity will be entitied may be less than the price stated in the contract if the
consideration is variable because the entity may offer the customer a price concession

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of product is recognised atthe pointin time when contral of the asset is ransferred to the
customer, usually on dispatch of the goods from the factory/storage area/port respectively. Revenue from the
sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns and
allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates.

Other income

a. Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective
interest rate.

b. Dividend income is accounted in the period in which the right to receive the same is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the same

c. Export Incentives, interest on bonds & debenture and Insurance Claims are accounted for on receipt basis.

d. Other items of income are accounted as and when the right to receive such income arises and itis probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the cormpany and the amount of income can be measured refiably.

Employee Benefits

a) Defined contribution plans

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employees’ state insurance, labour welfare fund,
employee pension scheme, provident fund etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of
contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees. The above benefits are
classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company has no further defined obligations beyond the
monthly contributions.

b) Defined benefit plans

Retirement banefits in the form of gratuity are considered as defined benefit plan and determined on
actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method at the balance sheet date. Actuarial Gains or
Losses through re-measurement of the net obligation of a defined benefit liability or assetis recognized in
Other Comprehensive Income, Such re-measurements are not reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss in
subsequent periods. Other costs are accounted for in Statement of Profit and Loss,

¢} Short Term Employee Benefits

Al employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short
term employes benefits.,

Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc, and the
expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized during the period in which the employes renders related
service.

d) Other Employee Benefits

Entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognized when they accrue to employees, Sick leave can
anly be availed while annual leave can either be availed or encashed subject to a restriction on the maximum
number of accumulation af leave. The Company determines the liability for such accumulated leaves using
the Projected Accrued Benefit method with actuarial valuations being carried out at each Balance Sheet date.

Joh Expenses

The expenses incurred on various jobs by our customers and others for which the claims bills are received in
succeeding years have been provided for on estimate basis. The claim exceeding the amount of provisions are
accounted for in the year inwhich settlad.
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Claims realised
Claims realised for material lost or damaged are credited to Purchases in the year of settlement.

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing costincludes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement
of borrowi ngs . Borrowing costs, if any, directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalized, (if any). All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they cccur.

Income Taxes

Income tax is comprised of current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss, except to the extent it relates to items directly recognized in equity or in other comprehensive
income,

Current tax:

Current tax is the amount of income taxes payable in respect of taxable profit for a period. Taxable profit
differs from ‘profit befare tax' as reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or
expense thatare taxable or deductible in other years and itemns that are never taxable or deductible under the
Income Tax Act, 1961,

Current tax is measured using tax rates that have been enacted by the end of reporting period for the amounts
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,

Deferred tax :

Deferred tax is recognized using balance shest approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose at
reporting date. Deferred income tax assets and llabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income
intheyears inwhich those temporary differences are expectad to be recovered or settled.

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary difference can be
utilized. In case of temporary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction (other than business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit,

deferred tax ass=ts are not recognized,

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. However, in case of
tempaorary differences that arise from initial recognition of assets or liabilites in a transaction (other than
business combination) that affect neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit, deferred tax liabilities
are not recognized, Also, for temporary differences if any that may arise from initial recognition of goodwill,

deferred tax liabilities are not recognizad.

Off-setting of assets and liabilities:

The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilites, where it has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously,

In case of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities, the same are offset if the Company has a legally
enforceable right to set off corresponding current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liahilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the Company.

Pravisions and Centingent Liabilities

The Company recognizes provisions when a present obligation {legal or constructive} as a result of a past
event exists and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount
recoghized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding to settle such
obligation and the amount of such obligation can be reliably estimated.

Adisclosurefor a contingent liability is made when thereis a possible abligation or a present obligation that
may, but probably will not require an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or the amount of
such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When thereis a possible obligation or a present obligation in
respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remete, no provision or
disclosureis made.
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Segment Reporting

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture, supply and execution of Industrial
Refrigeration and Air conditioning systams. As the basic nature of these activities is governed by the same set
of risks and returns, therefore, has only one reportable segment.

Cash Flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals er accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or
payments and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows
from operating, Investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

Foreign Currency

Initial Recognition:

The financial statements are presentad in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the Company and
the currency of the primary economic envirenment in which the Company cperates.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are inftally recorded by the Company atits functional currency spot rates
at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognitien. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign eurrencies aretranslated at the functional currency spot rates ofexchange at the reporting date.
Foreign exchange gains and |osses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation

of monetary assets and liabilities deneminated in foreign currencies atyear end exchange rates are
generally recognized in the Statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs are presented in the statement of
profit and loss, within finance costs. All other foreign cxchange gains and losses are presented in the

statement of profit and loss on a net basis within other gains/ (losses).
Mon-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costin a foreign currency are translated using

the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary itermns measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The
gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item {i.e., translation differences on items
whaose fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively)

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholdars and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Lease

Right of Use Assets

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset, on a lease-by-lease basis, to measure that right-of-use asset an
amount egual to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the balance sheet irmmediately before the date of initial application.

The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised. Initial direct costs incurred
and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, the
recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to impairment test.

Lease Liabilities

The Company recognise a lease liability at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variablelease payments that depend on a lease by lease basis

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
|ease commencement date if the interest rate implicitin the lease is not readily determinable.
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Short-term Leases and leases of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases [i.e, those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases thatare considered of
low value, Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Fair Value Measurements
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value in accordance with the accounting policies
mentioned above.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
= |n the principal market for the asset or liability.

OR
= |n the absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole;
s Level 1- Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
= leyvel 2- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.
* |level 3- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable,
For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the
hasis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA"} notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA
amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

(@) Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements — The amendments require companies to disclose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information,
together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of
primary users of general-purpose financial statements. The Company does not expect this amendment to have

any significant impact on its financial statements.
(b) Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes — The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on

transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the
recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer
applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences. The Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impact on its financial
statements.

[c) Ind AS B = Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors = The amendments will help
entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in
accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definiticn,
accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty. The Company does not expect
this amendment to have any significant impactin its financial statements.
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3. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars EDP Software Design & Total

Gross Carrying Value [(Cost)
As at 01st April, 2021 193.45 62.91 256.36
Additions during the year -
Disposals during the year -

Other adjustments -
As at 315t March, 2022 193.45 62.91 256.36
Additions during the year 1.37 1.32 2,69
Disposals during the year _
Other adjustments -
As at 31st March, 2023 194.82 64.23 259.05

Accumulated Amortisation

As at 01st April, 2021 169.28 52.15 22143
Charge for the year 11.39 222 14.11
On disposals -

As at 31st March, 2022 181.17 54.37 235,54
Charge for the year 6.77 2.36 9,13
On disposals -

As at 31st March, 2023 187.94 56.73 244.67

MNet Carrying Value
As at 31st March, 2022 1228 B.54 20.82

As at 31st March, 2023 6.88 7.50 14.38

3.1 Amount spent for EDP software would be utilised for 2 years from the date of its occurrence and amount spent on Design and Develapment

would be utilised for 5 years from the date of its occurrence.
3.2 The Amortisation of the above mentioned intangible assets would be on the basis of stated useful life as assessed by management.
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4 A NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS - NON TRADE INVESTMENTS

{H2 in Lakhs)
[5No. PARTICULARS Face Units. As at 31st March, Units As at 31st March,
{Rs.)
{i)| QUOTED-LONG TERM INVESTMENTS
(&) |Imvestment in Equity Shares
{at Fair Value Through Profit & Loss)
Equity Shares of Axis Bank Limited 200 - 1.600.00 1247
Equity Shares of DLF Limited 200 - 12,500.00 47.56
Equity Shares of Jindal Stesl & Power Lid 5.00 - 300.00 1.60
Equity Shares of | T C Ltd 1.00 1100000 422 7, 000.00 17.56
Equity Shares of Canara Bank 1001 11,100.00 3158 1110000 2526
Equity Shares of ON G C 5.00 19, 35000 2422 23,250.00 3a.1
Equity Shares of Tata Consultancy Services Lid 1.00 1.408.00 45.14 1.408.00 G264
Equity Shares of Tata Steel Lid. 1.00 6.000.00 6.27 1,100.00 14.38
Equity Shares of HDFC Bank Ltd. 1.00 400,00 G4 400.00 5.88
Equity Shares of Gas Authority of India Lid. 10,00 3,198.00 3ar 2132.00 332
Equity Shares of ICIC1 Bank Limited. 200 - - 1,740.00 12.71
Equity Shares of Power Finance Corporation 10,00 - - 2,000.00 225
Equity Shares of Haro Motocorp Lid. 200 150.00 352 150.00 345
Equity Shares of Larsen & Toubro Lid. 200 120.00 280 2,070.00 36.59
Equity Shares of Hindustan Zinc Ltd. 200 2,000.00 587 2,000.00 6.19
Equity Shares of Dr. Reddy's Laboratories 500 200,00 924 20:0.00 861
Equity Shares of Infosys Limited 500 - - 220000 41.96
Equity Shares of Hindustan Unilever Limited 1.00 - - 230,00 4.71
Equity Shares of Hindustan Petrodeumn Corporation Ltd. 10,00 - - 1,500.00 4.04
Equity Shares of HDFC Lid 2.00 100.00 263 100,00 239
Equity Shares of Hindalco Industries Lid 1.00 TO0.00 284 T00.00 3.99
Equity Shares of Indusind Bank 10,00 150000 1.60 150.00 1.40
Equity Shares of Indian Oil Corporation 10,00 1.500.00 147 1,000.00 119
Equity Shares of Manti Suzuki India Ltd 5.00 50000 4.15 50.00 378
(b} |Inwestment in Equity Schemes of Muiual Fund
{at Fair Value Through Profit & Loss)
HDFC Mid Cap Opportunities. Fund - - 74,580.68 25.16
Canara Robeco Equity Diversfied- Regular Growth 364.53 0.7a 364.53 0.81
Canara Robeco Emerging Equities - Regular Growth 542,87 0.84 54287 0.86
Motilal Oswal Nasdag 100 Fof Regular Plan Growth 33487151 T346] 33487151 .30
Axis Bluechip Fund - Regular Growth - - 184,560 .95 82 .65
Axi= Mulicap Fund - Reguiar Growth - - 231,696.02 42.91
Kotak Emenging Equity Fund - Direct Plan - Growth - - 46.482.29 3r.m
Canara Robeco Consumer Trends Fund - Regular Growth 1,157.60 078 1,157.60 074
(Formedy Known As Canara Robeco FOR.CE Fund -
Reqular Growth
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44 NON-CURREMT INVESTMENTS - NON TRADE INVESTMENTS

{Rs I Laiths)
SN, PARTICULARS Unts | Asst3tstmeech,2023]  Umis | AsstEistiderch, 2022
{Fs
Canara Robeco Blue Chip Equity Fund Regtilar 2 00668 082 2 26 68 o8z
Growih (Formeerly Known As Canara Robeco
Large Cap + Fund - Regular Growth)
Canara Fobeco Equilty Hybind Fund Regular Growth (Fomerty 305.66 075 305.66 0.7
Known As Canara Robeco Balance- Regular CGrowth)
Kotak Handard Multicap Fund - Direct Plan - Growih = = 43,378.80 2467
Ul Flexd Cap Fund 6,482 25 1430 6,482 25 15.80
Kotak Bluechip Fund 285674 1061 285674 1053
Motal Cewal Growth Opponunities Fund-Senes § T3z g7.68 481,844.81 5026
lcici Prudental Balanced Advanisge Fund - Diect Plan - 41,268.60 Z3.85 41,268.60 2235
roaith
Mirae Assel Large Cap Fund 37,282 35 28.58 - =
Kiotak Edquety Opportunities Fund Growth Regutsr Plan 14,032 18 2853 - -
lcicl Prudential India Opportundties Fund Growih 1752304 3497 = -
Hulfe: Mid-Cap Opporiunities Fund Regular Flan Growih 77138 764 g -
Ii NE quaity Opportunity Fund 104,527.30 .95 - -
le} | Investment in Debls Funds
&t Fair Value Through Profit & Loss)
Tats Shot Team Bond Fund Direct Plan - Growth | £ = 83 B6E.67F 3969
Hadiz Corporale Bond Fund 265,242,338 T2.08 2635,242.38 68,32
10.50% hredusind Hank Lid Perpetual 2024 s < 16.00 184,68
LET Liquid Fund - Hegular Growth - - 1,220.79 56T
Idic Arbitrage Fund - Growth - (Direct Flan) 258,664 11 7631 258,664 41 7220
Axis Banking & Feu Debt Fund Reguiar Growth - - 3,831.69 S2.108
Idic Banking & Pau Debl Fund Fegular Plan Growth = = A411,791.51 8243
Haie Liquid Fund - Feular Plan - Growth 11.06 0AB 127723 5303
Hdfc Owemight Fund Direct Plan Grosth Oplion 4,886.2T7 182,64 4,886.27 128
Additya Birla Sun Life Corporate Bond Fund Growth Direct - - 68,305.43 6321
e
lcici Prudential Shost Tenm Fund - Direcl Plan - Growth 175,664 90 B5.51 175,664 90 89967
Oiption
Aditya Birla Sun Lile Banking & Pau Dedd Fund Growth = = 5,830.54 17.74
Darect Fian
Nuvama Crossover Opporiuniies Fund Senes @ (Formery TH4,834.48 &7.19 706,581 26 2035
Edebweiss Crossover Opporunibies Fund Series i)
Nippon india ENf Ligud Bees 730.33 7.30 700.20 7.00
Additya Baka Sun Life Liquid Fund Growih Reguias Plan Zr.74 L L] 5,688.56 1837
Tats Overnight Fund Feg Growlth 1ME3258 136.98 - =
I Orvesnighl Fund Heg Growth 33.28 0AD = E
Hdic Ovemight Fund Reguéar Growth 16.76 055 % =
i Owernight Fund Regqular Growth ZTF4T.97 B0.16 - -
‘Canara Robeco Banking And Psu Debt Fund 12 450 682 62 253.20 = -
I Crisil Gl 2027 edex Fund 12, 851.066.75 300.78 = E
Eﬁm&nﬁ?w Growih (Fonmedty Known As Habe 1,692.64 3768 - =
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{Rs. In Lakhs)
S.No, PARTICULARS Face 'u"ﬂut[ Lniks As at 31st March, 2023 Unlts As ak 31t March, 2022
(Rs.]
|beici Prudential Constant Maturity Gilt Fund Growth 511,386.59 103.80 -
Camara Robaco Liquid Fund Regular Growth 3557 0.96 - -
#xis Mifty Aza Bond Plus 5dl Apr 2026 50:50 Etf Fof Collaction A4C 489,360.77 5129 -
5bi Cpse Bang Plus 5dl Sep 2026 50050 Index Fund 2,418,828.94 251,20
Meppon Indis Aza Psu Bd Sl Sep 265 492 573.58 50.82 -
Ask Growth Indla Fund 3,267.87 2804 - -
Mippon India Mivash Lakshya Fund 1,355,574.73 199,94 -
Shi Magnum Gilt Fund 18] 36491 100.00 -
(d) Investrnent in Bonds/Debenture
|at Fair Value Through Profit & Loss)
India Infrastructure Finance Company Ltd. Tax Free Bonds 5,500.00 7084 5,500.00 T
Mational Highwiaya Authority Of india 85700 1007 B57.00 10.22
Mips Tax Free Bonds 1,900.00 24.09 1,%00.00 1585
Hational Housing Bank Tay Free Bands 351.00 23.83 351.00 25.12
7.20% Power Finance Corporation Lid, 2035 10.00 $6.00 10.00 1oo.60
|Eded Land Limitad 20,00 210,84
7.96 Rec Ltd 2030 38.00 40081
TOTAL 3,074.42 2,440.56
Agpregate amount of quoted investments/marke® value thereaf 307442 440,58
Aggregate amount of ungueoted investments/market value thereal - -
hggregate provigian for impairment in galue of Imyestrments
4B. CURREMT INVESTMENTS [Rs. In Lakhs)
PARTICULARS Face Units Asg at 31st March, 2023 Units As ot 31t March, 2022
Value (Rs.)
(i) | QUOTED-S5HORT TERM INVESTMIENTS
(a)| Investment in Bonds :
{at Fair Value Through Profit & Loss)
| Ededwmiss Asset Reconstruction Co. Ltd, 115.00 134.04
TOTAL - 134.04
Aggregate amount of guoted investments/market value thereal 134.04

hggregate amaunt of unguated investments/market yalue theraaf®
Aggregate provision for impairment in value of Investrments
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5. NON CURRENT FINAMNCIAL ASSETS-LOANS {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 21st March, As at 315t March,
2023 2022
{Unsecurad and Considered Good)
Loans to Employess 16,19 17.00
TOTAL 16.19 17,00
5.1 Above Loans and Advances are maturing after 12 months
6. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS-OTHERS {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2022
Fixed Deposit with Banks including accrued intarest (with remaining maturity of more than 12 1,022.81 4,193.55
maonthsi#
{Unsecured and Considered Good)
Earnest Money deposit 42,01 25,64
Security Daposit 47.83 74,59
TOTAL 1,118.65 4,259.78

# Includes deposits pledged with bank to the extent of As. 851.2% lakhs (Previous Year Rs 3934.38 lakhs) against overdraft & margin monay for

performance guzarantess issusd.

7. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/[LIABILITIES) [NET) (R In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Deferred Tax Assets
Provizion far gratuity 157.04 140,63
Disallowance u/s 438 41.78 30,32
Frovizsion for Warranty Expenses 17.30 13.50
Provision for Doubtful Debts 49.30 519
Sub Total 26632 185.64
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Depreciation 52.30 69,78
Fair Value of Investments 20,86 2156
Sub Total B2.16 91,34
TOTAL 124.16 98.30
8. OTHER NOM CURRENT ASSETS [Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2033 20232
Deferred Rent Experisas - 0.58
Prepaid Expenses 4.56 =
TOTAL 4.56 0.59
9. INVENTORIES {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2033 2022
{As mken and certified by the Management)
-Raw materials & Compaonents 5,250,381 3,79L29
-WULP Factory 153184 1,223.05
-Finished Goods 1,210.71 603.55
-Stores & Spare Parts 501.52 511.80
TOTAL B,994.88 6,129.79
10. TRADE RECEIVABLES@ [Rz. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
- Considerad Good - Unsecured 8,769.68 7,595.24
- Credit impaired 20,63
8,769.68 7,615.87
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses 195.88 20.63
TOTAL B,573.80 7,585.24

@ Read with Mote no. 46

b9
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10.1 Ageing of Trade Receivables is as under:

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particular Wot Due Less than & & Months- 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Mlomths LYears ¥ ears
As at 31st M 2023
{i}y  Undisputed Trade 4, 72345 2,533.07 192.20 SEEEL 107,00 1E0.06 B, 324.20
Receivables-Considered good)|
fiil  Undisputed Trade -
Receivables-Credit Impaired
fiii} Disputed Trade - 11.40 6.47 40.20 125.00 25832 445,39
Recevables-Considered good)|
\iv] Disputed Trade - - - - - -
Receivables-Cradit Impairad
4,723.46 2.544.47 1958.67 628.71 236.00 438,38 B.769.68
Less: Allowance for credit 19588
lasses
Total Trade Receivisles B.573.80
Az at 3=t March, 2022
{i} Undisputed Trade 351290 236658 314.07 424 65 28555 45549 741924
Recevables-Considered good|
il Undisputed Trade - - - - - -
Receivables Credit Impaired
(i} Clsputed Trads = J48T - 13.60 103.16 196,63
Recaivables-Considered good)|
{iv] Disputed Trade - - - - - -
Receivables-Cradit Impaired
3,512.90 44145 314.07 484,65 304,15 558,65 761587
Less: Allowance for credit 20,63
losses
Total Trade Receivioles 7.585.24
11. CASH AND BANK BALANCES {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars A5 at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
{a) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
{ijBalance with Ganks
Current Account 12011 134.87
(ii) Fixed Deposit with Banks including accrued interest (with original maturity of 3 months
or less) 362 1,730.54
{iii} Cash on Hand 7.72 7.54
13145 1.872.95
{b) OTHER BANE BALAMCES
(i} Earmarked-Undaimed Dividend Accounts 813 7.35
{ii} Fixed Deposit with Banks including accrued interest {with original maturity of more than
3 months but remaining meturity of 12 months or less#
5,602.86 3,250.82
TOTAL 9,742.44 5,131.22

# Includes deposits pledged with Bank to the extent of Rs, 8761.53 lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 3616.08 lakhs) against cverdraft & margin money for

guarantees izsued.

12, CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS-LOANS {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
{Unsecured and Considerad Good)
Loans to Employees 5143 38.565
TOTAL 51.43 38.65
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13. CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS-OTHERS

{Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As at 319t March, As at 31st March,
2023 22
Security Depasit 58.12 14.70
camest Money dagosit 33.33 4435
Other [refer nate 54) 13110 25.1%
TOTAL 27255 84.18
14, OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 315t March, As at 315t March,
2023 2022
Adyances to 5taff and Erectors 37.82 3552
Addwances to Suppliers 1,158.98 55454
Balances with Gowt, Authorities 430,61 305.82
Prepaid cxpenses 57.07 5548
Othersd® 25,00 5407
TOTAL 1,718.48 140343

# Amount Deposited with mutual fund house for purchase of mutual fund units.
"Induding in greyious year Rs. 46.96 Lekhs of Owygen Plant purchased by the Cormpany to be given towards CSR expenses in the FY 20332-235.

15. SHARE CAPITAL [IB. in I.akhsb
Particulars Az 8t 31et March, 2023 As ak 31st Mareh, 2022
Authorised
30,00,000 Equity Shares (P.¥. 30,00,000} of s, 10/- each 300.00 300.00
Issued, Subscribed & fully paid up
5,899,975 Equity Shares (P.Y. 5,959,975) of Re. 10/- esch 60,00 G000
TOTAL &0.00 &0.00
15.1 The reconcliation of the number of shares autstanding is 56t aut below:
Particulars As at 31st March, 2023 A3 at 315t March, 2022
No. of Shares Mo, of Shares
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 599,975 E95,975
Add; Shares issued during the year - )
Less: Shares cancelled during the year - -
Eguity Shares at the end of the year 509,975 50D 975

15.2 Terms/rights adached to Equity Shares

The Cormpany has only one class of equity shares having faca value of Rs 10/~ per share, Each equity shareholder is entitled to one vobe par share.

In the event of winding up af the Company, the equity shareholders shall be entitled 1o be receive remalning asiets of the Company after payment af

all [iabilities In the rato of the amount of capital paid upon such equity shares.

15.3 For the period of five years immaediately preceding the balance sheet date:
- The comparny has not allotted any shares pursuant to contracts without payment being received in cash.
= The campany has not allotted any shares as fully paid up by way of bonus shares,

The company has not bought back any shares.

15,4 Tha details of shareholdgrs bolding more than 5% SHares in the company a3 given balow:

Marme of Share Holders Az at 31st March, 2023 Az at 31zt March, 2002
Mo, of Shares % Mo, of Shares i
Wr Jasmohan Singh [Joint Holder)* 128,501 #1.42 128,501 142
Mr. lasmahan Singh (loint Holder) =* ES,70% 14.95 85,709 1495
[br, Jang Bahatlur Singh * 120,001 20,00 120,001 20,00
M. Mehendra Girdhanlal 32,364 539 32,364 539

14
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"In terms of the Settement Agreerment dated Z2.12.2011 upheld by the orders dated 15.10.7012 and 06.10.2014 of Hon'ble Superior Court,
Massachusatts, USA and arder 13.05. 2016 of Appeflate Court, USA and the share transfer form executed by Or, lang Babadur Singh in terms of arder
deted 05.052015 and 08.06.2016 of Hon'ble Superor Cowrt, Massachusetts, USA, 1,20,001 shares of the Comparny (l.e. 20% of the Pald up Share
Capital) hawe been transferred in favour of Mr. Jasmohan Singh, jointly holding for himself along with Mr. Gurmohan Singh, Ms, Jaslean Kaur and Ms.
Gurlesan Kaur and Mrlasmaohan Singh individually holds B500 Egquity Shares as on 31st March 2023 as well a5 on 31st March 2022,

**Due to the demise of Mrs. Pemels Manmohan Singh w/fo. late Shri Manmohan Singh, the lolnt holding of Equity Shares of 89,709 ls now in the
favour of existing survivor hr. Jasmohan Singh, jointly holding for himself along with Mr. Gurrnohan Singh, Ms. Jasleen Kaur and Ms.

Gurlean Kaur,

15.5 The details of Sharcholding of Promoters is as belows

Shares held by pramoters at 31st Mareh 2023:

S.Mo, Prownoter Name [Ma. of Shares % of total % Change during the year 2022-23
Shares
1 lasmuohan Singh (Joint Shareholding] 209,710 34.85
ri Jpamohan Singh 2,500 143
3 Ms. Jasleen Kaur G Dhody 9,835 164
4 Gurleen Kaur 53,300 0.55
& Gurmahan Singh 2,801 047
B Gurmit Singh 4,375 0r3 0.17)
7 Jagrnit Singh 4,675 0.7E
] Sonu Singh 3,925 0.65
[} Lali Sarhjit Singh 3,551 0.5
10 Jang Bahadur Singh 120,001 20,00
11 b 5 Kold Hold industries (F| Ltd 11 8&5 1938
Shares held by promvoters at 31st March 2022
5.Mo. Promoter Mama No. of Shares % of total % Change during the year 2021-22
Shares
1 lasmohan Singh {leint Shareholding) 209,710 34,895 ~+
k3 lzsmohan Singh 8,500 142 =
3 Jasleen Kaur & Dhody 9,815 1,64 =
4 Gurleen Kaur 3,300 0.55 =
& Gurmahan Singh 2801 0,47 -
6 Gurmit Singh 5475 0.90 -
7 Jegmit Singh 4,675 0,78 -
8 Sonu Singh 3225 065 (0.02)
9 Lali Sarbjit Singh 3551 0.59 -
1n lang Bahadur Singh 120,001 20,00 -
11 b 5 Eold Hold Industrias (B} Ltd 11 B85 1.93 -
16. Other Equity
{Rs. In Lakhg)
Particulars Reserve & Surplus Other Comprehensive Total
Incoma (OCI)
Retainad General Reserve Items that will not be
Eamings ReclasziBed to proft or
loss
Re-measurement of the
net defined benali plans
Balance as at 1st April 2021 18,763.24 {67.18) 18,606.78
Profit for the year 1,636.34 1,636.34
Dividend (18.00) - (1&.00)
Transfer from Retalned Eamings {1,618.34) 1,618.34 -
Other Camprehansive income for (11.14) {11.14)
the year
As at 31st March, 2022 - 20,382.28 (78.30) 20,303.98
Profit for the year 2,852.21 2,852.21
Dividend {18.00) (18.00)
Transfer from Retained Earmings {2,834.21) 2,834.21 B
Other Comprehensive income for (22.77) (22.77)
the period
As at 31st March, 2023 - 23,216.49 (101.07) 23,115.42

16.1 The Board of Directors has proposed a dividend on Equity Shares at Rs.4.00 per share (Previous Year Rs.3.00 per Share jof
Rs. 24.00 lakhs iz sublect to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting..

Mature of Reserves:-

A. Retained Earning - The balance consist of surplus retained from earmed prefits after payment of dividend and taxes theron.

B. General Reserve- Amount transferred [ apportioned from retained earning is in accordance with Companies Act, 2013
whersin apportion of prafit is apportionad te General Reserve, before Comipany can declare dividend.

C. Re-measurement of the net defined benefit plans-Actuarial gains & losses for defined benefit plans are recognised through
QCl in the period in which they cceure. Re-measurements are not reclassified te Profit & Loss in subsequent periods.
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17. NON CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-BORROWINGS (R=. In Lakhs)
MNon Current Current*
Particulars As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022 | March, 2023 March, 2022
(i) Secured Bormowings
{a) Term Loan from Kotak 2.12 - 1.88 .
Mahindra Prime Ltd
(b) Term Loan from Canara Bank 1.88 7.21 533 4.94
TOTAL 11.00 7.21 7.21 4.94

* Amount payable during next 12 months, included under the head “"Current Financial Liabilities-Borrowings" Mote no.19
17.1 Term Loan consist to the extent of

a) Term Loan from Kotak Mahindra Prime Lid. includes

(i) Rs. 11.00 Lakhs Payable in Monthly instaliment for 5 Years commencing from 5th April 2023 whichis secured against
KIA Saltos HTK MT Petrol Car valued of Rs. 14.07 Lakhs. Borrowings outstanding as on 31.03.2023 is Rs.11.00 Lakhs
includes current maturity of Rs.1.88 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. Nil including current maturity of Rs Nil).The company is
in process for creation of charges (security) in this respect.

b) Term Loan from Canara Bank includes

(i) Rs. 8.49 Lakhs Payable in Monthly installment for § Years commencing from 27thJan 2019 which is secured against
Maruti Vitara Brezza VDI-VBERDBVA Car valued of Rs. 9.44 Lakhs. Borrowings outstanding as on 31.03.2023 is Rs.2.36
Lakhs includes current maturity of Rs. 1.75 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 3.98 Lakhs including current maturity of Rs. 1.62 Lakhs).

(li) Rs. 5.74 Lakhs Payablein Monthlyinstalimentfor S Years commencing from 28th Jan 2019 whichis secured against Maruti
Baleno Delta Car valued of Rs. 6.49 Lakhs. Borrowings outstanding as on 31.03.2023 is Rs.1.45 Lakhs includes current
maturity of Rs. 1.23 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 2.59 Lakhs including current maturity of Rs. 1.14 Lakhs).

(iil} Rs. 4.50 Lakhs Payable in Monthly installment for 5 Years commencing from 23th April 2019which is secured against Tata
MotorsTiageX2 Car valuedof Rs. 5.65 Lakhs.Borrowings outstanding ason 31.03.2023 is Rs.1.38 Lakhs includes current
maturity of Rs. 0.95 Lakhs {Previous Year Rs. 2.26 Lakhs including current maturity of Rs. 0.88 Lakhs).

(iv) Rs. 6.60 Lakhs Payable in Monthlyinstallment for 5 Years commencing from29th April 2019 which s secured against
Maruti Suzuki Dzire ZX1 Car valuedof Rs. 8.54 Lakhs. Borrowings outstanding as on 31.03.2023 s Rs. 2.02 Lakhsincludes
current maturity of Rs. 1.40 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 3.32 Lakhs including current maturity of Rs. 1.30 Lakhs).

18.PROVISIONS NON CURRENT {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 3Lst March, Az at 31st March,
2023 2023
Provizions for Employeas Banefit
Provision for Gratulty 506.56 442,02
Provizion fior Earned Leawve 64,28 4987
TOTAL 570.84 491.76
19. CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-BORROAVINGS {Rs. In Lakhs)
Pt As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Secured
(i} Warking Capital Loans
{a) From Banks
Overdraft from Canara Bank 205.59 1,061.03
Owerdraft from HDFC Bank 34991 176.08
Loan sgainst Buyer's Cradit 1,151.72 21588
{ily Currant Maturities of Long Tarm Gorrowlngs (refer note no, 17): 7.21 4.54
TOTAL 1,714.43 1,557.91
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19.1 Warking Capital Loans refered above to the extent of:

2} Rs. 555.50 Lakhs {Previous Year 1337.09 Lakhs ) pertain to Overdraft Limits utilised from bank secured against pledge of our own FOR amounting to

Rs. 3818.16 Lakhs (Previpus Year 3295.27 Lakhs), read with note no. 47.

) Bs. 1151.72 Lakhs (Previous Year 215.88 Lakhs ) pertain to Buyer's Credit from bank which Is primary secured against stocks & books debts and
collateral against land & bullding {Industrigl Property i.e. land and building in the name of the company situated at 21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road,

Faridahad, measuring 19 acres 6 kanals and 2 marlas (79975.33 sq. mits) and plant & machinery.

20. TRADE PAYABLES-CURRENT {Rs. In Lakhs)
As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
Particulars 2023 e
Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises@ 28.13 27.41
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises@ 2,049 81 1,508,856
TOTAL 2,077.94 1,536.27
@ Refer note no. 35
20.1 Ageing of Trade Payahbles is as under: {Rs=. In Lakhs)
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particular Mot Due Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
year Years
As at 31st March 2023
{i} Undisputed dues-MSME 25.61 252 s = - 28.13
{1 Undisputed dues-Cthars 1,253.05 496,54 17.30 12.48 130.14 204581
{ifi} Disputed dues-M3SME 5
tiv} Disputed dues-Cthers -
Total 1,418.66 499.36 17.30 12.48 130.14 2,077.94
Az at 31st March 2022
{i} Undisputed dues-MSME 2677 0.64 - - - 27.41
{1 Undisputed dues-Others 709.53 627.10 3397 21,83 116.43 1,508,856
{iii} Disputed dues-hSNE - - - - - -
{iv] Disputed dues-Cthers - - - - - -
Total 736.30 627.74 33.97 21.83 116.43 1,536.27
21. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES-CURRENT (Rs. In Lakhs)
particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
(i) Other Liabilities
{a) Unclalmed/Unpald Dividends .13 7.35
(b) Payables to employees 562.04 38431
(c } Payable to supplier against services 46942 52074
TOTAL 1,039.59 912.40
@ Transfer to investor education and protection fund as and when due
22. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 315t March, As at 31st March,
' 2023 2022
(i) Advances from Customers 4,.811.04 2,591.83
{ii} Statutory Duss 267.325 158.53
(i) Other Liahilities 14792 123.42
TOTAL 5.226.21 2,884.94
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23, PROVISIONS-CURRENT {Rs- In Lakhs)
Particulars As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
(I} Provisions for Employees Banefit
Prevision for Gratuity 12098 116,67
Provision for Earned Leave 62.63 34.72
(i) Dther Provisions
Provision for Waranty Expenses BB.76 53.65
TOTAL 252,38 205.04
24. CURREMT TAX LIABILITIES [MET) {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particalirs As at 31st March, As at 31st March,
2023 2022
Provision for Taxes less Adyanca Tax {As 594260 Lakh [P.Y Rs. 50B0.77Lakh)} 6a7.84 #1722
TOTAL GAT.B4 417.22
25. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (Rs. In Lalkhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Sales of Products 34,377.81 26,826.94
Sales of Services 1,808.03 1,133.22
Other Operating Income 35.96 86.53
TOTAL 36, 2852.80 28,046,650
i} Disaggregated revenue information (Rs. in Lakhs)
Indiza 24,643.62 26,585.27
Cutside India 1,639.18 1.461.42
Total revenue from contracts with customers 35,282 B0 2804559

ii] The Company provides agreed upen performance warranty for selected range of products. The amount of liability towards such

warranty is as stated in Note no. 53.

26, OTHER INCOME {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 315t

March, 2023 March, 2022 |

Interest Received on fixed deposit 442,18 363.91
Interest Income on Investment 3745 5693
Dividend Recehed 737 5.02
Insurance Clalm Received 29,85
Prefit on Sale of property, plant & eguipments | Met) 0.95
Frofit on sale of Investment (Mat] - Non current 37.73 20.31
Miscel lenous Income 10.43 142
Unrealised Gain due to change in Fair Value of Investment (Net) 32.06 152.55
Other Interest Income 0.53 5.65
Gain on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation [Net) B57.79 76.16
Interest Income an Govt Bonds B.5S 11.32
TOTAL 64344.20 725.11
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27.C05T OF MATERIAL CONSUMED (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st

March, 2023 March, 2022
Raw Material and Components Consumed 25,140.51 20,066.72
Stores and Spares Parts Consumed 422.26 387.62
TOTAL 25,562.77 20,444.34
28. CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF FINISHED GOODS, WORK IN PROGRESS AND STOCK IN TRADE (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st

March, 2023 March, 2022
Stock at commencement - Process 1,223.05 333.57
Stock at commencement - Finished 603.55 137.98
1,826.60 A471.55
Stock at close - Process 1,931.84 1,223.05
Stock at close - Finished 1,210.71 603.55
3,142.55 1,826.60
Increase f (Decrease) in Stocks 1,315.95 1,355.05
29.EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st

March, 2023 March, 2022
Salaries , Wages , Bonus , Gratuity & Allowances 4,694.07 4,000.20
Contribution to ESI, Provident & Superannuation Fund 27041 24523
Staff Welfare Expenses 141.95 93.40
TOTAL 5,106.44 4,338.83
30. FINANCE COST (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st

March, 2023 March, 2022
Interest on Term Loans 0.78 1.15
Interest to Bank on Overdraft 37.47 50.92
Interest an Income Tax 5000 22.00
Bank Charges 37.67 T3.72
Bank Commission on Bank Guaraniecs 72.59 48.52
TOTAL 198.51 196.31
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31. OTHER EXPENSES (Rs In Lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended 31st For the year ended 31st
March, 2023 March, 2022
Power & Fuel 258.86 216.68
Rates & Taxes 117.57 21.18
Rent 45,54 35.B6
Insurance 45.60 39.02
Repair to Plant & Machinery 76.19 64.02
Repair to Buildings 9.54 14.87
Office Maintenance B.E1 7.55
Y ehicle Running & Maintenance 36.05 32.36
Electricity & Water Charges 6.37 5.87
Travelling & Other Incidental Expenses 650.93 501.02
Property, plant & Equipments written off 0.36 1.40
Loss on Sale of property, plant & equipments (Net) 0.20 -
Sundry Administrative Expenses 60.44 46.16
laobis Outside - Other Expenses 59,25 103.92
Bad Debts / Irrecoverable Advances written off 151.17 38,73
Provizion for Doubtful dabts 195.88 20.63
Legal, Professional & Consultancy Charges@ 351.15 302.35
Advertisement, Publicity & 5ales Promntion 86.00 24,72
Fraight & Forwarding (including ocean freight) 618,21 418.77
FOC and Warranty Expenses 297.90 BOE. 20
Commission and Agency Fea E7.34 106.41
Directars' Sitting Fee 26.40 24.75
Loose Tools Written Off 24.43 18.82
Printing & Stationery 13.12 14.56
Comrmunication Expenses 25,52 23.29
Donation 0.27 1.03
Amortisation Expenses on Deposits 0.60 5.38
Expenses against C5R Activities 49.69 4400
TOTAL 3,303.39 2,740.55
@ Includes Auditors Remuneration
32, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS (Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars As et March 31,2023 | Asat March 31,2022
(il{a) Contingant Liabilitios
Clairns against the Cormpany not acknowledged a5 debis 3 &
Sales TanWATANCT in respect of rmatters in appeals 219 213
Other Mattars - -
(b} Commitments
Contracts remaining to be executad on capital account (Met of Advances| -
33, EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT DURING THE YEAR: (Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 2022-23 2021-22
Capital Expenditura =
Revenue Expenditure *
Employes Cost 155,37 209.80
Cast of Materials §3.46 an.52
Other Expanses 11.46 17.25
Total 330.29 307.57
* Inciuded in réspective réyenus accouhts and as certibied by the management.
33, AMOUNT PAID TO AUDITORS (EXCLUDING TAXES) (Rs. In Lakhs}
Particulars 2022-23 202122
Audit Fen E.o0 B.OD
Tax Audit Fess 0.75 075
CartificationfOther Services 053 4.6%
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35, THE MICRO, SMALL AND MED UM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT [MSMED) ACT, 2006
Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Mediurn Enterprises Developrment [MSMED] Act, 2006 are provided as under for the year 2022-23, to the extent the Company has received Intimation
from the “Suppliers” (a5 certifind by tha managernent) regarding their status under the Act.

|Rs. In Lakis)
Particulars As at March 31,2023 | Asat March 31,2022
Principal amaunt remaining unpald te any supplier 28,13 2741
Inberest due thereon remaining unpaid ta any supplier
Intarast paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of MSMED Act, 2008, along with the amount of the pavmaent mada to the suppliars
bewond the appointed dey duning the year Hil Mil
Principal amount =+ .
Imterest = =
Interast due and payable for the period of delzy in making payment (which has been paid but beyond the sppointed day during the
vyear) but without adding the interest specified undar MAMED Act, 2006 wil il
Interast accrued and rernalning unpaid Wil Ml
Further interest remeining dua and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as aboye ere actually
paid #o the small enterprise for the purpose of disalloviance of a deductible expenditure undar section 22 of the MSMED Act, 2006, i i
i i
35. EARNINGS PER SHARE {Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars 202223 2021-22
a. Prafit after Ta as per statement of profit and lasg 285371 1,536.34
b Weighted aversge number of Eguity Shares outstanding (Ma's) E59,975 509 975
. Earnings Per Share [CPS) in rupees (face valus — Rg. 10 per share)
3) Basic EPS 47540 TR
b Dibutad EPS 47540 2TRTE

37, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial Risk Factors

The Carnpany's finametal lisbiltties comprize barrawings and trade & sther payables. The main purpede of these financial kabilites i€ to mansge finances for the Campany's oparationg. The
Company bas loan and other receivables, rade recsivables, cash and shart-term deposits that arise directly fram i operation. The company’s activities are sxpased to a variaty of financial

righ from its mormal business operation. The key finandal rislks inclede market risk |including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other price riski, credi# risk znd liguidity risk.

I Miarket risk

Market risk is the risk that the falr value or futura cash flows of 3 finandal instrument will fluctuate due to fluctuation in market prices. Markat risk comprise three types of risk: currency
rate risk, Interast rate fsk and other price related risks.

Fimancial instrurnents affected by markat cisk includes bocrowings, investments, trade payables, trade receivables and loans.

() Interest rats risk

Interest rate risk is the nsk that the far value or Tutwre cash flows of a financal mstrument will fiuctuate because of changes in merket interest rates. Borrowings at varable rates exposes to
cazh flaw rigk. With all other variables held coratant, the following table demonstrated compasitien of fixed and Nosting rate borrowing of the eompany and impact of Roating rate
borrowings on company's profitability,

Particulars As at March3l, 2023 Az at March3l, 2022
[Rs, In Lakhs) % of Total {Rs. in Lakhs) % of Total
Fixed Rate Bﬂrruwings 18.21 1.06 1215 0.7E
‘Warlable Rate Borrowings 1707.22 DR o4 155297 90,22
Taotal Borrawings 1,725.43 10:0.00 1,565.12 100,00
Sensitivity on wariable rate borrowings
] ct on Profit & Loss Aoccount ] ot
irtienlurs mpact on 55 mpact on Eguity
31-Mar-23 31-har-22 31-Mar-23 31-Mar-22
Interest Rate increase by 0.25% (d.27) [3.E8) [4.27) (3.88)
Interest Rate decrease by 0L25% 4.27 3E8 427 3.EE

(b} Foreisn currency risk

Forsign currency risk is the ik that the fair yvalue or future cash fiows of a financial instrument, will fuctuste bacause of changes in foreign axchangs rates. The Company operates
internationally and have foreign currancy trade payables and recefvables and is therefora, evposad to foreign evchanga risk. The Company’s foraign currancy risk are identified, measurad
and ranaged at penodic interval in accordance with Company's Policies.

The carrying amounts of tha Comgary s fl.'ll'Eim'l currancy densminated monetary aisels and monetary [Ebilitses, not hedged by dedyvative indbtrumarnts, at the end of tha reporting perod
ara a5 follows:

Exposure in formign Currency not hedeed as at March 31, 2023:

{Rs. In Lakhs;
Particulars usD 1By Total

Financial Assets
Cash and cash eguivalents - - -
Trade recelvables 14E.8T - 146,87
Other finendals assets [ Including loans) - L X
Financial liabilities - - -
Trade paysbles (7049} {121.01) 1270.50}
Borrowings {1,151.72] 13.151.72)
Met assets /[ liabilities] [1,024.34) {151.01) {1,275.35}
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Evpaaure in fareign Currensy not hedged a3 &t Mareh 31, 2023:-

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Particulars UsD Py Tatl
Financial Assets -
Cash and cash equivalents - - -
Trade recaivables 164.01 - 164.01
Cthar financials assets | including leans; - - -
Finansgial liabilitias - - £
Trade payables |74.35) (52.75) 1127.10)
Bormowings [215.88) - 1215.88)
MNet assats bl [126.22) [52.75) [178.97)

For! Currency Sensitivi
The following table dernonstrates the sensitivity 1o & ressonably pozsible change in farelgn currency to the Indian rupees with all other yarables held constant. The impact on cormpany’s
prafit before tax i due to changes in the foreign exchange rate for:

[Rs. In Lakhs]
Particulars As at March3l, 2023 As at March31, 2022
0.25% Increase 0.25% decrease 0.25% Increase 0.25% decrease

LISE Sensitivity (2. 71} 271 |0.32) 032
JPY Sersitivity (046} 0.48 0,13 0.13
Increases) | decraass | in profit or loss [3.15] 318 {0.A5] 045 |
Summary of exchange difference accounted in staterent of Profit and Loss:

|Rs, In Lakhsl

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22

et foreign exchanaa (gain / losses shown as other income [67.791 (76.16]

¢ ) Other price Risk
Other price risk i the risk that falr value of = finandal natrument will fuctuate due to change i market trade price. Other Price risk arses frarn financial essets such a8 Inyestment in Equity
Instruments, Mutuzl funds and bonds valued at Fair valuas. The carriing value of such Financial Instruments afe:-

[Rs. In Lakhs)

Particulars As &t March 31,2023 | Asat March 31,2022

Inwestments in Shares 155 .E6 351.73
Investments in Mutusl Funds 24TETI 1,453.45
Inwesibment In Bonds/Debenture 43577 7E3.42

. Credit rigk

Crdit risk arises from the passibility that countar party may net be abim to settle their obligation as agreed, Credit risk primarily arisss from financial assets such as trade recsivables, othar
balance with banks, leans and other receivables,

Trade Racavables: - Tha maximum exposura to credit risk is from trade recaivable which ara unsecured. The company periodically assesses the credit quality of counter parties, taking into
the financial condition, curnent economic trends, past experiences and ather factors.

The company has 3 weall-defined sales policy to minimize its risk or credit defaults. Outstanding recelvalilas are regularly montored and sssassed. Impairment analysls is performed based on
histarical data at aach reporting date on an individual basis.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable evpectation of recovery, such as customer failing 1o engage in 3 repaymant plan with the company. Whara financal assets have
been written off, the company conbinues to engage in enfercement actwity to atternpt to recoyer the recenzble due. Where recoveries ere made, these are recognised in Profit or loss.

Other Financial Assets: Cregrt Rk arising from imvastmant in mastual furds and other balance with bank is limited 2nd there 5 no collateral held against these because the countarparties
are banks and recognised financial Inattutions with kigh credit rating assigned by the international credit rating sgancies.

_The ageing analysis of the trade recelebles:

[Rs. In Lakhs)
Past dua
P Naither dua nor
P thadar Impaired Upta & months 690 12 ronths Abowe 12 months Tomd

As at March 31, 2023
Urnsedured 4713 48 258447 19867 120302 B,7E9.E8
Less: Allowranes for exgected cradit losses {195.88)
MNet Total 4,712.46 154447 198,67 1,303.09 &,573.40
As at March 31, 2023
Unsecuned 3,512.50 244145 314,07 1,347.45 T.615.87
Less: Allowancs for expectad credit losses r20.631]
et Total 3,512.90 2,841.45 314.07 1,347.45 7,535.24 |
Movemant in tha allowancs in Doubtful Dabts: [Rs. In Lakhs)

Farticulars As at March 31,2023 | Asat March 31,2022
Balance at beginning of tha yaar 2E3 17.26
Add: Provided during the year 185684 20,63
Less: Raversal of Provision - [17.26)
Less: Arnounts written off {20.63) -
Balance at tha end of the year 155.58 20,63
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1ll. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk k= Hhe risk, where the sompary will encounter difioulty in meeting the oblipstions associsbed with s finaneial lablites thet are sertled by delivering cash or angther Fnancial
asset. Tha company's appraach 5 to arsurs, 35 far a5 possiBbls, that it will have sufficlant iquidity to meet its lizhilities when due.

The table below provides detads regarding the remaining contractuzd maturisies of finendal fabilites at the mporting date besed on contractual undismounted payments:

{Rs. In Lakhs)
Perticulars Camrying Asmount Lass than 1 year 1to5years Total
s st March 31, 2023
Borrawings-Mon -Currant 15,21 21 1100 18.21
Borrowings-Current 1,707.22 1,707.22 - 170722
Trade peyables 2,077.54 2,07794 - 207794
Crther finarcs| kebilite 1,035.59 1,039 89 - 1,039,559
Total 4 24296 4,531 96 1100 4,842 95
A 3t Mareh 1, 2032
Barrowinge-Mon-Curvent 1215 4494 i 12015
Barrawings-Current 1,552.97 1,552.97 1,552,587
Trade payables 1536.27 1,535.37 - 1,536,327
Cther financial labilites 812,40 91240 = 912,40 |
Ttal 401379 4,006.58 7.0 4,013,789
3%, FRIR WVALUE OF FINAMCIAL ASSETS AND LABILITIES
et aut belaw, @ o comparison by cless of the carrying emaunts and fair value of the financial instruments of the companies -
{a) Firancial Aesets;-
1R, In Lakhs)
Particularg As st Marchdd, 2023 As at March3l, 202
Finafcial assets Carrying Aumount [Fair value Carrying Amount Fair value
L) At Falr valus theoaigh Profit and Loss
Irwestment in Shames 15086 15086 351.73 35173
Irpestment in mutual funds 2ATRTS ZATRTS 145345 1458345
Irvestmonts in Bones/ Debenturg 43577 43577 TES42 Te8.43
3.074.42 3,074.42 2,574.60 1,574.60
[1s] At Amortized Cost
Cash and bank balaross including FOR 10, Te8. 25 10,Ta5.2% 9.230.77 4,230.77
Trade Recaivables £.573.80 8.573.80 758524 7.585.24
Laans ar.62 ar.62 55.65 55.65
Crther Financial Assets 15R39 GR35 184.41 184.41
18 775.08 18 775.08 17,186.07 17,166.07
) Finaneisl Liabilities
{Rs. |n Lakhs)
Particulars &g ot March3d, 2023 As at March3i, 2022
Financial Lizbilides Carrying Amount Fairvalue Carrying Amount Fair walue
At Amortized Cast
Barrowings 1,725.43 1,725.43 156512 1,568 12
Trada payablas 207784 207794 1,536,127 1,536.27
Cther financial labiites 1,030.59 1030.59 91240 91Z.40
4 B42.96 4,842.95 4,015.79 4,r13.72

Tha folowing methods and assemptions ware used to estimate the far values:

1. Cash and short-tesm depodits, trade recatvabiles, loang, irsde paysbies and other current Tnancial asests snd liahilities approdmate their carrying amounts [ergely due to the short-tenm

maturites af these instromants.

2. Fair walue of |nvestments in quoted mutual funcs and sguity shares are based on guoted mardet price at the reporing date.

Fair V2l Hiersrchy

All financlel assets and labilines for which fair value 5 measured In the finsncel statements sre cetegorized within the fair walue heerarchy, describes &s folows:

Leye’ 1 - Queted peices in active markets.

Lave! 2 - Inputs other than quated pricas included within Level 1 that are cheervable, sither diractly or indirectly.

Leve' 3 - Inputs for assets or liahllities that are not based on observeble market data.

The foliowing table pretentd the fair valie measuremeant hisrarchy of finendal assets ard liabilitied, which bie been measuned dubsequent to initiel recogniion &t fair value

{Rs- In Lakchs}
Particulars Lewvel 1 Leved 2

315t March, 2023

Finandial Assets

Cwated Equity Shares 158 84 i
Mtz Funds 247879 =
Bands, Deberture 435.77 -
3ist March, 2022

Financial Assets

Quated Equity Shares 35173 -
Mutieal Funes 145345 =
Bonds/Teberture TaS A3 =

38, The disclosures reguirad under IND AS 19 "Employee Banelits” ane a5 given balow:

{a) Defined Benefit Plan and Other empboyees benefits

Tha Comgany provide gratuity, 3 defined benefit plan covenng the elgible amployees. The Company also provide the leave encashmant to el gible employees as other employea benafit,
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{i} The Tollowwing Brovisons towerds gratuity bty and Eeve encashment liasbdity based on the projecied umt crecit (PLC) actuane method 23 per achsars valuston have been mace by
e Campary. For sumimaribng e componsnts of nef berefil el pense recognifed in the statement of profitand loss and arvurts recoinioed in e balante dheet for the redpective pland,

‘e detmils are 23 under

(A% In Lakhs)
Eratusty (Defined Benefit Plan) L=ave Encazhmesnt
Particulars [Nan- Fumded) [Nan- Fundied)
202323 202122 2022-23 2021-22
1. Change in the Present Value of Obligation
1. Present Velue of Defined Benefit Chiligation at the baginning S5ETE B0ra.92 8479 7452
2. Curnant Service Cost BOUSE 5232 G698 3582
3. interest Evperse or Cost EL 3 ) .74 433 ENrs
4. e measuremant lar actuara | |gain;  loss arsing fram: s = 1817 943
- change in Gemagrapiic 8% umptons - ; - =
- change I financial assumations - ° ) )
- AXpATIAnce yarlance ||.a, atua Bparienca s assumptions) I0ES 6.541 3 y
-Difference in P.¥ of Obigation 57 X143 - -
athers - = = =
5. Past Serviem Cost - - - -
5, Banefit Paid {60410 131.11) [41B.95) 139.100
7. Present Value of Ohligaton as t the snd BaV.EE Big TE 12681 84 35
Ul Change in the Fair Vales of Plan Assets
1. Fair value af plan aspets ot the begnning of tha yeas ML HIL L NIL
2. Investment Incocme AL HIL HIL HIL
3. Emiployar's Contribution MIL HIL MIL HIL
4. Bgnnfits Pald L HIL ML HIL
5. Requm on plan assets, eduding amount recogrised in nat interest B pense HIL MIL MIL HIL
&.Fair value of plan assets as atthe eng ML HIL ML HIL
Il Exp [ 1ir the 5 of Profit and Loss
1. Currant aryice Cost E0L56 5232 GE.98 3582
2. Past Servioe Cost
3. Netlrterestincome  {oost! an the Met Definec Benafit Labiicy [Arset) IEI 774 433 372
4. Het Actuarial Sain Loms 1517 5943
5. Expenses recognised in the statement of Prafit and Loss 0% 77 & 05 o1 47 48 47
. Orther Comprehensive Income
1. Agtuasial (Geins| f Losses
1. changein financial assumntians
3. - pypenEnoe varanoe | Le. actual evperience v assumpiions) INES (6541
-mifferanca in B of Obligation 578 1143 KL ML
4, Requm on plan assats, excluding amount recogrizad in nat intarest sxpense NIL MIL
5. Comgenents of defired benefit costs recagnised in otier comarehensye
o L3 14,85
V. Actisarial Assumprions
1. Discount Aake 7,365 TESH T.36F i
2 Evaected rate of retuen an plan assets HA HA A HA
3. Mortality 4L Uitimate | 140 12012-14) Ultimate 1AL | 2012-14) Ultimate | 1AL |2012-14) Ultimats
4, Salary Esmlation 7.00h S0 700 S0
Ti.. SaneRtiuity anabysls
Ragsanably possthla chargas st the yaar and, to ora of the relevant srtusral assumations, halding othar assumpticns constant, waud hava affectad the definad herafit abligation as the
ameunts shoen baiow: -
[Rs in Leddsl
Leayz Encashment Gratuity
Perticulars As ot Marchil, 2023 As At March3l, 7022 Bs b March31, 2023 As ab March31, 2022
Decredase Intresse Decrease] Intrease Decrease Increase Decrzare Incresse
imputed  Bate 428 |3.80 289 (2.54) e 13014} 54T [FER-FH
af returp = f +
1%}
|5alary Growtn (3.34] 437 [253) 288 (28.35) 3237 (23.104 5,13
Egte S+ 15%)
?ttl;;ulﬂ Rate |- 13 L3 L1l \BL1E a.14 1027} naz Ty 0
= 1%

iii. The estmates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial yaluetion, toke acoount of irflatian, senionty, promotion and other releyart fectors, such as supply and demand in the

=mplayment maroet

{b] Dofined Contribution Plens £mplayer's Comtrbutions 1o Fravident charged off duning the 12 months ended 315t March, 2033 of B 240.26 Lakhs (Freviopus Year: Rs.215.77 lakhs; has

been induded undar the head Employes Berafits Expense. {Rafer kate 25;

A0, INCOME TAX:
& Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and lose- [Rs. En Lzkhs)
Particulars H022-23 H21-23
Curment ‘nooma Tar 116000
- Clarment year 1755 574,00
- Adjustment in respect of current income tay of esdier year
Totd 108245 STA.L0

Deferred Tax

Relaring to orginztion and reversal of temporary differences (7830 124.53)
Incame fad edpense reported in the statement of profit or loss 1,004 35 55337
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B, Income Tax recognised in other comprehensve Incowme:-

{Rs. I Lakha)
Particulars n22-23 2021-22
Ineoeme Tax Re-measurement losses on defined benefit plan T.65 375
Total 7.66 5.75
C. Reconclliation of effective tax rate
{Rs In Lakha)
Particulars 2022-23 202122
Aceauriting peafit befone incame Lo 15545 218071
At applcatie Statutory Incoma Tai Rate @ 25.168% {25, 168%] 7059 55111
Exermpt Income (2.16) |2.BS)
Danation 007 028
C5F Expanoltura 1251 1107
Capital Expenditurg on Sdentfic Ressarch
Changa of income 5 rate - -
Cthers 7335 (5.22)
Reparted income tan Expenss 1,004.25 553,37 |
Effective Tay Rate 26.04% 25.27%

1. Capital Rigk Management

The Company's poicy |5 10 malntain an adequate capital basa 50 a5 o malntam eraditor and market confidence and to sustaln future development. Capltal Includes ssuad capita, share
pramium and a'l cther equity reserves attributable to equity hoiders. In order to strengthen tha capital bese, the company may use appropriate means 10 @nhance or reduce capital, as the

e
i ifs. In Lakhs]
2022-23 2021-x2
Borrowings 1,72543 1,565.12
Lesd: eadh pid cash squivakents including bank balance 10, 785.35 §5330.78
Less: Current Imvastmants - 134.04
Mt dakt |9,035.82) |7,880.68)
Equity 23,17548 0,963.98
Caphtal and Met debt 14,135.680 12,464, 79
Gearing Ratio (%) [#3.55) (E3.58]
42, RELATED PARTIES
A List of Related Parties:-
i. Enterprises aver which Key Management Personnel, thair relstives and major sharehalders have sig nificant influence /controkb-
1 M5, Hald Hald Industries Pyt Ltd
2 Waloo Engineering Ltd,
3. Indign Refrigeration Industries
4. Freezaking Industries Private Lid
il Ilan rizl Personmz| [KMF)
Exetutive Director
Mr Jzsmahan Singh, Managing Director
_Non-Enecutive Dirgchors
Ws. Jasleen Keur
s Gurlaan Kaur
br Ramesh Chandra Jain
br G.B. Rao |w.e.f. 08.06. 2021}
bdr Dhvaker Jagga
Expcuitives
Mr Sharad Bhatnagar, Chief Finance Officar
Mr Amit Singh Tomar, Compary Secretary
lil, Relative of Kay Managerizl Personmna|
Mr. Indrayear Singh |son of Shri Jasmahan Singh) {w.e. £ 0110, 2022)
B, The following transactions were carried out with the related partics:-
(Re. In Lakhs)
Kay hManagerial . Emterprisa over which
Particulars B Relative of KMP Sk agist
1. Purchase of Materlal
- Freereking Incustries Pyt Lbd 193.E0
1129, 26)
L 5ake of haterial
Freemeking Industries Pyt Lid 14.87
[10.53)
3. Remunerati |3
- Wr Indraveer Singh 4.79
4. Reimbursement of aupenses recovered gn behalf of
-‘Walpo Enginesring Ltd oS
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= Indian Aefrigeration Industries
023}
5. Bpmuncration to KVEFs*
= Mr. lasmohan Singh, bir. Sharad Bhatnagar, Mr. Amit Singh Tamar 343 A6
[311.47)
§. Profesicnal charges paid
- M Gurd=en Kawr 480
14.80|
7. Sitking Fees
- Mr. Ramesh Chandra Ja'n, Mr. Divaker lagga & Mr. G.B. Rag 2640
[24.75)
C. Oustsnding balarcss -
|Bs In Lakhs)
Manageris] Ent=rprizs over which
ddianed i i oo ey
Remuneration, Salary 2061 075 =
118.65| - -
Professional Charges - 040 -
2 (R} -
Nota: Figunes in bracked rmorasents grevdolis wesr amount, viheroeer spplicable
Purchases, Sales and S&rvices trardac tbon amount reparied abave ane incusive of tass
* grdude Fees paid to o extors.
The remuneration to key managerisl persorne] indudes the follawings: [R5 Im Lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended 21" | Bor the Year ended 24"
March 2023 Parch X022
Short-term employes banafits # 32457 29242
FPost-employment benefits -
- Defined contributon plan § 17.19 18.05
- Defined benefit plan & - -
- Orther long-term benefits » = =
Totsl 3Z.06 31147

e uding Sakary, banus, commizsion oa secrial bagis and value of parquidites.

~ Excluding Bability for Gratulty end Lesve Encashmant. As the lisbifity for gratuty and leawe encashmest sre provided on sctuarial basis for the Company 8s & whoos, amaunts aocrued
pertaining to key mansgerial parsonnel are net incuded above,

5 inclyding PF 3nd any ather henafit

43, FEGMENT REPORTING

The Comipany has only are butiness tegment i.e. marufacture |, supply and execution of irdustrial refrgeration and air conditioning equipment 2nd ore geographical reportable segment ie.
Uperations mamly within India, The perfarmance is revewed by the Board of Rirgctars (Chief aperating decsion makers;

44, CORFORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

|Rs. In Lakhs)
Partsalars 2022-73 02122
1. Gross amount reguired ta be spart by the Compary during the year 44 32 44,00
2. BEOUNT SPERT GUNRE The year
= Promabion of Fdugatan 100 13.00
- Hesith Car= 4715 a0
- Dahers 150 23.00
Total Amount Spent 45,65 44.00
Shartfallfi excess: at the end of tha year (5.37) =
Tatal of prayious years shortfaly|evcess) - =
Heasons for shartfall 203 sy
Makure of C5A Actvies Education, Health et
A5, DIVIDEND REMITTED IN FOREMGMN CURRENCY
|Re In Lakks)
For the Year ended 315t |Forthe Year ended S15t
Parsicu March 2025 March 2022
i} Gross Dividend** 350 .60
il Tax Deducted at 2ou-ce £.75 0.5
i) Nt Dividend remitted** 185 2485
| Years to which dyidend refased e r il li B |
| Mumbers of shares on which diyidend paid 130001 12001
yi| Mumber of Non- resdent sharehalders i i

**In werma of the Settlement Agreemant dated £2.12.2011 uphed by the crders dated 15.140.2012 and 05.10.2014 of Han'ble Supanar Court, Massachuzetts, US4 and prder 13.05. 30158 of
Appallate Court, USA and the share trensfer from ekecuted by Dr, Jang Banadur Sngh in terms of arder dated 05.03.2005 snd 08.06.2006 of Hon'ble Supenor Court, Massuchusetts, LSA,
120001 shares of the Company (Le. 20% of the pad up Share Capital} have been trarsferred in favaur of Mr. Jasmabsn Singh, fointly boldng for himself along with Mr. Gurmohan Singh, Ms.
lasleen Kaur o mb’-and Mg, Gurleen Kaur.

A6, Balance of oartsin scvances, trabgs payabies (incliding MSMEY, other peyable snd trace receivabies are in prooess of confismation) remoneiliston

a7 Lend, Bullding, Plant & Machinery, Flxed Deposits grd Book delits heve been offerad as Collsberal Security Tor variaus credit limits sancianed by Canara Bane

43, Frsical verification of Stores & Spare Parts and consumabls items is i prooass ag the ibems are numarous. Howaver, considering the past siparence managemant is of the yview that on
final apsessment thera would not ba ary mararial impact.
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A5, VALUE OF IMPORTS 0N CIF BASIS:

|Rs. In Lakhs)
For the Yeer ended 31t |For the Yesr ended 315t
Parboul
s Barch 2003 larch M2
| Raver Bltaial B companents ane Gerarsl stares 4,088 76 455130
Liib Caaits Goods - 175.05
50, EARNING I FOREIGN CLURRENCY:
1P, In Lakhs)
Particalars Far tha Yaar ended 315t |For the Yesr endad 315t
March 2023 Wgrch 2022
Earrirgs in Foreign Exchange Exports st F.0L8, 1.639.18 145142
51, ENPEMNDITURE IN FORERGN CLIRRENCY:
IR, In Lakhg]
For the Year ended 313t | For the Year anded 315t
Particuls
it Biarch 2023 Wlasch 2123
T} Cosmmiggion a.a7 4.97
11§ Travaliing - s
iii} Ry sty 7.8 1338
Ivh Fees for Techrical Senices 1.82 R
) Dther 2492 330
Tokal 4150 T4

52, Irsurance Claim of Rs, 25.80Y- Lakths racelved during the presious wear was an accourt af matustty of Bew Man Polles taken for 3 Key parsor The said Bey Man policy was made in the
wear 1557 to retain the talens |Key pecple) in the company

-Warranty Expeinses {Rs. Irs Lakhe]
I Particulars 208223 071-22
Halance a5 at the beginning of the year LR 4248
Auditian during the year 6E.76 53.65
Unlised; reverved during tha yesr 5365 4245
|Balanca at the and of tha year E3.TE 53,68

The Campany prowdes product warranty (o ks custamers, Pravidian is mede for estimated wasrnly ciaims in respect of pradud faid which ané il under warranty st the eng af the
réparting period. Managemenl eftimates the pravision based on nEtofical warrerty daim infommation and afy récent trend that may suggest future daime wuld diffsr am haterical
LUl Th LS

54, Karey Stoek Broking Umited (K564} was holding equity shares en behsl of the company in demet sccouwnt worth Rs. 186.82 lskhs (market value 83 on 31-03-2022) along with bark
balance of Rs. 20.76 lakhs depoated by the company, which had been plecged by the KSBL without the knowlsdge and approvel of the comparny. AS per the Cintuar Banued by Seeurities
Exchange Bomrd of India (5E8/) pated Jura 20, 3019, brokers cannot pkedge cliont’s securites to rmke loams ¢ funds for themselves § itsalf use and orokens sre reguined to segregate clent's
furds wiith H's cwm furmd as wall securines.

Accordingly, the company has written emalk and letters In tha year 2021 and 2022 to NSE |being Modad Agency| far return of the seneites and depesit amourt kesd in the name of the
compary from KSEL

Perding receipt of original shenes! ca'med equad number of shares along with bank balarce or ameurt of A5.181.10 lakhs (net of smaunt received of R 30,49 lakhs|, pcoondingly the
ramaany has adiusted tha amaunt from Invastmant and the mme s shown undar other financlal assats (ourent |, Furthar the compamy has filad the case against KSBL and WSE befara SEBI
en #1.03.2023 and in the opinion of the managamant abova statad amaunt Is good and fully recoyerabia,

55, The Code on Socisl Securty, 2000 {'Code'| relating to employee benafits durlig emaloyment and pest emaloyment received Indian Parliament aporoval ard Presidential assent in
September 2020, The Cocle has been published in the Gazette of Inda and subsequently on 13 Noverber 2080 draft rdes were published and Invited for stakeholtens’ suggestions,
Henwgyer, tha date on which the Coce will coma Irto effiect Frs not been rottfied. Thie Company will Bssess the Impact of the Code whean It comes into effect and will recornd any ralated
Impact In e period tha Code baromes affectiva,

54, Ratbag:

Iltal.in Nunserator
Current  Ratio| Curnent Assets

Denominatar 2 20122
Current Lghilties 167 278

Be=zon for varisnoe
235 [NA

{In fimas| :
Ceh-Eguity Tatal Dbt (Non  Current|sharghobder's Eouity oor .08 13.13) | NA

Barngraringss Currant
Cabt  Service| Eaming Available for Dadt Le (Inferest  on barowings+loan
.| PETeDapredaiten Lirepald during the vear

Coverage Fatio Amartisstion+etarast &
|In tres} Barnawings|
Beturn af] Profit after Tox

1Z118 |Due bo frcrracs in PET

twmrage Shareholder’s Eguiny 558.61 |Due to increasa in Profit
Equity Ratio (%]
Imeantony

Turoyer  Patio

Ket Sales ymrage Inventony 4.0 5.5% 114,15 [ MA

e
Trade 28,37 |Due to increass in Saes
Frmtmhialibey

Turraver Ratio

(in timas)
Trade Payahbles|Ket Purchase

Net Sales fyerage Track Aoceivables 4,43 350

tverage Trads Payables
Turreer  Ratic

{ln timas|
bt Capitzl| Net Salex

‘Working Capital jCurrant Asserts. 158 218 (8.36] | M&
Tu ¢ et Current Liabilites)

!II‘I T s
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Met Profit Ratie|Profit Alter Tex Net Sales 7.85 EE3 34.74 | Due toincrease in Profit
in %)

on|EBIT  Le. (Profit baore|Capital Employad Le, 15.64 a2 53.00 | Due to increase in Profit
tandinterest on borrowings; ||Shereholder’s Equity+Total Debt;

on|Poftt/ilossi  on sale  of| Purchase Cost of Investments sold 542 4360 |B87.56} | Due to increase invalue
Iryestments af investrment

57 Other Statutory Information in tarms of the schedule Il of the companies act
) Tha Company doas not have any benami property, and no procaeding has bean initatad or panding against the Company for holding any benami proparty.

b) The Company does not have any transsctions with companies strock off.
] The Campany does not have ary charges or satisfaction wihich & yet to be registered with Registrar of Carnpanias beyand the statutary period except 8s disclased in note no. 17,

di The Company have not treded or Invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the financial year.

g} The Company hayve not advanced or loaned of invested funds to any other persanis) or entityies), including foraign entities [Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intarmediary
shall:

(i), Directhy or indirecthy lend or invest in other persons or entites identfied in &y manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the company [utmate benaficiaries) or

{ii). Provide any Guarantes, Security, or tha like 1o or on behalf of the Ultimate Benefidarias,

f] The Company have net recaived any fund from any Person{s) or Entitylies), including Foreign Enttes [Funding Party) with the ungerstanding {whether recorded in writing or othenwisa)
that the Carmpany shall:

i1, Dlrecthy or indirectly land or invest in other persons or entities identified in ary manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of tha funding party | sftimate bereficaries) or

{i). Provide any Guarantes, Security, or the ke on behalf of the uldmate benefidarias,

gl The company has been sanctioned working capital imit in axcess of Rs. 5 crore, in aggregate, st points of tme during the year, from bank on the basis of security of current assets, The
quarterly returns/ statements filed by the company with the bank, are generally in agresrment with the unaudited books of accounts of the company of the respective guarters and
differencas, if any are not material

hi The Company has no such transaction which is not recorded in tha Books of Accounts that has baen surrendered or disclosed as income during tha year in the tax assassmants under the
Imcame Tax dct, 1961 1such 8BS, seerch or suryey or any other relevant proyisians af the Income Tes Act, 1951,

il The Lompany have not been declared wiltful defaulter by any Banks or any other Financdal Insttution at any time during the finangal year.

58, Pravigus figures have been regrouped, rearranged to maka it comparaile with current yaar figures.

In light of guidanca and principals elaborsted In " Guidance Note on "Division Il — Ind A5 — Schadule il 1o the Companies Act, 2013°, issued by The Institute of Charterad Accountants of
India , the company has changed dassilfication of cert@in items in Current year from ane head ta anather head of financial statements and sleo reclagsified previeus year figures in line with
current year presentaton and classificabon. This redassification i= not hawing any financial impact over financial results end state of affair as en 31st March 2022, Sumenary of
reclassification of itams has been given balow:

{As. In Lakhs}
Classified wnder the broad heads of financial | Re-classified of items under the broad heads of) Amount Reclassifiad
EN Particulars
stataments in FY 21-22 financial statements in ~ FY 22-23
1 Prowision for Warranty oo [Nete: Mo, 23) 53.65

Other Currant Lizbilities |Mate Na. 22;

Other Finandal Liabilities [Mote No, 21)
2 Paysble to Employaas 314,12
Cther Current Liabilities (Mote No. 22)

Dthm Liabilities [Note No,
65T Inpit & Lisbility Netof as sllowed under | Other Currant Assets [Nats Na, 18] EXHEI: Mitintied Nube Na. T1)

& GST Provisions Othar Currant Liabilitias |Note No. 21} ther s pan Auess ot Ho: 1) ean98
As per our repaort of even date For and on beahalf of the Board
Frick India Limitad
For Lodha & Co.
Chertered Accountants

Firrm Regn. Mo 30L051E
Ramesh C. Jain

lasmohan Singh T
Managing Director e

Gauray Lodha DI - DOSE2I12 DIM - DD03E529
Partnar
M. No. 507462
Place = New Delhl - Sharad Bhatnagar Amit Singh
Date: 24.05.2023 Director [Finance & Taxation] Company Socratany

H PAMN ADCFB17E2B M. No. A 46813
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Form No. SH-13 - Nomination Form

[Pursuant to section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19{1) of the
Companles [Share Capital and Debentures) Rules 2014)

FRICK INDJA LIMITED

[CIN = L7435%HR1562PLOD0ZE18]

Regd. Office: 21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad-121003 {Haryana)

Ph. 0129-2275691-94, 2270546-47

Fax (0129-22756595

Email - es @frickrmall.com

Wabsite = weww frickweb, com

If'We ... et .. the holder(s) of the securities  particulars of which are given hereunder wish to make
nommatlon and do hereb-,,r nnmlnate the following persons in whom shall vest, all the rights in respect of such
securities in the event of my/our death,

(1) PARTICULARS OF THE SECURITIES (in respect of which nomination is being made)

Mature of Securities | Folio No. MNo. of securities Certificate No. Distinctive No.

From To

(2) PARTICULARS OF NOMINEE’S —

Mame : Date of Birth ;. ———f--—f~---— {in MM/DDYYY)
Father's / Mother's / Occupation : Nationality :
| Spouse’s Name ;
E- mail id :
Phone Mo, ; Relation with the Sipnature of the
Security holder : | Nominee:
Addreass
Pin code :
{3) IN CASE NOMIMEE IS A MINOR--
Hame Relationship with Homines :
Date of Birth .___/ / Date of attaining MWame of guardian :
majority.__ [/ /
Address of guardian :
Pin code
MName of Security Holder(s) : Signature :
Address:
“Name of Witness | signature of Witness with date :
Address of witness:
Pin code :
Plage: Date ! /! f
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Instructions for Nomination Form

1. Please read the instructions given below very carefully and follow the same to the letter, If the form is not filled as per
instructions, the same will be rejected.

2, The nomination can be made by individuals only. Non individuals including society, trust, body corporate, partnership
firm, Karta of Hindu Undivided family, holder of power of attorney cannot nominate. If the shares are held jointly all joints
holders shall sign (as per the specimen registered with the company) the nomination form.

3. A minor can be nominated by a holder of Shares and in the event the name and address of the Guardian shall be given by
the holder,

4.  The nominee shall not be a trust, society, body corporate, partnership firm, Karta of Hindu Undivided Family, or a power
of attorney holder. A non-resident Indian can be a nominee on re-patriable basis.

5. Transfer of Shares in favour of a nominee and repayment of amount to nominee shall be a valid discharge by a company

against the legal heir.

Only one person can be nominated for a given folio.

Details of all holders in a folio need to be filled; else the request will be rejected.

The nomination will be registered only when it is complete in all respects including the signature of (a) all registered

holders (as per specimen lodged with the company) and (b} the nominee.

Q, Whenever the shares in the given folio are entirely transferred, transposition or dematerialised with some other folio,
then this nomination will stand rescinded.

10.  Upon receipt of a2 duly executed nomination form, the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the company will register the form
and allot a registration number. The registration number and folio number should be quoted by the nominee in all future
correspondence,

11.  The nomination can be varied or cancelled by executing fresh nomination form.

12. The company will not entertain any claims other than those of a registered nominee, unless so directed by a Court.

13. The intention regarding nomination /nomination form shall be filled in duplicate with the Registered and Transfer Agents
of the Company who will return ane copy thereof to the Members.

14. For shares held in dematerialised mode nomination is required to be filled with Depository Participant in their prescribed
farm.

N

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

Momination Registration Number

Date of Registration
Checked by { Name and Signature )
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ELECTROMNIC CLEARING SERVICE [CREDIT CLEARING) MANDATE FORM

ELECTRONIC CLEARING SERVICE [CREDIT CLEARING) MANDATE FORM

sharehalder's authorization to receive dividends through Electronic Credit Clearing Mechanism
The First/5ole Shareholder

2. Regd. Folio Mo /DP Client I

3. Particulars of bank account of firstfsole shareholder
& Narne of the bank
Branch
Address of the

Branch Telephone

Mo, of the Branch

. B-gdigit code number of the Bank and Branch
appearing on the MICR cheque issued by
thi: Bank

d. Account number

(a5 apoearing on the chegue book/passbook)

e Account type
[5.B. Account fCurent Account or cash credit) with code 10/11/13

f Ledger no. / Ledger folio no.
(if appearing on the chegue book/oassbook)

{In liew of the bank certificate to be obtained as under, please attach a blank cancelled cheque, or phatocopy of a cheque or the front page of
the savings bank passbook issued to you by your bank, for verification of the abowe particulars.)

I hereby declare that the particulars ghven above are correct and complete. If the transaction is delayved or not effected at all for reasons of
incamplete or incorrect informat ion, | will not hold Frick India Limited responsible. | have read the option/ invitation letter and agree to
discharge the responsibility expected of me as a participant under the scheme.

Date:
Place: Signature of the Shareholder
Certified that the particutars furnished above are correct as per our records.
Bank's Stamp Slgnature of the Authorized Official
from the Bank
Date;
Mote;

1.  Pleasefill in the attached Mandate Form and send it to:
il The Depositary Participant who is maintaining your demat account in case your shares are dematerialized.
(il The Registrars and Share Transfer Agents, M/s. Link Intime India Pyt. Ltd whose address is Noble Heights, Ist Floor, NH-2, C-1, Black LSC, Near Savitri Market,
Janakpuri, New Delhi - 110058 or at the company at Frick India limited. 21.5 Km. Main Mathura Road, faridabad - 121003
in case you are halding physical share certificates.

2. Eindly note that the information provided by you should be accurate and complete in all respects and fully certified by your bank. In liew of the
bank certificate, you may attach a blank cancelled cheque or photocopy of a chegue or the front page of the Saving Bank passbook issued to
you by your bank, for verification of the abowe particulars.

3. Incase of more than one folio please complete the details on separate sheests.

The information provided by you will be treated confidential and would be utilised only for the purpose of effecting the payments meant for
you. You also have the right to withdraw from this mode of payment by providing the Company with an advance notice of 6 weeks
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Frick India Limited

(CIN - L74899HR1962PLC002618)
Regd. Office: -

21.5 KM, Main Mathura Road,
Faridabad-121003 (Haryana)

Ph. 0129-2275691-94, 2270546-47
Fax. 0129-2275605

Email - cs@frickmail.com

Website - www.frickweb.com

Dear Shareholder(s)/Memberis),
Sub: Service of Documents through Electronic Mode

The Mew Companies Act, 2013 has been notified w.e f. 1st April, 2014 and it inter alia, allows the Company, to
communicate with its shareholders/members through electronic mode like email. Thus in view of the same your
Company is hoping for an affirmative response from its shareholders/ members to rec eive Notices of General
meeting/ Postal Ballot, Annual Report and other shareholders communicati ons through electronic mode. This will
enable you to receive such notice(s)/ Annual Report(s)/document(s) Communication(s) etc. promptly and without
any loss or hassles of postal transit.

In order to register your email id or update the changes therein, you are requested to send an email from your
respective email id to cs@frickmail.com and bharatb@linkintime.co.in, with a subject “Registration/Update of
emall id" or send the duly filled in attached form to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, l.e. M/s. Link Intime
India Private Limited.

Post receipt of your positive consent for the same, going forward any Notice of Meetings, Annual Report,
Directors’ Report and other Shareholders/Members communication shall be duly sent to you electronically to the

e-mail address as provided by you.

Please note that if you do not register your email id or still wish to continue receiving physical copy of the
aforementioned documents, the Company shall send the same, free of cost, upon receipt of a request from you.

We look forward for your support.

Date: May 24, 2023 For Frick India Limited

{lasmohan Singh)
Managing Director

DIN: 00383412
Address: -

5, Friends Colony(West),
New Delhi-110065
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T T

REGISTRATION OF E-MAIL ADDRESS FORM

[Date:

To:
M5, Link Intime India Private Limited,

Moble Heights, Ist Floor, NH-2, C-1, Block
LSC, Mear Savitri Market, Janakpuri,
New Delhi - 110058

Dear Sirs,
Sub.: Registration of email id for receiving communication through electronic mode.

I/\We submit as under:

1) I/We hereby give my CONSENT to the Company to use myfour registered e -mail id in my/our Demat account with the
Depository Participant for serving the documents as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, (Please tick
mark(~' ) appropriately). *'

Yes |:| Mo, |:|
“*'ror shareholders/members holding share in Demat form,

2} Kindly use my / our e-mail id far serving the

documents as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for Folio No. i

Yes I:I No. I:I

"*#'Eor shareholders/members holding share in Physical farm.

Thanking you,
Yours faithfully,

MName of Sole / First Holder Signature

Date :.iiniiicaaiiis

Tear here
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' FRICK INDIA LIMITED
809, “Surya Kiran", 19 K. G. Marg, NewDelhi - 110 001. Ph : 23322381/84/91. Fax : 23322396

m Email : delhi@frick.co.in

Factory : 21.5 km, Main Mathura Road, Faridabad 121 003, Ph ; 2275691-34, 2270546-47 Fax : 01129-2275695
ednail : fod@frick.co.in

Branch Off. Address

Phones Fan eimail

Ahmedabad : 1010, The Titanium City Centre Anandnagar Road, Satellite, Ahmedabad-15 26034410 26934410
gujarati@irickmall.com
Bangalors : T-6, Swastik Manandi Arcade 401/2, Sheshadri Puram, Bangalors-560020, 22196021, 23469693
23469693 bng@frickmail.com
Chandigarh  : SCO0-6, lind Floor, Silver City, Chd-Delhi Road, Zirakpur, Chandigarh-140603 9316136334

frick.chd@gmail. com
Chennal 243, Anna Salal, Post Box. Ne. 1077, Chennal - 600 006 28524010, 28524003 28524003
chennaigifrickmail.com
Caochin : 4113518, Providence Road, Nr. Madhava Pharmacy Junction, Cochin 682 018, 2394473 2394173

cochin@irick.co.in
Jalandhar : Opp Uday Magar. Makodar Road,Jalandhar, Punjab - 144001 B5TSTHO



